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HK

Manulife Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
Michael Floyd Dommermuth, Director

33 10 10/F,

Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

03 6212 8316

US

Manulife Investments Trust- US Core Fixed Income Fund

100 1 2,886

100 9,170

2022 28 UFJ
128.86 91.70
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Manulife Investments Trust — US Core Fixed Income Fund
us

us

Manulife Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited

100 2,886
100 9,170
2022 28 UFJ
128.86 91.70
( )
1.0 1.10

2/268



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 2023 30

https://ww._daiwa.jp/

3/268



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4/268



us

2012 11

100

EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

2013 14

5/268



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1994 6 21
2012 11 5
2013 6 14
2017 11 21
2020 9 4

2020 9 25
2020 9 28
2021 4 9

2021 4 12

6/268



EDINETOOOO

o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FoAM 22T T A A A

b2 b

T B
U+ 37« 4B 2K 70 Py F

oA T o el A b A
bR A b (FED

(77w VEEOERBL UER. ¥
wIFOETELUVERLES

| mokEEE
—— WREEE
ViFw R
R
EEmEi

i =t

BERFFHATEM

HEECH T AT 4+— (&A=
v NEFw R

(F 3R VEBELUT? L KB

ST, SIREIEITER)

ICRE N B L T e
bewzAobh (US)LLC

T~ TR - 2325

(oo ROWEEH R e
e =8 LT
[ e A O o S bl
F o EED{RERTE
B
BEZi
iR e B3z
B B BRRETL BREIIT e ——
Ritme 8 b i AT R
FATEE MR vmadr T quan hg| |BEBCTAT AT Y

(H R B 2 FmiEFn R
BRLFER. TR 8%RE

v

RELZ

bW T AL bEET
CHAECET 2 EBELoEiE
b E Y

7/268

FFL bTR b AL

A (TET) UiTFe R

(P A MBIV FOFESE
BRETER)




EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 11 21
Manulife Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited
2017 11 21
HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited
2008
HSBC Institutional Trust Services
(Asia) Limited
2020 10
(The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking ,
Corporation Limited)
2012 11 30
3
Manulife Investment Management
(US) LLC 2017 11 27
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2,841 46,649

2022 28 UFJ 16.42

Hua Tse Enterprises Limited

Regent
Manulife Investment Asia Limited

Manulife
Regent Investment Asia Limited

HK Manulife Funds Direct
(Hong Kong) Limited
HK Manulife Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Limited
HK Manulife

Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
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2022
o 2,486,543,934 100
The Goddard Building, Haggatt Hall,
Manulife Investment
St. Michael, Barbados
Management International
Holdings Limited
83 22
22/F., Manulife Tower, One Bay East,
0
Chan Shu Moon 83 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
2012 11 2013 14
)
1925
50
150
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Bloomberg L.P.

London Stock Exchange Group plc
FTSE International Limited FTSE Fixed Income LLC
London Stock Exchange Group plc
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2022
66,454,968 53.38
2,537,948 2.04
447,380 0.36
293,975 0.24
279,645 0.22
209,033 0.17
206,875 0.17
183,622 0.15
180,844 0.15
33,811,665 27.16
992,120 0.80
788,571 0.63
629,438 0.51
539,437 0.43
520,138 0.42
390,432 0.31
325,357 0.26
271,848 0.22
263,630 0.21
258,820 0.21
226,298 0.18
185,033 0.15
184,231 0.15
163,723 0.13
57,294 0.05
13,337,313 10.71
123,739,637 99.40
750,546 0.60
Rl
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30
2022
DS e o 875 [ 2051 11 15 | 6,615,200 0.93| 6,166,725 | o0.80| 5,250,748 | 4.23
oot .500 | 2050 10 3,900,000 | 0.86| 3,349,793 | o0.73| 2,862,246 | 2.30
o 500 [ 2045 15 | 3,151,000 1.13| 3,569,533 | o0.90| 2,825,964 | 2.27
e oy 1875 .75 | 2032 15 | 2,603,000 0.96| 2,495,206 o0.92| 2,300,301 1.92
e POOL FRN .500 | 2050 12 3,100,000 | 0.86| 2,667,883 | 0.74| 2,282,010 1.83
o POOL FRY 500 | 2051 2,789,000 | 0.92| 2,564,510 | 0.81| 2,266,943 | 1.82
S ooy 2.25% 250 [ 202 15 | 2,561,000 o0.97| 2,490,790 | o0.87| 2,220,160 | 1.79
e oo FRY .000 | 2052 2,380,000 | 1.00| 2,387,354 | o0.94| 2,228,202 | 1.79
e aaE POOL FRN .500 | 2050 11 2,785,000 | 0.87| 2,428,018| o0.77| 2,140,712 | 1.72
10| PAYNIE WAE POOL FRN .000 | 2051 1,601,000 | 0.85| 1,367,963 | 0.75| 1,206,827 | 0.97
17| PAILE WAE POOL FRN .000 | 2050 10 1,345,000 | 0.01| 1,222,508| 0.77| 1,029,825 | 0.83
12| PN o POOL FRY 500 | 2050 12 925,000 | 0.92 854,044 | 0.78 724,567 | 0.58
13| FAINIE WA POOL FRY .000 | 2049 12 1,350,000 |  0.60 808,497 | 0.52 700,734 | 0.56
DLLAA 2021-1 LLC
14 | SER 1A CL A3 FRN 670 [ 206 17 691,000 | 1.00 690,900 | 0.96 664,698 | 0.53
17/04/2026
15| FAINIE e POOL FRY .000 | 2050 1,000,000 | 0.69 686,737 | 0.59 594,050 | 0.48
16| FREDPLE Mo oL s 500 | 2045 2,580,000 | 0.26 662,646 | 0.23 594,614 | 0.48
ISR G 200 [ 2020 11 21 612,000 | 1.09 668,715 | 0.94 576,651 | 0.46
18| SROpCON IC (RS 750 | 2000 15 553,000 | 1.17 646,950 | 1.00 554,980 | 0.45
BANK OF NY MELLON
19| CORP (SER J) (REG ) 850 [ 2024 10 25 563,000 | 1.00 562,634 | 0.95 534,637 | 0.43
-85% 25/10/2024
20 52 TREASIRY 2.5% 500 [ 2027 31 546,000 | 1.00 544,827 | 0.98 537,166 | 0.43
21 [ e .000 | 2050 1,000,000 | 0.59 589,433 | 0.51 509,723 | 0.41
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22

AT&T INC 3.1%
01/02/2043

.100

2043

629,000

.99

620,301

493,726

23

WELLS FARGO &
COMPANY SER U (REG)
VAR PERP 29/12/2049

.875

2049

12 29

456,000

1

504,088

463,980

24

FORD CREDIT AUTO
OWNER TRUST 2018-
REV1 SER 1 CL A FRN
15/07/2031

.190

2031

15

454,000

.09

496,912

449,511

25

MORGAN STANLEY VAR
28/04/2026

.188

2026

28

471,000

.04

489,452

446,795

26

GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP
INC VAR 22/04/2032

.615

2032

22

489,000

.00

489,000

417,318

27

LLOYDS BANKING
GROUP PLC 4.45%
(REG) 08/05/2025

.450

2025

394,000

.14

447,627

399,402

28

MICRON TECHNOLOGY
INC (REG) 5.327%
06/02/2029

.327

2029

393,000

.17

459,440

411,176

29

TOYOTA AUTO LOAN
EXTENDED NOTE TRUST
2019-1 SER 1A CL A
FRN 25/11/2031

.560

2031

11 25

407,000

.06

433,390

400,649

30

TRICON AMERICAN
HOMES 2020-SFR1 SER
SFR1 CL A FRN
17/07/2038

.499

2038

17

435,000

.00

433,570

392,886

2022

2022
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2020 25
2021
2022
2018 12 31
2019 12 31
2020 12 31 71,177,650 9,171,952 100.58 12,961
2021 12 31 112,882,397 14,546,026 97.36 12,546
2021 122,270,160 15,755,733 97.69 12,588
122,654,550 15,805,265 98.38 12,677
121,068,212 15,600,850 99.43 12,813
127,774,504 16,465,023 99.19 12,782
121,228,982 15,621,567 97.89 12,614
10 118,160,257 15,226,131 97.53 12,568
11 116,987,723 15,075,038 97.64 12,582
12 112,882,397 14,546,026 97.36 12,546
2022 112,547,928 14,502,926 95.26 12,275
104,097,226 13,413,969 93.93 12,104
99,161,455 12,777,945 90.67 11,684
88,730,036 11,433,752 87.56 11,283
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2018 12 31
2019 12 31
2020 12 31

2021 12 31 8,370,265 1,078,592 100.45 9,211

2021 2,533,728 326,496 100.90 9,253

2,985,110 384,661 101.60 9,317

3,815,649 491,685 102.68 9,416

4,897,234 631,058 102.39 9,389

7,034,074 906,411 101.02 9,264

10 7,642,783 984,849 100.65 9,230

11 7,661,968 987,321 100.79 9,242

12 8,370,265 1,078,592 100.45 9,211

2022 8,119,238 1,046,245 98.28 9,012

8,509,520 1,096,537 96.89 8,885

8,119,774 1,046,314 93.54 8,578

7,294,760 940,003 90.26 8,277
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110 — 30
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100 DR SR e
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e e,
AN
g5 b \uhﬁ 415
l“““v—._
G - w10
B5 5
B . : - L i
2211419 2021047 30 LT3 21780031 20224121 20204 130
2020 2020 12 31 0 0
2021 2021 12 31 1.00 129
2022 2022 0.50 64
1.50 193
2020 25 2022
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2021 2021 12 31 0.50 46
2022 2022 0.50 46
1.00 92
2021 2022
2020 2020 12 31 0.58
2021 2021 12 31 2.21
100x

100
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I 58 DIEFS (B ~—2)
[9FRACKELRT)]

15%

100 -

058
% i t i } t i } y -

_5% -

= 10% - - 58

=15%
20135 l4s 158 20162 KL 20185 20192 20205 2021 2031

100x

2022

2020 100

2021 2021 12 31 0.95

100x

100
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INZRER DR (B ~<—2)
[95ZA (@ELETAYSBD)]

15%

10 -

0.95

= 10 965

—~ 155

Hl3eE Hil4£E 20158 HlGEE 2 TEE 20188 M14EE 200 M2 20028
100x
2022
2021 100
2020 709,672 2,000 707,672
2020 12 31 709,672 2,000 707,672
o021 1,039,465 587,704 1,159,433
2021 12 31 1,039,465 587,704 1,159,433
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130,539 15,810 114,729

2021 130,539 15.810 114,729

2021 12 31
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131

23 103

2022 28
128.86 91.70
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2021 12 31
2021 2020
a(b) 155,495,080 20,037,096 109,067,689 14,054,462
A(b) 188,826 24,332 24,649 3,176
762,247 98,223 557,673 71,862
) 598,685 77.147 3,630,179 467,785
. - 1,665,613 214,631
249 32 . .
5,281,659 680,595 1,852,522 238,716
162,326,746 20,917,424 116,798,325 15,050, 632
4(b) 289,723 37,334 333 43
516,451 66,550 - -
4,805,973 619,298 6,330,968 815,809
8(a) 8(b) 154,398 19,896 100,071 12,895
8(c)
5,766,545 743,077 6,431,372 828,747
156,560,201 20,174,348 110,366,953 14,221,886
2,522,357 2,671,162
1,830,500 1,601,599
1,159,433 707,672
114,729 -
908 965
968 917
97.36 12,546 100.58 12,961
100.45 9,211
2022 27
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2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

6,043,365 778,748 1,630,417 210,096
79 10 631 81
(5,688,099) (732,968) 2,055,989 264,935
(3,873,318) (499,116) 774,756 99,835
4,564 588 - _
131,949 17,003 26,546 3,421
(3,381,460) (435,735) 4,488,339 578,367
8(a) (391,535) (50,453) (112,690) (14,521)
8(b) (84,562) (10,897) (24,194) (3,118)
8(b) (12,000) (1,546) (12,000) (1,546)
(32,133) (4,141) (30, 905) (3,982)
8(b) (87,200) (11,237) (55,400) (7,139)
8(b) (14,676) (1,891) (11,428) (1,473)
(1,149) (148) (1,566) (202)
8(b) (5,205) (671) (3,638) (469)
- - (4,000) (515)
8(c) (776,422) (100, 050) (57,063) (7,353)
8(b) (23,118) (2,979) (12,637) (1,628)
(1,428,000) (184,012) (325,521) (41,947)
(4,809,460) (619,747) 4,162,818 536,421
(2,653,460) (341,925) (1,523,620) (196,334)
(7,462,920) (961,672) 2,639,198 340,087
(26,133) (3,367) (8,063) (1,039)
(7,489,053) (965,039) 2,631,135 339,048
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2021 12 31

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
110,366,953 14,221,886 38,854,732 5,006,821
125,468,815 16,167,912 77,730,368 10,016,335
1,434,710 184,877 1,523,620 196,334
(73,221,224) (9,435,287)  (10,372,902) (1,336,652)
53,682,301 6,917,501 68,881,086 8,876,017
(7,489,053) (965,039) 2,631,135 339,048
156,560,201 20,174,348 110,366,953 14,221,886
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2021 12 31

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
(7,489,053) (965,039) 2,631,135 339,048
(6,043,365) (778,748) (1,630,417) (210,096)
79) (10) (631) (81)
26,133 3,367 8,063 1,039
2,653,460 341,925 1,523,620 196,334
(10,852,904) (1,398,505) 2,531,770 326,244
(46,427,391) (5,982,634)  (70,873,380) (9,132,744)
125,213 16,135 129,783 16,724
1,665,613 214,631 (1,506,326) (194,105)
(249) (32) - -
(1,524,995) (196,511) 6,012,287 774,743
54,327 7,001 39,959 5,149
(56,960, 386) (7,339,915)  (63,665,907) (8,203,989)
5,812,658 749,019 1,280,545 165,011
79 10 637 82
(51,147,649) (6,590,886)  (62,384,725) (8,038,896)
128,500,309 16,558,550 74,100,189 9,548,550
(72,704,773) (9,368,737)  (10,372,902) (1,336,652)
(1,218,750) (157,048) - -
54,576,786 7,032,765 63,727,287 8,211,898
3,429,137 441,879 1,342,562 173,003
1,852,522 238,716 509,960 65,713
5,281,659 680,595 1,852,522 238,716
5,281,659 680,595 1,852,522 238,716

1,434,710 2020 1,523,620
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2021

2021
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2021 12 31 156,560,201 2020 110,366,953
2021 12 31
2020
2021
) ) ) ( )
2,671,162 1,601,599 707,672 -
857,217 715,023 1,039,465 130,539
98,720 70,151 - -
(1,104,742) (556,273) (587,704) (15,810)

2,522,357 1,830,500 1,159,433 114,729
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2020
) ) ) ( )
2,521,322 1,961,155 - -
612,827 164,538 709,672 -
87,732 83,448 - -
(550,719) (607,542) (2,000) -
2,671,162 1,601,599 707,672 -
2021 2020
156,560,201 110,366,953
1,340 4,972
156,561,541 110,371,925
2021 2020
908 965
968 917
97.36 100.58
100.45 -
2021 2020
908 964
967 916

97.29 100.45

75/268



(

)

EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100.38 -

)

76/268



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020
155,495,080 158,455,711 99.32 109,067,689 107,292,431 98.82
188,826 - 0.00 24,649 0.02
289,723 - 0.00 333 0.00
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
653,728 763,895
480,573 337,494
1,223,822 1,084,757
1,437,729 100,097
202,783 217,317
242,247 )
871,916 897,785
250,638 )
1,379,019 1,630,822
190,611 )
969,293 518,018
419,276 )
296,614 528,717
1,081,189 600,219
763,178 757 172
209,250 217,500

278,140
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480,775

498,775
591,098 450,114
639,138 233,051
203,000

142,631,063 100,231,956

155,495,080 109,067,689
2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020

1.61 L2

1.59 L 60

22.79 13,95

2.30 L 62

1.35 L

13.60 "1

0.31 0 42

4.34 26 5

0.95 )

10.26 465

7.53 7.33

8.50 17.24

2.84 3 21

20.82 6 16

0.53 037

99.32 98.82
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2021 2020 12 31 10
2021 12 31

11,652 28,121,040 127,362,388 - 155,495,080
- - - 188,826 188,826
- - - 1,361,181 1,361,181
5,281,659 - - - 5,281,659
5,293,311 28,121,040 127,362,388 1,550,007 162,326,746
- - - 289,723 289,723
- - - 5,476,822 5,476,822
- - - 156,560,201 156,560,201
- - - 162,326,746 162,326,746

5,293,311 28,121,040 127,362,388
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2020 12 31
41,037,565 27,454,502 40,575,622 - 109,067,689
_ i, - 24,649 24,649
- - - 5,853,465 5,853,465
1,852,522 - - - 1,852,522
42,890,087 27,454,502 40,575,622 5,878,114 116,798,325
- - - 333 333
- - - 6,431,039 6,431,039
- - - 110,366,953 110,366,953
- - - 116,798,325 116,798,325
42,890,087 27,454,502 40,575,622
2021 12 31 100
11,011,086 (2020 6,857,160 )
1,244,029 2020 575,068
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020 12 31
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2021 12 31
155,495,080
188,826
5,281,659

2020 12 31

109,067,689

24,649
1,852,522
10
25 )
2021 2020 12 31

12
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2021 2020
8.94 517
1.22 L7
5.47 485

32.80 30.82
0.70 L 0o
0.19 0.7

50.00 57.31

99.32 98.82

2021 2020 12 31
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2021 12 31
188,826 188,826
188,826 188,826
289,723 289,723
289,723 289,723
2021 12 31
188,826 188,826

188,826 188,826
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2021 12 31
289,723 188,826 100,897
289,723 188,826 100,897

2020 12 31
24,649 24,649
24,649 24,649

333 333

333 333
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2020 12 31
24,649 333 24,316
24,649 333 24,316
2020 12 31
333 333
333 333

12
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2021 12 31
289,723 289,723
516,451 516,451
4,805,973 4,805,973
154,398 154,398
156,560,201 156,560,201
162,326,746 162,326,746
2020 12 31
333 333
6,330,968 6,330,968
100,071 100,071
110,366,953 110,366,953

116,798,325 116,798,325
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2021 12 31
155,495,080 155,495,080
188,826 188,826
762,247 762,247
598,685 598,685
249 249
5,281,659 5,281,659
162,326,746 162,326,746
2020 12 31
109,067,689 109,067,689
24,649 24,649
376,911 180,762 557,673
3,630,179 3,630,179
1,665,613 1,665,613
1,852,522 1,852,522

116,617,563 180,762 116,798,325
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2021 2020
8,373,175 -
19,916,183 24,820,662
2021 2020
418,659 - -

995,809 1,241,033
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2021 2020 12 31
( )
2021 12 31
155,495,080 155,495,080
188,826 188,826
155,683,906 155,683,906
289,723 289,723
289,723 289,723
2020 12 31
109,067,689 109,067,689
24,649 24,649
109,092,338 109,092,338
333 333

333 333
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
(5,688,099) 2,055,989
(3.873,318) 774,756
(9,561,417) 2,830,745
2021 2020
188,826 24,649
188,826 24,649
289,723 333

289,723 333
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 12 31
8,463,320 11,896,460 2022 31 188,447
87,189 120,408 2022 31 379
188,826
19,793,687 2,243,931,139 2022 31 (286, 616)
409,331 47,061,000 2022 31 (219)
503,406 363,272 2022 31 (2,888)
(289,723)
2020 12 31
22,960,888 2,372,647,291 2021 29 22,335
927,661 96,005,000 2021 29 2,314
24,649
907,798 93,681,000 2021 29 (333)
(333)
2011 81 50

20AC 20ACA 20AN 20A0

16.5 2020 16.5
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24
0.6
2021 2020 12 31 391,535 2020 112,690
2021 12 31 33,537 2020
20,676
0.1
2021 12 31 12,000 2020 :12,000
2021 12 31 998 2020 :998 )
12 31
2021 2020
84,480 24,194
12,000 12,000
87,200 55,400
14,676 11,428
3,500 3,500
23,118 12,637
224,974 119,159

2021 12 31 19,652 2020 : 16,873
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315,441 2020
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0.33
123,776
28,176 2020 :12,679
2020
2020 0.50
0.50 2020 12 31
2021 2020

834,589 787,231

600,121 736,389

1,187,192 -

31,558 -

2,653,460 1,523,620

27
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUMD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
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021 020
Motes UsD UsD
Assels
Financia! assets st fir value through profit or loss dk) 155,405,080 1049067649
Dizrivative financial psscis A 6 185,526 24,649
Intzres! receivabile on inlerest-honring securilics 62,247 557673
Amaounts reesivable on subscription T 598,685 3630,179
Amounis reselvable on sale of invesmients . 1,665,603
Chher recelvables 249 -
Cash and cash equivalens 5.281,659 1,852,522
Total assels 162,536,746 116,298,325
Liabilities
Dezrivetive fieoncial liabkilites ML RT3 333
Amaants payable on redemption S1645) -
Amaunts paynble on purchase of invesimerty 4.EN5.073 6,330,968
Eia) &b,
Othar payabies fic) 154.39% 160,671
Liabslities {exeluding net mxsels altribatable (o
unil bolders) 5.764.545 6431372
Met asseis attribulabe fo unitholders 3 156,560,201 110,366,955
MNumber of uniis in isue
- Class A = Dbv (IPY Hedged) 3 2520 357 2670162
= Class A = v {JPY Unhedaed) i 1.E30.500 1601599
« Clas A - Div {USD) 3 1152433 TOT.6T2
= Class A - Div {AUD Hedeed) 3 114,729 -
Met assel vadue per unit
- Chiss A = Diiv (JPY Hedged) 3 IPyang IPYRG5
- Class A - Div [40Y Unhedyed) i IEYIEE Y97
= Clss A = Div (LSO} 3 USDET.36 LISDI00.58
- Class A - Div {AUD Hedged) 3 ALDIOD.AS .
N — T ——

Approved by the Manager eid the Trusies aa 27 April 2022

On bekall of Monulife Inverimen: Munagenseal {Hang Kong) Limiled w
. —

O behalfaf H5BC Trustes {Cayman) Limited

Winith Rao - Direc L - o

oF

The noles on pages 1006g 35 are an imegral pan of these financial falemenie

o :
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF COMPREAENSIVE INCOME
FOR TIL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

[ncome

Iuterssl from interest-bearing securities

Baenk intercst

Wet realized (losses)ening on financiol assets at fuir
value through profit or loss end derivetive finencial
instrnunents

Met change in wirenlized (lossesVgains oo dnancial
assels ot i value duough profit o loss end
derivative financial instruments

Sundry income

Wel exchange gains

Expenses

Inveument macigemenl fe
Safi custody and processing fee
Trustes e

Auditor's remunemtion
WValuation bze

Transaction hazdling fee
Annual avthorty fee
Accouiting and other professiomal fees
Establigduneat cost

Digtribiution and ageal fee
Other operling expenses

Total aperating expenses

Operating (lnsspprafit

Finance cost
Distribution fo mithalders

{Lossyprofit after distribution and hefore taxation

Taxation
Witkholding taxes

Total comprebensive (loss)Tneome for the vear

Notes

8(e)
B{b)
E(b)

Bib)
Bib)

&b

&c)
E(b)

Year ended
31 December 2021
LED

6,043,365
79

(5,688,059)

(3,873,318)
4,504
131,949

(3,381,460)

(391,535)
(84,562)
(12,000)
(32,133)
(87,200
(14,676)

(1,149)
(5,205)

(776,422)
(23,118)

{1,428,000)

{4,809,460)

(2,653,460)

(7,462,920)

(26,133)

(7,489.053)

Year ended
31 December 2020
LSD

1,630,417
63l

2,055,989

Ti4,756
26,346

4,488,339

{112,650)
(24,194)
(12,000)
(30,905)
(55,400)
(11,428)

(1,566)
(3,638)
(4,000)
(57,063)
(12,637)

(325,521)

4,162,818

(1,523,620}

3,629,108

{5.063)

2,631,135

The nodes on pages 1000 35 are wn inlegral part of (kese Groncial satements.

2
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2021

Year ended Year cnded
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Notes usn uspD
Met asseis atiributable to unitholders at the

beginning of the year 110,306,953 38,854,732
Proeeeds on subseriplion 3 125,468,815 77,730,368
Proeeeds on re-invesoment of distributions 3.9 1,434,710 1,523,620
Payments on redemption 3 (73,221,224) (10,372,902)
53,682,301 8,881,086
Total comprehensive income for the year (7,489,053) 2,631,135

Met assets atiributable to unitholders at the end of

the year 156,560,201 110,366,953

The notes on pages 10 1o 35 are an integral pant of thess Gnancial statements.
B
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2021

Cash flows from operating ncdvites
Tatal comprehensive (losslincome for the year

Adjustments for:
Interasr from interest-bearing seovrities
Bank interest
Withholding taxes
Distribution to umitholders

Ciperacing {loss)yincome before working capltal
changes

et increase in financial assers at fair value through
profit or loss

Mel decrease in derivative financial instruments

Met decrease/(increase) in amoumts receivable on sale of
investments

Met meorease in other receivables

et (decregse)increase in amounts payalis on purchass
of investments

Hel inerease in other payahles

Cash used in operations

Interest rorm interest-bearmy; secumities recetved
Bank intcrest income received

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows (rom financing activities

Proceeds on subseription

Payments on redemption

Payments on distribution

Mel cash generated fram financing activities

Met increase incash and cash equivalenis

Cazh end cash equivalents at the bepinning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of fhe vear
Amalysis of balance of cash and eash equivalents
Cash 2t banks

Mon-cash transactons:

Year ended Year exded
31 December 2021 31 Deccmber 2020
UsD L&D
(7,488,053} 2,021,135
{6,043,365) (1.630,417)
(79) {631)
26,133 5,065
2,653,400 1,523,620
(10,832,904} 2,531,770
(46,427,391} (70,873,380)
125213 129,783
1,665,613 [1,506,326)
{249 .
(1,524,955) 6,012,287
54327 39,050
{56,960,386) (63,605 507)
5812658 1,280,545
79 657
(51,147,64%) (62,384,725)
128,500,309 4,100,189
(72,704, 773) (10,372,502)
(1,218,750 .
54,576,786 63,727,287
3429137 1,342,562
1,852,522 5058 960
5,281,650 1,452,522
5,281,659

1,852,522

During the vear, USD1A34, 710 (2020: USD1,523,620) of distwribation was relnvested in the fund,

The notes on pages 10 to 35 are an infegral part of these financial sfatements.,

9
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

I. The Fumdl

The Manulife Tnvestments Trust (the “Trust™) i3 an umbrells unit trest created by o trust deed (the “Master
Trust Deed”) dated 5 Movenber 2012 berween HSBC Trustee (Cavman) Limited {the “Truses™) and
Manulife Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limiled (the “Manager™. The Master Trust Deed was
amended and restated by an amending and resmting deed dated 14 June 2013 (as amended and
supplemented from fime (o tme) (the “Amending and Resmting Deed™). The Trost is a licensed mutual fund
under seetion 41} oF the Mutwal Funds Act of the Cayman I=lands.

The Trustes and the Manager established Manulife Tovestments Trust - US Core Fixed Income Fund, a
series Trust {the “Fund™) by execution of 2 relevant Supplemental Trest Deed. The Fund commenced
operations on 27 Movember 2017 {date of inception}. Az at 31 Decermber 2021, spant from the Fund, there
are four other series rrusts, mamely, Manolife Tovestrments Trust - Stratcgic Income Fund, Meanolife
Investments Trust - Floating Fate Income Fumd, Manolife Investments Trust - Sualegic Indcme
Oppartunities Fund and Mansulife Investmenis Truat - Global Alleeation Fund [T

1. Summary of significant sccounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are sat out below,
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years pregenred, unless otherwise stated,

(m) BEasis of proparation

The financial statements have been Fmpamd in accordunce with Heng Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs™) issued by the Hong Kong Tnstitute of Ceriified Public Accountants
(“HEICPA™). The financial statements have been prepared wmder the historeal cost convention, os
modified by the revaluation of francial aseels and Gnancizl liabilitics (including derivalive financial
ingrpments} at fair valve through profit or losw

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HEKFRSs requires the Trusice and the
Manager to make judpements, estimates and asamptions that afleet the epplication of policies and the
reported amounts of assets and labilities, income and cxpenses. The cstimates and associated
assumptons are based on historical experience amd vanous oihber fhetors ihal ase belizved o be
reasonable umder the circumstances, the results of which form the bags of making the judgements about
carrying vahiss of assets and Habilitics that are nol readily spparent from ather sowrces. Actual resulis
rnay differ from thess estimates,

There are no standands, amendments to standards or interpreiations that are effective for amoual periods
beginning on 1 January 2021 that have a material effect on the fnancial stafements of the Fund.

Mew standards. smendments and interpretations issoed but not effective aler 1 Janusry 2021 snd Tave
net begn eady adopted by the Fand

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
pericds beginning after 1 January 2021, and have not been early adopted in preparing these finncial
statements. Mone of thess ars expected fo have a material effect on the finmneial statements of the
Fund,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRIST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. Summary of significant sceounting policies (Conti nued)
(h) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Classification

The Fund classifies its investments besed on both the Fund's business modsl for mamaging those
finaneial assels and the contractual eash flow characteristics of the financizl assets. The portfolio of
financin] asoety ix managed and perfomance is cvalunted on a fir value bagiz The Fuad is primerily
focused on fair value information snd wses that information fo assees the assels’ performance and o
make decizions, The Fumd has not teken the option to irevocakly designate any cquity sccuritics as fir
vatue through other comprehensive income, The contraetual cash fows of the Fund's debt seeurities ane
golely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose of collecting
contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash Qows and for sale. The collection of
contractual cash flaws iz only incidental to erchiving the Fund's business model's ohjective.
Consequently, all investments are measured at fair valee through profit or Doss,

Derivative contracts (het have & negative Tuir velue ane presented ax liabilities al fair velue through
profit or loss,

Recognition, de-recognition and measureme it

Regular purchases and sabes of investments are recognized en the trade date = the date on which the
Fund commits to rurchase or sell the investment. Financial assews at foir valee through profit or loss ene
imually recognized au foir value. Transection costs are expensed a3 incurred in the ststement of
comprehensive income.

Financial asseis are derecognized wihen e nghts 1o receive cash fows from the mvesimenis have
cxpired or the Fund has transferned substantially il risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent to initial recopnition, all Financial sssels st fair velue threugh profit or loss are measured a1
fair valwe. Gains and loses arising from changes in the Gir valus of te “Finencial assets ot fair value
through profit or loss™ category are presented in the staement of comprehensive income.

Interest on debt securities al fair wvalue through proft of lost i3 fecognived m the statememt of
comprehensive income within interest income hased on the effective interest mue,

Fair value estimation
The following represent the hasis of valuatdon for financial reperting purposes:
(i) Tnvestments which are listed or traded on an cxchange are fiiz valued based oa last iraded priccs.

{ii) Tvestments which 2re not listed on an exchange or are thinly aded are valued by psing guotes
from brokers,

(e) Income

Interest income on debt seeurities are incleded in interest from Dnterest-bearing secwrities within the
alatermnenl of comprebensive ineome. Interest ineome on debt instruments ofier tan Soating rote
seourilics are recognized on a lime-proporticoate bagis using the effective interest wethod. Other
income is accounied for on an sccerual basia,

The affective intzrest method iz a method of caloulating the amodized cost of an inlerest-bapning assat
and of allocating the interest incoame over the relevant perind. The effective interest rate is the mte that
suactly disconnts sstimated furire each receipts throughont the expested life of the financial insmument,
or a shorter peried where appropriate, to the net camying amount of the finamcial imstrument. When
caloulating the sffective interzst rate, the Fund estimates cash flows considering ali contractual ferms of
the financial instninent (for example, prepayment opticns) but does not consider future credit losses,
The caleulation insludes all faes and points received batween parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective intsrest rate, transaction ¢osts and all other premiums or discounts.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TEUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. Summary of sipnificant accounting policies {Continued)
{1) Translation of foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation curmencies

ttems included in the Fund's financial sfatements are mensured vsing the cummency of the primary
economic envirenment in wkich it operates (the “functional currency™), The financial satements
are presented in United States dollar (“USDF), which i the Fund's functional and presentation
CUTEICY.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign cumrency transactions are wanslated into the finctional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions, Foreipn currency assets and liabilities are manslated into
the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the statement of financial position
date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses ansing from translation ame presented as “Nel exchange
pains(losses)” in the statement of comprahensive income.

Foreign sxchange gains and losses relating to the financial assets and liahilines camed at fair value
through profit or loss ans presented in the statement of comprehensive income within "Ned realized
losses on firancial assets at fair valoe through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments”
and "Met chanpe in unrealized gainglosses on fnancial assets a1 fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial insrraments”.

(e) Expenses
Bxpenses are accounted for on an aceneal hasis.
(f} Derbvative financial instruments

Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are valued at the yeasiperiod crd date by reference Lo
the forward rate of exchange apphicable to the outstanding term of the contract. The fiir value of bond
furures and eplions traded in active marketz are based on last tmded market prices at the close of
trading on the reporting date, The fair value of options that are not troded in an active market is
determined vsing valuation techniques. The Fund wses a variety of methods and mekes assumptions
that are based on market condifians existing at sach reporting date, Valuation technigues used include
the use of comparzhle recent arm’s length tmnsactions, reference to other instruments that ane
gubstantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, opfion pricing models end other valustion
techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximuem use of market inputs and
relying as litle as possible on entity-specific inputs, Unrealized gaing or Insses on outstanding contracts
and realized gains and logses on closed contracts are shown in the staternent of comprehensive meome
within *Met change in unrealized (losseshpains on financial assetz at Gair value throegh profit or loss
and dervative financizl mstrumenss™ and “MNet realized {losses}gains on financial assets at fafr value
through profit ar loss and derivative financial instrurments” respectively,

{g) Subscription and redemption of wnits

All proceeds and payments for units isseed and redesmed are shown as movements in the statement of
changes in net assets atribotable to unitholders. The nes asset value of the Fund is computed daily.
Prices for issues and redemptions are based on the latest available preceding valuation,

The Fund issues two classes of wnits, which are redesmable at the holder’s option and do not have
identicel rights, Such wnits ate classified as financial liabiliies. Units can be put bask o the Fund at any
time for cash equal to & proportionate share of the Fund's net assat value.

The redestnable shares are carried at amortized cost which cormesponds to the redemption amonnt that
is payable at the statemzent of finencial position date if the holder exercise the right to put the share back
o the Fund,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 11 DECEMBER 2021

1. Summary of significant accounting policies {Continued)
(g) Subscription and redemption of units (Contimed)

Uniis are isazd and redecmed et the bolder®s option at prices based on the Pund's net asser value per
unis at the time of issve or redemption. The Fund®s net asset value per unit for each class is caleulated
by dividing the net assets atiribetable to unitholders of the class with the total mumber of outstanding
units in the class.

(h) Offsetting financial inshuments

Finencial assets and linbilities are offset and the net amount reported in the smement of financial
positien when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
inlention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, The legally
enforceable right will not be contingent on firture svents and must be enforceable io the nomal course
of the business and it the event of defaull, inselvency or bankrapicy of the Pund or the counterparty.

{{) Amounts recelvable on sale/pryable on purehase of invesiments

Amonnts receivable on sale/payvable on purchase of investments represent receivables from investmants
sold and povebles for investments purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or
delivered on the statement of financial pesition date respectively. The amounts receivabls on sals
kalance is held for collection,

These amounts are recognized initielly at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, At
ench reporting dote, the Fund shall measure the loss allowancs on amounts recaivable on sale ar an
amount egual to e lifetime sxpected credit losses if the credit risk has inereased sigrificantly since
initial recognition. If, at the reporting dare, the credit risk has not increased significantly since inital
recognition, the Fund shell measure the boss allowance at an arxount equal 1o 12-month expected credi
losses. Significant financial difficuldes of the broker, probability that the broker will enter bankruptey
or Hnancial reorganization, and default in pavments are all considered indicators that a loss allowance
may be required. 1f the credit risk increases to the podint that it i5 considered to be credit imypaiced,
interest incooe will be caloulated based on the gross canrving smount adjusted for tke loss allowance,
A significant increass in credit risk is defined by management as any contractual payment which is
more (Gan 30 days past due. Any contracmual payment which is more than 90 davs past due is
considersd credit impaired.

(i} CTash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash ar banks and dsposits held with hanks,
(k) Distribution (o unithalders

Distribution o Class A — Div (JPY Hadged), Class A - Div (JPY Unbedged), Class A — Div (USD) and
Class A - Thiv (ATD Hedped) unitholders are presented as Snanee cost in (hese finonets] stetements as
the net agsets atrbutable (o unitholders are classilicd as inancizl labilites They will be first paid ow
of the moome (which mey melude capial guns) which are reccgoized m the stolement of
comprehensive income, thereafier out of the caplie! of the Pund atiributable to the relevant class of
units of the Fund.

The distributions to Class A — Div (JPY Hadgad) and Cless A — Div (JTY Urhedged) unitholders are
declared menthly and will be automatically reinvested in additional units of the same class and will b2
issued e @ subseription price on the reinvestment date.

The disributions to Clasz A — Div (USD) and Class A - Div (AUD Hedged) unitholders are declarcd
serni-annnelly, The full dismibutions will be paid in cash to the unit holdens.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. Svummary of significant sccounting pelicies (Continocd)

M Establishmeont cosis

In accordance with the Fund’s Offering Memorandum, the ecsts and expenses in comnmection with the
establishment of the Fund will be bome by the Fund. For the purpose of caleulsting the subscripion
and redemption et asset value, the catablishinent costs will be amentized within the peried from the
close of the irital offer peried of the Units of the Fund to the end of the Fund's fifth finaocial vear
unless the Manager or its duly authorized sgent decides (hat some other method is w be applied, Under
HEFRSs, establishment costs are recognized as en expenss in (he period in which they are incured.

3. Number of unirs in issme and net aszets atiributahle to unitholders per unit

The I'und's capital is represented by the wnits in the Fund and shown as “net assels atirfbuable w
unitholders” in the statement of financial position. Subscriptions and redemptions of unils during the year
are shown in the statemeni of chanpes in et assets attributable (o umitholders. In order to achicve the
investment chjectives, the Fund sndeavars to invest ite capital in sccordance with the invesiment policics, as
outlined in note 4, whilst maivtaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption requests, Sueh Tiquidity is
gugmented by the bolding of liquid investments.

As at 31 December 2021, the Fund has USDIS6,560,200 (2020 USDI10,366,953) of puttable financial
insmrunsents clossified as liabilites, As at 31 December 2021, the Fund offars 4 (2020: 3) classes of units,
Class A — Div (JPY Hedged), Class A - Div (JPY Unbhedged), Class A — Div (USD) and Class A - Div
{(AUD Hedged).

1021
Class A—Div  Class A-Div  Class A-Div  Class A — Div
{JPY Hedged) JI'Y Unhedped) (USD) {AUD Hedged)
Units Units Units Units
Balance bronght forward 2 AT11A2 1,601,559 207,672 =
Total subscriptions 857,217 715,023 1,029,465 130,539
Total re-investment 48,720 70,151 - -
Total redemptions {1,104,742) (536,273) {587,704) (15,810)
Balunce carried forward 2,522.357 1,530,500 1,159,433 114,72
2020
Class A =Ty Class A = Div Class A =Div  Class A —=THv
(JPY Hodged) JPY Unhedged) (USD)  (AUD Hedged)
Units Units Tlnits Units
Belance brought forward 2521322 1,961,155 - -
Totel subscriplions 612,827 164,533 TO8,672 -
Totel re-investunent 87,732 3448 e =
Tota! redemplions (550,719) (607,542) (2,000) «
Balance corried forward 2,671,162 1,601,594 07,672
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED 31 DECEMRBER 2021

3,

Number of units in issue and net assets attribntable to unitholders per unit (Continned)

I accordance with the Fund's Offering Memorandum, the establishment costs of the Fund will be
amortized over the frat Bve years in caloulating the Fund's net asset value for subseription and redemption,
However, HEFRSs requires the Fund to expense establishment costs in the stafement of comprehensive
income a4 incurred. The differences between expensing the establishment coste as incurred in accordence
with HKFRS2 and the capitalizesion and amortization of the estzblishment costz indicated in the Fund’s
OTering Memorandum resalted in adjustments in the net asset value as presentad below.,

021 2020
UsnD usn
Met assets atmbutable 1o unitholders as repored in the swatemnent of
financia! position 156,560,201 110,366,953
Adjustments for unemortized establishiment costs 1,340 4,972
Wet asset value n accondance with the Fund's Offering Memorndum 136,561,541 110,371,925
2021 2020
Wet essels atirbutable to unitheldérs per unit (per statersent of financial
position)
Class A — Div (JF'Y Hedged) TFY9a3 JEY965
Class A — Div (JPY Uzhedged) JFY968 TFY917
Class A — Div (LUUSTH) UsSDH736  USDI0D.58
Class A - Div (AUD Hedged) AUDIDD.AS -
21 2020
Mot assets attributable to unithalders per unit {at dealing net asset value for
subseription and redemption in gocordence with the Fend's offering
memorandum )
Class A (JPY Hedped) IPY908 TPY964
Class A (JPY Urhedged) TEY95T TFY916
Class A = Div (LISD) USDuT.29 USD0As
Class A - Div (AUD Hedged) AUDLND.35 -
Financial risk manapgement

{n) Fimancial risk factors

The invesiment objective of the Fund is to eam o high kevel of current ncome and 10 maximize total
returns over 2 full market cycle by invesling primarily in government, corporate and securitized fixed
income securities and instruments issued in the United States,

The Fund is exposed to market price risk, cash flow and fair value interest mate risk, credit and costody
risk, Hauidity risk and currency risk.

The risks and the respective risk management policies employad by the Fund (o manege Gess risks ane
discussed below,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4, Financial risk management (Continued)
(b)) Market price visk
Market price rigk is the rigk that the veloe of a [inancial instrument will fluctoate as a result of chenges
in market prices, whether those changes are caused by fectors speeific to the ndividual instrument or
factors affecting all instrurrents in the market,

All investmerts present a risk of loss of cupital. The Fund's market peice risk is moanaged through (i}
deliberate sscurities salection, and (i) diversification of the investmen! portiolic.

At the vear end, the overzll mearker exposures were as follows:

0 220
Yo of s of
Fair value Cost net  Fair value Caost net
UsD USD  asscls usD USD  assets
Financial agzets
Financial agsets at fair
value through profit
or Inss 155495080 158,455,711 99,32 109,067,689 107,292,431 9882
Denvative Arancial
masets (note &) 188,828 - .00 4,048 - Doz
— " —— —
Financial liabilites
Derivative financial
liahilities (note &) 289,713 - 000 353 - 000
16
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. Financial risk management (Continued)
{t) Market price risk (Continued)

Met market exposures

The following table shows the net market exposure the Fund has to varlous markets, incorporeting the
underlying market rsk through all financial assets ar fair value through profit or loss {excopi
derivatives) Ield by the Fund as at 31 December 2021 and 2020

021 2020
LUSD equivalent USD equivalent
Market exposure to

Anstralia 633,728 763,585
Bermuda 480,573 3537454
Canada 1,223,822 L084,757
Cayman [slands 1,437,729 100,087
Chile 202,783 217,517
Finlznd 242,247 -
France 271916 BY7,785
Germany 250,638 -
Cireat Britain 1,379,019 1,650,822
India 180,611 -
Ireland 905,293 518018
Tapan 419,276 -
Mexico 296,614 528,717
Metherlands 1,081,159 600,219
Marway 763,178 757,172
Panara 209,250 207,500
Pera 278,140 -
Catar 430,775 498,775
Saudi Arabia 591,098 450,114
Spain 639,138 233,051
United Arab Emimtes 203,000 -
The United Siates of America 142,631,063 100,231,956

155,495,080 109,057 689
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - [}8 CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. Financial risk management (Continued)
() Market price risk (Continued)
Net market eaposures (Continued)

The frllowing zable shows the summary of the secior exposures within financial assets at fair vaiue
twough proft or loss 25 at 31 December 2021 and 2020 e as follows:

021 Mz0
o4 of %5 of
Sectors exposed to net assels et asseéds
Airlines 1.6 125
Automaobile 1.59 1.60
Capitzl Markots 2.1 13.25
Chemicals 230 1.62
Entertainment 1.35 1.77
Finance 13.60 11.11
Food & Boverage 0.31 042
Government 4.34 268
Hestel 0.95 -
Tndustriel 10.26 469
Mizcellaneous 7.53 7.53
Mortgage 8.50 1724
Felail 2.54 in
Technology 2082 8.16
Transpostation 053 .37

099.32 g8.42

18
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4, Financial risk management (Continged)
(b} Market price risk {Contined)
Met market exposures (Continued)

There were no investments issued by the same issuer with marke? value exceeding 10% of the Fund's
net asser value at 31 December 2021 and 2020, As the Fund mainly invests in debt securites, the
sensitivity analysis of market price risk is disclosed in the interest Tt sensitivity enalysis in note 4(z)
below.

{c) Cash flow snd fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the sk that the value of o fnancial instrument will fuchese duc lo changes in
market interes; rates,

Interest rate risk arises from (ke effects of flugteations in the prevailing levels of markets interast rates
on the fair value of interest-bearing assets and linbilities and futare cash Now, The Fuad also holds cash
and cash equivalents and debe sccurities that expose the Fund fo cash flow interest rate sisk,

The tahle below summarizes the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk, It includes the Furd®s assets and
Labilities at fair values, categarized by the ewslier of contracteal re-prising or matury dates.

At 3 December 221
Upie Mon-interest
1 year 1-5vears  Ower 5 years hearing Total
usn UsD UsD usn usn
Assils
Fiancial sssets at fai
value through proflt or
loss 11,652 29,121,040 127,362,388 - 155495080
Derivative financizl
instrumenl - - - 188,826 188,826
iher wsgels . - - 1,361,183 1,361,181
Cush ad cash equivalents 5,281,659 - - - 5,281,659
Tolal nssets 5,293,311 28 121,040 127367388 1,550,007 162,226,746
Liabilities
Derivative financial
inslrusment - - - 289,723 239,723
Other Teabilighes - - - 5,476,822 5476,822
et assets atirihuable o
unithallirs - - = 156.360,2001 156,560,201
Total liabilities . - - IA2326,746 162,326,746
Tatal imercst sensitivity
gup 5,203,311 28,121,040 127362388
16
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. Financial risk magsgement {Continued)
{e) Cash flow and fair value interest mte risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020:
Upto Non-interest
I year 1S years  Owver S years hearing Total
UsD Usn UsD UsDy Usn
Assels
Financial assets at far
value through profit or
loss 41,037 565 27 454,502 40,575,622 - 1M 06T 689
Derivative fnapcial
insiromest - - - 24,649 24,649
Oither asses - - - 5,853,465 5,853,465
Cash and cash equivalenis 1,852,522 - - - 1,852,522
Total assets 42 B80,087 17454502 40,575,622 5878,114 116,708,325
Liabilities
Derivative finansial
insrument - - - 333 333
Other liabilities - - - 6,431,089 6,231,038
et asses atribatable o
upitkolders = = = 110,366,953 110366953
Total labRities - - - 116,798,325 116,798,325
Total interest sensiivity
gap 42 B00,087 27,454 502 40,575,622

As at 31 December 2021, should the relevant interest rates have loweredfrisen by 100 basis points with
all other varizbles remaining constant, the increase/decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders for
the year would wmount to approcimately USDH 1,011,086 (2020: USD& 85T, 1607, ansmg substantially
from the increasedecrease in market values of debt securities. In addition, USDIL244,029 (2020:
USD5T75,068) would arise from the increase on inferest income on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at floating rates. These represent manapement's best estimate of a reasonable
possible shift in the market interest rate,

Asat 31 December 2021 and 2020, the interest rate risk on cash and cash equivalents s considered by
the Manzager to be immaterial. Therefore, no interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is presented for the
vears ended 3 | December 2021 and 2020,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4  Financial risk management {Continued)
(d) Creditand custody risk

The Fund is expesed to eredit risk which is the risk that an issucr or counterparty will be wnable or
uawilling to pay amounts in full whea due.

The main coneenmation of credit risk to which the Fund is expesed arees from the Fund's invesments
in debt sacurities and dervative financial instroments. The Fund is also expossd 1o credit sisk on cash
and cash equivalents and assets held with custodian, The table below summarizes the essets placed with
bars and enstodian st 31 December 2021 and 2020:

At 31 December 2021
Long-term Tssuer Source of
UsD Credit rating eredit rating
Cugrodian
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited 155,495,080 AA- S&P
Derivative C )
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 188,826 A S&T
Bank
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited 5,281,655 M- S&P
At 31 December 2020
Laong-term Tssuer Bource of
Usp Credit rating credit rating
Custodian
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporition Limited 109,067,649 AA- S&P
it
HSBC Buank Houg Kong 24,549 At &P

Bank
The Honghong and Shanghai Banking
Carporation Limited 1,852,522 Ad- S&P

21
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
MOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. Financial risk management (Contnued}
(d} Credit and custody risk (Continued)

The Fund is exposed 1o eredit risk that the issvers of the debt securities may not be able to repay the
principal amount at maturity end interest. This credit risk is mitigated as the debt securitics held by the
Fund are subject to the requirements of (i) maximum holding of 10% of net asset value for any single
issuer, or (i) maximum exposure of 25% o any one industry, and (i) will maintain an average
portfalio eredit guality of B or higher.

Under HEFRS 9, the Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses asing probability of default,
exposure al defeult, aud loss given defaelt. Management consider hoth historical anlysis snd forwand
looking infomaation in determining any expected coedit loss, At 31 December 2021 and 2020, all amounts
due from brokers and cash and shert term deposits are beld with eountespanies with a credit radng of AA-
or higher, Mimagement consider the probability of defeult o be closs to zero s these instruments bave 3
low risk of defhult and the counlerparties have o srong capacity to mest their conmactual obligations in
the mear term. Az 2 result, no loss allowance has besn secopnized based on |Z-month expected credit
losses s any such impairment would be insignificant to the Fand,

The table bebow summarizes the credit mting of the investment portfolio (of the actual tranche) by
credit mating sourced from Suadasd and Poor's (3&F)

Portfolic by rating category
Rating 021 2020
%o of net assels %% of net assets
AMA 8.94 317
AAFAAIANA- 1.22 1.27
AtIASA- 547 480
EEB+/BEI/EBER- 3250 30.82
BRE+EBB 070 1.0%
B 0.1% 0.27
M.E* 50.00 5731
Total 99,32 9882

The maximum expesure to credit risk gt year end is the carmying amount of the financial assets ag
shown on the statement of financial position.

Mone of the assets is impaired nor past due but sot impaired.

*The Manager may purchase unrated securities (which are not rated by o rting ageney) if the Manager
determines that the security is of comparable quality to & rated securily that may be purchased for the
aceoual of the Fund, Unrated securities may be less liquid than comparable rated securities and invelve
the risk that the Marager may not accurately evaluate the seurly's comparative eredit rating. Analysis
of the ereditworthiness of fssuers of unrated securities may be maore complex than for issuers of higher-
quality fxed income secuzities, To the extent that the Manager invests in unrated securities, the Fund's
muceess in achieving its investment objective may depend more heavily on the Manager's
creditworthiness analvsis than if the Manager invested exclusively in Ligher quality rated securities.
The sub-invesiment Manager intends to keap the averape credit quality of the Fund, in principle in the
investment grade reage (BBB- or above), determined by the sub-investment Menager, [n the absgace of
2 eredit reting from SEP, the Manager would also consider credit matings from Moody®s or Fiteh,

22
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4.  Financinl risk management (Continued)
{¢) Offsetting and amounts subject to master neiting arrangements and similar agreemenls

As gt 31 December 2021 and 2020 the Fund was subject 1o master netting armngemests with irs
derivative counterpariies. All of the derivative asscts and liabilities of the Fund are held with
couaterpartias and the margin elence maintained by the Furd is for the purpose of providing collateral
on derivative positions.

The following tables present the Fund's finencial assets and liabilities which are subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements und similor agresments by type of Fnancial insrument,

Financial assets and liabilitics subject to offsenting, enforceabls master nerting srargements end similar
agreaments as at 31 December 2021;

A B C=A-B
Ciross amounts of
recopnized Met amounts of
financial liabilities financial assats
zet-off in the preseuted in the
Cimozs amounis of recoguized gtatement of  stawement of fingszial
financial assets  (nancial position position
Daserigti
Derivative financial assets
- Forward forsign exchangs
contracts 188,826 - 188,826
138,826 - 188,526
e ] ——
Derivative financial liskilizies
- Forward foreign exchanpe
contracts 289713 - 289753
289,733 - 23973
21
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4, Financial risk management (Continped)

(e) Offsetting and wmownts subject to master neiting arrangements and similar agreements
(Continued})

The following tables present by conaterparty of financizl instrument:

Financiz! asscts subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arangements and similar agresments
as at 31 December 2021

C=AB D E=C-D
et amounts of  Related amounts not ser-off in
Enancial assets  the statement of Anancial
presented in the posbon N 4
staternent ol i) Dii) g
Snancial position Finanzial Cazh
st rments collateral
Counterparty
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 188,826 168,826 -
188,826 188,826 - -
—

Financial lisbilities subject to offSetting, enforcesble master nolling amengements and similar
agrecments as ot 31 December 2021

C=A-B D E=CD
Wet amounts of  Felated amouns nol set=0fF in
fnancial liahilitics the stetennent of finansial
presented inthe posilion Net i
staternent of D) D{ii) b
financial position Finangial Cash
insmEmenis collateral
Counterparty
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 289,723 158,826 100,897
289,723 188,325 . 100,897
24
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. Finaucial risk monagement (Continued)

(£) Offsetting end amounts subject to musier neitivg arrengements and similar agreements
(Continued)

Financial assets and labilifies subject to offelling, enforceable master netring amangements and
similar agreements a5 at 31 December 2020:

A B C=A-B
Gross amoumis of
recognized Net amounts of
finangial labilities Enancial asssts
set-off in the presented in the
Gross amounts of recognized statement of  statement of financial
fnancial assets  finameizl position position
Deseription
Derivative financial assets
- Forward forcign enchange
conirasts 24,648 . 24,649
24,649 - 24 640
Derivative financial liabilities
= Forward foreign exchangs
coOniracs 333 - 333
a3 - 333
EEErp— ===
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4, Financial risk management (Continued)

{¢) Offsetting and amounts subject m master netting arrangements and similar agreements

(Continued)

The following tables present by counterparty of financial insoument:

Finzncial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable masier netting arungements ané similar agreements

a5 2t 31 December 2004

C=AB D E=CD
Met ammounts of  Balatad amounts not sef-off in
financial assets the stelement of Hoancial
presented in the pesiticn .
stasement of D) TG, et
finarcial position [inancial Cash
instrunents collateral
Counterparty
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 24,649 333 - 4316
24,649 333 - 24316

Financtal liabilities subieci to offsetting, enforcenble musler neting arangements and similar

agreements a5 at 31 Decamber 2002(0x

C=AR D E=CD
Mol emounts of  Belated amounts ot ser-off in
financial tabilities the statcment of lomciel
resented inthe  position

N aMhalial D) O, et amout

financial position I'imancial Cash

Lstrments collateral

Counterparty

HSBC Bank Hong Kong i3 333 -
333 333 - -
= 8

The Fund and its counterparies have elected to settle all ranssclions on a gross basis, However, cach
party has the cption to sefils all open contracts on & net baxis i the event of defhult of the other party.
As per the terms of the master neming agresment, an event of defaull includes the fallewing:

o failure by @ pany 10 make payiment when due;

o failare by a party to perform any obligetion required by the sgreement; or

*  bankrupicy.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US COHE FINED INCOME FUNTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. Financial risk management (Continued)

(f) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will eneounter difficulty in settling o lisbility, izcluding &
redemphion requesd,

In respect of structured securitics, they may also be more volatile, less liquid and more difficult to
sccuratzly price than less complex sceurities. The tdmitg of purchase and sale transactions in debt
obligations may result in capital appreciation or depreciation because the value of debt obligations
generally vanes inversely with prevailing inlerest rates.

The table below anelyres the Fund®s financial linbilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the year end dale to (e contrectel puteity date. The amounts in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash Jows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as
the impact of discounting 1= not sgniGeant

Leess tham Owver 3
3 months months Total
TS UsD Ush
At 31 December 2021
Derivalive financial Babilites /RT3 - 280,723
Amounts pavablz on redemption 516451 - 316,451
Ampunts pavable an purchase of
investmants 4,805,973 - 4,805,973
Othes payables 154,345 - 154,308
Mei azsets attributable to untholders 156,560,201 - 156,560,201
Total fingneial liabilities 162,326,746 - 162,326,746
Liess than Over 3
3 months months Total
UsD UsD UsD
At 31 Decembear 2020
Derivative financial liabilitees 333 - 53
Amounts payable on purchase of
investmenis 6,330,968 - 6,350,968
Qther payables 160,071 - 100,071
Met assets pttributable to unitholders 110,366,953 - 110,366,953
Total financial lishilities 106,798,325 - 114,798 325
E—

All degivitive fingncial instmuments entered into by the Fund are settled on a nel basiz,

27
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2021

4,  Financial risk management (Continued)
() Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Fund mamages its liquidity risk by investing predomivantly in debt securitics that it expects to be
able to hguidate within 3 months or less. The following wble illastrares the expected liquidity of assets

held by the Fund:
Liss than Over 3 Total
3 months manths
LUED UsD Usn
At 31 December 2011
Financial assets al fair value through
profit or loss 155,495,080 - 155495080
Derivative financial assels 188,816 . 138,826
Interest rfecevable on ntereat-bearing
securitics 762,247 . 762,247
Amounts recciveble on subscription 598,085 - 598,585
Other receivables 249 . 249
Cash and cash equivalenta 5,281,659 - 5,281,659
Taral assets 162,326,746 - 162,326,746
T T ——— —_—
Less than Over 3 Total
3 months months
usp UsD usD
At 31 December 2020
Financisl assets ol fuir value through
profitor los 102,067 689 = 109,067,689
Derivative finencial assets 24,649 - 24,640
Interest receivable on intérest-beazing
serurities 376,911 180,762 S57.673
Imterest reccivable on deposits - - -
Amounis roccivahle on sehacription 3,630,179 3,630,179
Amount receivable oo sale of
imvestments 1,665,613 - 1,665,613
Cash and cosh equivalants 1,852,522 . 1,852,522
Total asmels 116,617,563 130,762 116,798,325
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 11 DECEMBER 2021

4, Financial risk management (Continued)
() Currency risk

Currency risk is the nisk that the value of Gnanciel insinenents: denomineted in other currencies will
fluctuate due to changes in forcign cxchange rtes.

The Fund has monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies ather than United States dollar,
the Fund's furctional and presentation cumency. The Fund is therelore cxposed to currency risk, as the
value of the assets and liahilides denominated in other currencies will Ouctuate due to changes in
exchange rates, The Manager will enter into forward foreign exchanpe contracts from time o time 1o
hedge apzinst the fluctuation in exchange rates. The Manager will enter imlo forward forcign exchange
comtracts from tme to time to hedge against the Nuctuation in cxchange rates, Managemen| eslimates
{he sensitivity of the cumency options to changes in (oreign exchange rales to oot be msterel, it hos
therefore not been included in the below analysis,

The table below summarizes the Fund's net exposure to different major curencies:

wz 020

UsD UsD

aquivalents equivalents

Australisn dollar 8,373,175 -
Japanese Yen 19,516,183 24,820,662

Ciross enposwrey (o currency risk on forweard [oreign exchange contracts cutsiending et the year end are
disclosed m nete 6,

The table below summorizes the impeet on net asscls atrbutable o unilholders ss & resull of
increasew’decreases of foreipn exchange rates on the cxposurces fahled abowve, o which the Fund is
exposed. The amalysis is based om the sssumption that the forcign exchange rales had
incrensed/decreased by (he respective percentage with all other variables beld censtant, This represents
manzgement’s best estimate of & reasonable possiple shift in the foreign exchange mbe.

2021 2020

Change in Change in

foreign forclgn
exchange Lmpact exchange Impact
rates Ush Tates usD
+f- +/- +i- +/-
Anstralizn dollar 59 418,659 ; ;
Tapanese Yen 5% Q95,800 % 1,241,033

i
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4. Financial risk managenent (Comtinued)
(h) Fair value estimation

The fir valuc of financial asseis and licbilities traded ia active markets (such a3 frading securities) are
based on quoted market prices at the ¢lose of treding on the year end date. The Fund used the last
traded market price as its fair valution beputs for both Snancial assets and financial Labilites.

An active market {s a market in which transsctions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
Frequency and volume o provide pricing infomation on 2n engoeing basis.

A financial instrumem is regarded as queted in an active market if queted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly cccuwrring market transactions on an 2mm'’s
length hasiz,

The carmying walue less impairent provision of other receivables and payables are azsumed o
approximaie their fir values. The fir value of fnancizl Labilites for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contraciual cash flows at the current marke: izterest tate rhat is available o
the Fund for similar Mneancial mstrenents,

The fiir value hisrarchy has the following levels:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asseis or liabilitics that the entity cen
access al the measuremen? date {Level 1)

+ Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 thal are oheervable for the esset or Habilicy,
eiller directly or indirectly (Level 2).

#  Tapuns for the zsset or lishilily that are unobservable inputs (Level 3L

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which e fair velue measurement is categorized in its
entirety is determined on the basis of (ke lewest level input that is significant to the fir value
measurement in its entivety. For this pumpose, the significones of an inpul is 2ssessed against the fair
valve measurement in its entirety. 17 a fair valee measuranent uses cbservable mputs that requine
significant adjustment based on unohservable inpurs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement.
Assessing the gignificance of a paricular input w the fair value measurement in itz entirely requires
judgement, considering factoms spoilic to the asset or lability.

The determination of what constitules “chacrvable™ requires significant judgement by the Fund, The
Fund congiders observable data to be that markel dets that s readily available, regularly distributed or
upéated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary, end provided by independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market.

The following table znalyses within the fair value hierarchy the Fund's investments (by class)
measured at fair value at 31 December 2021 and 2020, All fair value measurements disclosed ane
recurring fair value measprementa
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2021

4. Financial risk management (Contlnued)
(h} Fair valee estimation (Continued)

At 31 December 2021

Level 1 Tevel 2 Level 3 Total

Aszels UsD UsD UsD UsD
Financial assets at far valus

through profit or loss
= Deht securities - 155,405 080 - 155,405 080
Derivative financial assets - 158,826 - 188 826
Total asseis = 155,683,906 - 155,653 506
Liahilities
Derivative financial liabilitics - 2R0.723 - 259,723
Total liabilities - 289,723 - 289,75
At 31 December 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assels UsD UsD UsD UsD
Financiel assets al fair value

through profit or loss
- Diehit securities - 109,067,659 - 100,0R7, 650
Derivetive fnuncisl asectx = 24 649 - 24,649
Tolul assets - 109,002,338 - 169,002,338
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilitics - 333 - 333
Tuotal liabilities = 333 = 333

Invesmients, whose valves are based on quored market prices in acrive markets are clazsified within
level 1, inchude listed darivatives, The Fuad does sot adjest the quoted price for thess instruniants,

Fingneizl ingruments thet trade in markets that are not considered w be active but are valued bazed on
guoted market prices, dealer quotatons or altermative pricing sources supported by observable inpuis
are classified within level 2. These inchude guoted debt securifies and forward foreign exchange
comfracts. As level 2 investment: include positions that are nat traded in active markets andlor are
subject to fransfer resmictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity andfor non-
transferability, which are penerally based on available marke! information. As at 31 December 2021
and 2020, the Fund held investmenis in gooted debt szcunties and forward foreipn exchanpe contracts
which were classified in level 2.

Invesmients classified within level 3 have sipnificant uncbservable inputs, as they trade infrequently.
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Fynd did not hold any investments classified in level 3, Asat 31
December 2021 and 2020 shere are oo ransfers bevween levels in the fair waloe hierarchy.

The assets ond lishilites of the Fund in the statement of financial pesition at the reponting date,
excludmy financiel aszets and lakibines at far valoe through profit or loss, are carmied at the amertized
cost; their cammying values are a reasonable approxineation of fair value.

il
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2021

5. MNet (lossesppains on financial assels st fair value through profit or loss and derlvatve financial
instruments

2021 2020
UsD UsD
Met realized (losses)/gaing on financial asscls at fair value through
protit or loss and denvative financial insroments (5,648,09%) 1,055,958
Net change m unrealized (losses)gaing on Snancial assets at fair
wvalue through profit or less and desivative finzncial insmements (3,873,318 774,736
(9,561,417 2,830,745
T e— —_—
6. Derivative financial instrunients
2021 020
UsD LUsD
Derivative financial assets
- Forward foreign exchange contmets 188,826 24,649
Total derivative financizl aseets 188,826 24,049
Derivative financiel liabilities
- Forwand foreign exchange contracts 289,723 333
Total derivative financial liabilities 289,723 333

The details of forwsrd Foreign exchenge eontracis culstanding as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
summanzed below:

At 31 Decembser 2021
Contract to delives Iu exchanee fir Settlement dare Eair value
UsD

Open comtracls:
USDE 463,320 AUDLLE96,460 31 Janvary 2022 138,447
USDAT. 189 AUDL2)AQE 31 Jarmary 2022 379
188,826
LSDN 9,793,657 JPY2,243,931,139 31 Jampary 2022 (286,616)
LUsDa0e 531 TPY4T,061,000 31 Jarary 2022 {21%)
AUTIS02,406 1SD363,272 31 Jamuary 2022 (1.688)
{189.723)
32
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FTXED INCOME FUND
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2021

6. Derlvative financial instraments (continued)

At 31 December 2020
Contract to deliver In exchange for Settlement dafe Esirvalue
usD
Open contracis:
USD22,960,368 JPY¥2,372,647,291 29 Jamary 2021 22335
USD927,661 TEY 96,005,000 29 Jammary 2021 2314
24,649
USDET. 798 TPY93,651,000 29 Ianuary 2021 (333}
(333)

7. Taxation
(a) The Cayman Islands

The Manager has received an undertaking from the Governos in Cabinet of the Cayman Tslands tet, in
accerdance with Section 81 of the Trusts Act (2011 Revision) of the Cavman Tslands, for a period of 50
vears fom the dare of the creation of the Trusy, no Jaws of the Cayman Islands thereafier enacted
imposing any tax or duty 1o be levied oa income or on capital assets, gains or appreciation or any tax in
the nature of estate dury or inheritance tax will zpply o any propesty comprised in or income &Hising
under the Trust or to the Trustee or usitholders in respect of acy sush property or income. No stamp
duty is levied in the Cayman Telands on the tansfer or redemplion of units.

Although the Trust is not subject 1o lax in the Cayman [slands, the Trust may be Hable for taxes which
may e withheld at source in other cowlries in respect of income or gaing derived from its investmenls,
Ingorme that is subject to such tax is recognized gross of the taxes and the comesponding withholding is
recognized as ax sxpense,

{b) Hong Kong

The Fund would only be exposed to Hong Kong profits tax if it is not exempted under section 2AC,
20ACA, 204N and 20A0 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

1i the Fund is not exempted ender the Intand Revenve Ordinance azd is regarded as carmying on a trade
ar business in Hong Kong, & Rability to profits e, caently at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%), would
arise in respect of any profits which arisz in or are desived from Hong Koag and which are of revenus
in nature wnder the Inland Revenoe Ordinance,

Mo provisien for Hong Kong profits fax has beon made as the directors believes that ng such mx
expostre existed at the year end.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENLS TRUST - US CORE FTXED INCOME FUND
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBLR 2021

Transactions with Related Parties

The following is a summary of significant related party tensactionsf/transactions entered into during (he
vear batween the Fund and the Trustee, (e Manager and their related parties. Related parties are thoss as
defined in HKAS 24 “Related party disclosires”. All transactions entersd into during the year between the
Fund and the related parties were carmied oul in the nomal course of business and on nomel commerciel
ferms.

(a) Imvestment management fee

The Manager is entitled to receive o management fee (as a %6 per anmm. of the net asset value),
currently at the rate of up to 0.6% per annum of net asset value for all class of units, accrued daily and
pavable monthly in arrears,

For the year ended 31 Devember 2021 and 2020, the Manager was entifled to mamgement fee of
USDA21,535 (2020: VSD112,600). As st 31 December 2021, a management fec of U7SDE3,337 (2020:
USD20,676) was payable lo the Maunger.

{b) Trustee, custody and administration focs
The Trustes iz entitled (o receive o trustes, custody and administearion fees which ane accrued at each
valuation day and payable moaikly in amears and calonlated up to 0.1% per annum of 1he net asset
value of the Fund,

Trustes, cusiody and administration fees ace inclusive of fees payable plus ouwl-ofpockel expenses
(including any schezustedy charges) and ransaction costs.

T'or the vear ended 31 December 2021, the Trustes was entitled to oustea fea of USDHZ,000 (2620,
USDI2,0000. As at 31 Decsraber 2021, a trustee foc of USD99S (2020: USDO%E) was payable to the
Trustee,

For the year ended 31 December, the Trostee was entitled fo fees as follows

20 2020

Fee entitlement Fee entidement

175D UsSD

Sufe custedy and processing fes £4 450 24,194
Trustes fees 12,000 12,060
Valnation fee 87,200 35400
Transaction handling fee 14,676 11,428
Accounting and cther profssional fees 3,500 3,500
Crlier operating expenses 23,118 12,637
Total 224974 119,159

_—

As at 31 December 2021, a trustes, custody and administration fees of USDI9,652 (2020 TSD16,873)
was payable to the Trustes.

34
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FLIND
NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2021

8. Trauosactions with Related Pardes (continned)
(c) Local linison agent fees

The Manager has appointed Manulife Tnvestment Mansgement (Jupan) Limited ("MIMI”), a related
party of the manager, a3 the local laieon agent in Japan., MDMJ is entited o receive a local Haison
agent fee (as 2 % per annum. of the net asset valuch currently at the rate of up to 1.33% per anmum of
(he net asset value of Class A-Div (USDY) units, acorued daily ard payable moothly in arrears,

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Manulife Tmvestrment Management (Japan) Limited was extitled
to local Haison agent fee of USD315441 (2020; USD23,776). As at 31 December 2021, USD2E 176
{2020: USD12,679) was payable for local laizon agent fee.

9. Disiributions

Distributions to Class A — Div (JPY Hedged), Class A — Div (JPY Unhedged), Class A ~ Div (USD) and
Class A — Div (AUD Hedged) unitholders wall first be paid oul of the income {which ey include capital
goins) whick are recegnized in the statement of comprehensive income, thereafier out of the capital of the
Fund attributable to the relevant elzss of wnits of the Fund.

The distributions to Class A — Div (IPY Hedped) and Class A - Div (JPY Unhedged) unithelders were
declared monthly and will be automatically reinvested in sdditione] units of the same class and were issued
ut a subscription price on the reinvestment date. The distributions to Class A - Div (USD) and Class
A — Div (AUD Hedged) unithalders were declared semi-annuelly aod were paid in cash to the unitholders.

For the vear ended 31 December 2021, the latest distribution rate wes JPY3 (2020 1P7Y3) pes unir and JPY3
(2020; JPY4) per unit, USDO.50 per unit and AUTMLS0 per unit for Class A — Div (JPY Hedged), Class
A — Div (JFY Unhedged), Class A — Div (USD) and Class A - Div (AUD Hedged), respectively. No
distributions were declared for Class A — Div (USD} end - Class A — Div {AUD Hedged) for the year ended
31 Decembar 20020,

2021 2020
UsD UsD

Dhstribution for the vear ended 31 December
- Class A — Div (JPY Hedged) §34,589 787,231
= Clasg A~ Div (JPY Unhedged) G0, 121 736,389
= Clase A —Thv (USD 1,187, 192 -
- Class A — Div {AUD Hedged) 31,558 .
Total distribution 2653460 1,523,620
T ———

10. Approval of financial statements

The finnnzial stetenients wers approved by the Trustee and the Manager on 27 April 2022

33
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2021 12
US TREASURY N/B 2.5% 15/02/2045 6,137,000 109.847846 6,741,362 4.31
FANNIE MAE OR FREDDIE MAC FRN 01/01/2050 4,712,000 101.85038 4,799,614 3.07
US TREASURY 2% 15/08/2051 4,096,200 101.831017 4,171,202 2.66
FREDDIE MAC POOL FRN 01/10/2050 3,900,000 86.681876 3,380,593 2.16
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/12/2050 3,100,000 88.555133 2,745,200 1.75
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/04/2051 2,789,000 96.739334 2,698,060 1.72
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/11/2050 2,785,000 90.755514 2,527,541 1.61
US TREASURY N/B 1.25% 30/11/2026 2,240,000 99.986541 2,239,699 1.43
US TREASURY 2% 15/11/2041 1,773,000 100.816783 1,787,482 1.14
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/03/2051 1,601,000 90.758123 1,453,038 0.93
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/10/2050 1,345,000 88.966357 1,196,598 0.76
US TREASURY N/B 1.875% 15/11/2051 1,075,000 99.096313 1,065,285 0.68
US TREASURY N/B 1.375% 15/11/2031 1,015,000  98.7994 1,002,814 0.64
US TREASURY N/B 0.25% 30/09/2023 952,000 99.309766 945,429 0.60
US TREASURY .54 30/11/2023 936,000 99.63915 932,622 0.60
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/12/2050 925,000 91.901739 850,001 0.54
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/12/2049 1,350,000 61.773285 833,939 0.53
FORD CREDIT AUTO OINER TRUST 2016-REVL SER 1 CLA 776 00 105 01775 g1a a8 0.5
BROADCOM INC (REG) 4.75% 15/04/2029 668,000 113.99245 761,470 0.49
ABBVIE INC (REG) 3.2% 21/11/2029 714,000 106.87305 763,074 0.49
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/04/2050 1,000,000 71.214312 712,143 0.45
AT&T INC 3.1% 01/02/2043 718,000  96.8814 695,608 0.44
FREDDIE MAC GOLD POOL FRN 01/04/2045 2,580,000 27.077574 698,601 0.45
DLLAA 2021-1 LLC SER 1A CL A3 FRN 17/04/2026 691,000 98.91022 683,470 0.44
US TREASURY N/B 0.375% 15/08/2024 680,000 98.703509 671,184 0.43
FREDDIE MAC POOL FRN 01/02/2050 1,000,000  61.1251 611,251 0.39
e ynaps oM COR (SER J) (REC) .85% 563,000  99.2207 558,613 0.36
NISOURCE INC 1.7% 15/02/2031 550,000  93.4714 522,505 0.33
US TREASURY .25% 15/06/2024 530,000 98.546226 522,295 0.33
PRUDENTIAL FINANCIAL INC (REG) VAR 01/10/2050 508,000 101.4338 515,284 0.33
MICRON TECHNOLOGY INC (REG) 4.185% 15/02/2027 461,000  109.75 505,948 0.32
VELLS FARGO & COIPANY SER U (REG) VAR PERP 456,000 1095 499,320 0.3
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC VAR 22/04/2032 489,000 100.7381 492,609 0.31
COMCAST CORP (REG) 4.15% 15/10/2028 427,000 113.4214 484,309 0.31
MORGAN STANLEY VAR 28/04/2026 471,000 101.9257 480,070 0.31
FORD CREDIT FLOORPLAN WASTER OWNER TRUST A SER 2461 000 10425608 480,622 031
MICRON TECHNOLOGY INC (REG) 5.327% 06/02/2029 393,000  118.375 465,214 0.30
COLOVIAL ENTERPRISES INC (SER 144) (RE) 3.25% 145.000  105.615 469,987 0.30
GUF FLOORPLAN OWER REVOLVING TRUST SER 2 CLA PN 100 000 103, 70381 456,295 0.20
CITIGROUP INC (REG) 4.6% 09/03/2026 393,000 110.40385 433,887 0.28
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CHARTER COMM OPT LLC/CAP (REG) 5.75% 01/04/2048 342,000 125.14 427,979 0.27
LLOYDS BANKING GROUP PLC 4.45% (REG) 08/05/2025 394,000 108.8366 428,816 0.27
TRICON AMERICAN HOMES 2020-SFR1 SER SFR1 CL A FRN

17/07/2038 435,000 97.879218 425,775 0.27
ENERGY TRANSFER OPERATNG (REG) 5.25 % 15/04/2029 364,000  114.7397 417,653 0.27

TOYOTA AUTO LOAN EXTENDED NOTE TRUS T 2019-1 SER

A e 407,000 103.40268 420,849 0.27
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/09/2050 459,000 91.014806 417,758 0.27
TELEFONICA EMISIONES SAU (REG) 5.213% 08/03/2047 333,000  123.875 412,504 0.26
US TREASURY .625% 15/10/2024 420,000 99.220167 416,725 0.27
ig&ggﬂzgggD'T CARD TRUST SER 4A CL A FRN 400,000 104.02457 416,098 0.27
EgsolgsggjgoégTo ONNER TRUST 2018-REV2 SER 2 CL A o0 o0 100 e 415 go 027
BANK OF AMERICA CORP VAR 22/04/2032 400,000 101.82105 407,284 0.26
VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS (REG) 4.329% 21/09/2028 356,000 113.76905 405,018 0.26
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC (REG) 3.85% 26/01/2027 374,000 107.43265 401,798 0.26
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/09/2050 450,000 90.493219 407,219 0.26
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/11/2050 500,000 81.380696 406,903 0.26

FORD CREDIT AUTO OWNER TRUST 2020-REV1 SER 1 CL A

FRN 15/08/2031 400,000 101.73119 406,925 0.26
BANK OF AMERICA CORP (REG) VAR 23/07/2029 356,000 111.37955 396,511 0.25
GENERAL MOTORS FINL CO (REG) 3.6% 21/06/2030 376,000  106.5418 400,597 0.26
WELLS FARGO & CO SER MTN (REG) 3.55% 29/09/2025 372,000 106.77195 397,192 0.25
WELLS FARGO & COMPANY (SER MTN) VAR 02/06/2028 393,000 101.68725 399,631 0.26
US TREASURY .375% 31/10/2023 400,000  99.45102 397,804 0.25
MMAF EQUIPMENT FINANCE LLC 2021-A SER A CL A3 FRN

13/06/5028 400,000 98.590144 394,361 0.25
UNITED AIR 2020-1 A PTT (SER 20-1) 5.875%

1571072027 394,000 98.91135 389,711 0.25
PORT AUTH OF NEW YORK & NEW JE 1.086% 01/07/2023 381,000  100.824 384,139 0.25
WILLIAMS COMPANIES INC (REG) 4.55% 24/06/2024 360,000  107.1555 385,760 0.25
AKER BP ASA (SER 144A) (REG) 4% 15/01/2031 350,000  108.1257 378,440 0.24
BANK OF AMERICA CORP (SER DD) (REG) VAR PERP

31/12/2049 335,000  112.875 378,131 0.24
EXPEDIA INC SER WI (REG) 3.8% 15/02/2028 W/I 353,000  107.1514 378,244 0.24
CLI FUNDING VI LLC SER 1A CL A FRN 18/09/2045 442,000 86.091882 380,526 0.24
GXO LOGISTICS INC (SER 144A) (REG) 2.65%

15/07/2031 380,000  98.7207 375,139 0.24
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS OPERATING LLC/CAP (REG) 274,000 136.50425 374,268 0.24

6.484% 23/10/2045
ORACLE CORP (REG) 2.95% 01/04/2030 370,000 100.9292 373,438 0.24
SMB PRIVATE EDUCATION LOAN TRUST 20 19-B SER B CL

A2A FRN 15/06/2037 475,000 78.939694 374,964 0.24
HOST HOTELS & RESORTS LP (REG) 3.875% 01/04/2024 356,000 104.29785 371,300 0.24
FREDDIE MAC POOL FRN 01/09/2050 445,000 83.598069 372,011 0.24
CHARTER COMM OPT LLC/CAP 4.8% 01/03/2050 329,000 111.60625 367,185 0.23
iéBBZ/gg;gRNATIONAL BOND (SER 144A) (REG) 4.375% 314,000 115.2632 361,926 0.23
SANTANDER HOLDINGS USA (REG) 3.244% 05/10/2026 344,000 104.4875 359,437 0.23
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GENERAL MOTORS FINL CO (REG) 2.4% 15/10/2028 360,000 99.72205 358,999 0.23
DOLLAR TREE INC (REG) 4.2% 15/05/2028 320,000 111.7791 357,693 0.23
ZIONS BANCORP NA (REG) 3.25% 29/10/2029 343,000 103.65195 355,526 0.23
CF HIPPOLYTA LLC SER 1 CL A1 FRN 15/07/2060 391,000 91.328951 357,096 0.23
BA CREDIT CARD TRUST SER Al CL A FRN 15/09/2026 362,000 98.59963 356,931 0.23
BXHPP TRUST FRN 15/08/2036 358,000 98.8775 353,981 0.23
PROGRESS RESIDENTIAL TRUST SER SFR2 CL A FRN

19/04/2038 357,000 98.067 350,099 0.22
T-MOBILE USA INC (SER 144A) (REG) 3.4% 15/10/2052 344,000 99.9671 343,887 0.22
BROADCOM INC (REG) 5% 15/04/2030 294,000 116.44035 342,335 0.22
PRUDENTIAL FINANCIAL INC (REG) VAR 15/09/2042 330,000 102.31755 337,648 0.22
SMB PRIVATE EDUCATION LOAN TRUST 20 16-A SER A CL

A2A FRN 15/05/2031 1,000,000 34.216673 342,167 0.22
WORLD OMNI AUTO RECEIVABLES TRUST 2021-B SER B CL

A4 FRN 15/06/2027 343,000 98.33771 337,298 0.22
TRICON AMERICAN HOMES 2020-SFR2 TRUST SER SFR2 CL

A FRN 17/11/2039 350,000 95.106554 332,873 0.21
DB MASTER FINANCE LLC FRN 20/11/2051 338,000 97.843482 330,711 0.21
SANTANDER HOLDINGS USA (REG) 3.45% 02/06/2025 316,000 104.7253 330,932 0.21
NAVIENT PRIVATE EDUCATION REFI LOAN TRUST 2020-H

SER HA CL A FRN 585,000 55.724408 325,988 0.21
NXP BV/NXP FDG/NXP USA (SER 144A) (REG) 3.875%

18/06/2026 300,000 107.9788 323,936 0.21
DELL INT LLC / EMC CORP (REG) 4.9% 01/10/2026 285,000 112.28225 320,004 0.20
AMERICAN TOWER CORP (REG) 3.55% 15/07/2027 297,000  107.0027 317,798 0.20
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO (REG) 2.95% 01/10/2026 303,000 105.68785 320,234 0.20
CVS HEALTH CORP (REG) 5.05% 25/03/2048 243,000  131.1263 318,637 0.20
CITIGROUP INC (REG) 3.2% 21/10/2026 299,000 105.90995 316,671 0.20
MARYLAND HLTH & HGR EDUCTNL 3.197% 01/07/2050 300,000 104.534 313,602 0.20
EQUINIX INC 2.5% 15/05/2031 316,000  99.92655 315,768 0.20
SABINE PASS LIQUEFACTION (REG) 4.5% 15/05/2030 279,000 112.8125 314,747 0.20
UNIV OF CALIFORNIA CA REVENUES 1.316% 15/05/2027 320,000 98.475 315,120 0.20
ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS OPER (SER E) VAR 16/08/2077 304,000 101.75 309,320 0.20
AKER BP ASA (SER 144A) 2.875% 15/01/2026 300,000 103.6744 311,023 0.20
ATHENE HOLDING LTD 3.5% 15/01/2031 293,000 105.7102 309,731 0.20
WELLS FARGO & COMPANY (SER MTN) (RE G) VAR

30/10/2030 299,000 104.28535 311,813 0.20
WINGSTOP FUNDING LLC FRN 05/12/2050 316,000 98.849747 312,365 0.20
AERCAP IRELAND CAP/GLOBA (REG) 2.87 5% 14/08/2024 300,000 102.9369 308,811 0.20
BENEFIT STREET PARTNERS CLO XX LTD SER 20A CL AR

FRN 15/07/2034 310,000  100.0496 310,154 0.20
SANTANDER REVOLVING AUTO LOAN TRUST 2019-A SER A

CL A FRN 26/01/2032 300,000 103.35747 310,072 0.20
OAKTREE SPECIALTY LEND (REG) 2.7% 1 5/01/2027 307,000  99.00615 303,949 0.19
MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL (SER AA) (RE G) 4.65%

01/12/2028 274,000 112.26685 307,611 0.20
TIF FUNDING 11 LLC SER 1A CL A FRN 20/08/2045 344,000 89.247481 307,011 0.20
T-MOBILE USA INC (REG) 3.875% 15/04/2030 278,000 109.6479 304,821 0.19
DATABANK ISSUER SER 1A CL A2 FRN 27/02/2051 312,000 98.31344 306,738 0.20
FREDDIE MAC POOL FRN 01/10/2049 634,923 48.071291 305,216 0.19
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BOEING CO 5.04% 01/05/2027 269,000 112.66865 303,079 0.19
VISTRA CORP (SER 144A) (REG) 3.7% 30/01/2027 289,000  103.875 300,199 0.19
ALABAMA FEDERAL AID HIGHWAY FI 1.547% 01/09/2027 300,000  100.433 301,299 0.19
ﬁv;gNBUDGET RENTAL CAR FUNDING AESOP LLC SER 3A CL  ,o\ (o0 10 yagqg 300,586 0.19
DELL INT LLC / EMC CORP (SER 144A) 3.45%

1E/12/2051 311,000  96.51055 300,148 0.19
BANK OF AMERICA CORP SER L (REG) 3.95% 21/04/2025 279,000  106.9604 298,420 0.19
TESLA AUTO LEASE TRUST 2020-A SER A CL A3 FRN

20712/2023 300,000 99.89133 299,674 0.19
PFS FINANCING CORP SER E CL A FRN 15/10/2025 300,000 99.77778 299,333 0.19
HOST HOTELS & RESORTS LP (SER E) 4% 15/06/2025 279,000 106.1781 296,237 0.19
BROADCOM INC (SER 144A) (REG) 3.419% 15/04/2033 281,000  104.7364 294,309 0.19
ALASKA AIR 2020-1 CL B (SER 144A) (REG) 8%

15/08/9025 321,000 89.314316 286,699 0.18
TACO BELL FUNDING LLC SER 1A CL A2l FRN 25/08/2051 302,000 97.064068 293,133 0.19
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO SER (S) (REG) VAR 29/12/2049 262,000  107.875 282,633 0.18
SERVICEMASTER FUNDING LLC SER 1 CL A211 FRN

3070172051 288,000 100.135764 288,391 0.18
NEIGHBORLY ISSUER LLC SER 1A CL A2 FRN 30/04/2051 288,000 99.939708 287,826 0.18
EéNCOMMERCIAL MORTGAGE TRUST 2021-CIP SER CIP CL A g0 100 100 og1 280,234 0.18
MORGAN STANLEY VAR 16/09/2036 296,000  96.47455 285,565 0.18
DELL INT LLC / EMC CORP (REG) 5.3% 01/10/2029 241,000 117.97425 284,318 0.18
BANK OF AMERICA CORP (SER MTN) (REG ) 3.248%

5171072097 267,000 106.67605 284,825 0.18

FORD CREDIT FLOORPLAN MASTER OWNER TRUST A SER 2

CL A FRN 15/09/2027 290,000  98.43911 285,473 0.18
FIRSTKEY HOMES 2020-SFR2 TRUST SER SFR2 CL A FRN

19/10/2037 288,000 97.2755 280,153 0.18
ABENGOA TRANSMISION SUR SER 144A 6.875% 30/04/2043 222,000 124.92975 277,344 0.18
SLG OFFICE TRUST 2021-OVA SER OVA CL C FRN

15/07/2041 276,000  101.0965 279,026 0.18
PROGRESS RESIDENTIAL TRUST SER SFR5 CL A FRN

16/07/2026 285,000 97.947 279,149 0.18
MVW OWNER TRUST 2018-1 SER 1A CL A FRN 21/01/2036 988,000 28.249174 279,102 0.18
VMWARE INC (REG) 4.7% 15/05/2030 239,000 116.2664 277,877 0.18
UNIV OF CALIFORNIA CA RGTS MED 3.006% 15/05/2050 270,000 102.868 277,744 0.18
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/04/2047 470,000 58.979348 277,203 0.18
FRESENIUS MED CARE 111 (SER 144A) (REG) 2.375%

16/02/2031 286,000 96.25 275,275 0.18
CROWN CASTLE INTL CORP (REG) 3.65% 01/09/2027 255,000 107.6183 274,427 0.18
MADISON PARK FUNDING XXII1 LTD SER 23A CL AR FRN

27/07/2031 276,000 100.0106 276,029 0.18
CITIZENS FINANCIAL GROUP (REG) 3.25% 30/04/2030 260,000 105.8291 275,156 0.18
STATE OF QATAR SER REGS (REG) 5.103% 23/04/2048 200,000 135.862 271,724 0.17
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV WOR (REG) 4.6% 15/04/2048 221,000 122.39745 270,498 0.17
METLIFE INC (REG) 6.4% 15/12/2036 219,000 124.05995 271,691 0.17
PAYPAL HOLDINGS INC (REG) 2.85% 01/10/2029 255,000 105.30975 268,540 0.17
GS MORTGAGE SECURITIES CORP TRUST 2021-STAR SER 269,000 100.122322 269,329 0.17

STAR CL A FRN
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FLORIDA ST BRD OF ADMIN FIN CO 1.705% 01/07/2027 267,000 100.026 267,069 0.17
CHARTER COMM OPT LLC/CAP (REG) 4.2% 15/03/2028 242,000 109.57023 265,160 0.17
JEFFERIES GRP LLC / CAP (REG) 4.85% 15/01/2027 231,000 113.4121 261,982 0.17
FRESENIUS MED CARE 11l (SER 144A) ( REG) 3.75%

15/06/2029 250,000 106.5 266,250 0.17
HOME PARTNERS OF AMERICA TRUST FRN 19/09/2029 286,000 93.020631 266,039 0.17
ALIGNED DATA CENTERS ISSUER LLC SER 1A CL A2 FRN

15/08/2046 270,000 98.555274 266,099 0.17
CREDIT AGRICOLE SA (SER 144A) (REG) 3.25%

14/01/2030 250,000 103.65145 259,129 0.17
BANK OF AMERICA CORP (SER MTN) (REG ) VAR

14/06/2029 264,000 98.97415 261,292 0.17
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO VAR 13/05/2031 251,000 103.676 260,227 0.17
AERCAP IRELAND CAP/GLOBA (REG) 2.45% 29/10/2026 258,000 100.69375 259,790 0.17
T-MOBILE USA INC (REG) 2.05% 15/02/2028 260,000 99.4418 258,549 0.17
BOOKING HOLDINGS INC 4.625% 13/04/2030 221,000 116.76505 258,051 0.16

NEW ECONOMY ASSETS PHASE 1 SPONSOR LLC SER 1 CL Al

FRN 20/10/2061 264,000 98.19575 259,237 0.17
FIRSTKEY HOMES 2020-SFR1 TRUST SER SFR1 CL A FRN

17/09/2025 264,000 97.88841 258,425 0.17
CARRIER GLOBAL CORP (REG) 2.242% 15/02/2025 250,000 102.4264 256,066 0.16
CSMC 2021-AFC1 TRUST SER AFC1 CL A1l FRN 25/03/2056 333,000 77.468815 257,971 0.16
PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES (SER T) VAR PERP 31/12/2049 261,000 98.5 257,085 0.16
NATWEST MARKETS PLC (SER 144A) 1.6% 29/09/2026 261,000 98.1359 256,135 0.16
EXPEDIA INC SER WI (REG) 5% 15/02/2026 W/1 226,000 111.52555 252,048 0.16
FREDDIE MAC POOL FRN 01/01/2050 388,000 65.663141 254,773 0.16
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO (REG) VAR 29/01/2027 232,000 108.2843 251,220 0.16
EBAY INC (REG) 2.7% 11/03/2030 247,000 102.3273 252,748 0.16
APPLEBEE"S FUNDING LLC / IHOP FUNDI NG LLC SER 1A

CL A21 FRN 07/06/2049 253,000 100.268388 253,679 0.16
AT&T INC (REG) 3.5% 01/06/2041 248,000 102.27035 253,630 0.16
AERCAP IRELAND CAP/GLOBA (REG) 1.65% 29/10/2024 254,000 99.816 253,533 0.16
COSTAR GROUP INC (SER 144A) 2.8% 15/07/2030 250,000 100.3793 250,948 0.16
MONROE CAPITAL ABS FUNDING 2021-1 LTD SER 1A CL A2

FRN 22/04/2031 257,000 98.0918 252,096 0.16
DOMINOS PIZZA MASTER ISSUER LL FRN 25/07/2047 250,000 100.604985 251,512 0.16
HYUNDAI AUTO RECEIVABLES TRUST SER A CL A4 FRN

17/05/2027 255,000 98.61576 251,470 0.16
HCA INC (REG) 4.125% 15/06/2029 228,000 110.125 251,085 0.16
DEUTSCHE BANK NY (SER E) (REG) .962% 08/11/2023 252,000 99.4596 250,638 0.16
VISTRA OPERATIONS CO LLC (SER 144A) (REG) 3.55%

15/07/2024 240,000  102.9375 247,050 0.16
AGL CLO 5 LTD SER 5A CL A1R FRN 20/ 07/2034 250,000 99.9942 249,986 0.16
FIRSTKEY HOMES 2020-SFR1 TRUST SER SFR1 CL C FRN

17/08/2028 254,000 98.417 249,979 0.16
COTTAGE HEALTH SYSTEM (SER 2020) 3.304% 01/11/2049 233,000 106.87755 249,025 0.16
MARVELL TECHNOLOGY INC (REG) 2.45% 15/04/2028 244,000 101.6906 248,125 0.16
PROGRESS RESIDENTIAL 2020-SFR1 TRUST SER SFR1 CL A 250,000 99.595 248,988 0.16

FRN 17/04/2037
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BEACON CONTAINER FINANCE Il LLC SER 1A CL A

52/10/2046 254,000 98.084838 249,135 0.16
FN BM1277 FRN 01/05/2047 700,000  35.4512 248,158 0.16
HP ENTERPRISE CO (REG) 4.9% 15/10/2025 222,000 110.93385 246,273 0.16
MERCEDES-BENZ AUTO LEASE TRUST 2021-A SER A CL A4

FRN 15/10/206 250,000  99.33268 248,332 0.16
SANTANDER HOLDINGS USA (SER FXD) (R EG) 3.5%

07/06/2024 237,000 104.23315 247,033 0.16
COLT 2020-RPL1 TRUST SER RPL1 CL Al FRN 25/01/2065 313,000 78.602828 246,027 0.16
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO (REG) VAR 22/04/2031 243,000 100.79995 244,944 0.16
MIDWEST CONNECTOR CAPIT (SER 144A) (REG) 3.9%

0170472024 235,000 103.6219 243,511 0.16
NORDEA BANK ABP (SER 144A) VAR PERP 31/12/2049 253,000 95.75 242,248 0.15
N/A SER INV1 CL Al FRN 25/06/2026 269,000 90.335993 243,004 0.16
VR FUNDING LLC FRN 15/11/2050 291,000 82.890937 241,213 0.15
CREDIT AGRICOLE SA (SER 144A) (REG) 2.811%

11/01/2041 250,000  95.0213 237,553 0.15
ORBIA ADVANCE CORP SAB (SER 144A) (REG) 5.5%

15/01/2048 200,000 117.80115 235,602 0.15
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/06/2050 470,000 50.986294 239,636 0.15
CANTOR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE LENDING 2019-CF1 SER

CF1 oL A2 FRN 227,000  104.202 236,539 0.15
ZAXBY'S FUNDING LLC SER 1A CL A2 FRN 30/07/2051 232,000 101.666646 235,867 0.15
TEACHERS INSUR & ANNUITY (REG) SER 144A 4.27%

15/05/2047 193,000 120.9215 233,379 0.15
BX TRUST SER BIOA CL D FRN 15/03/2037 241,000 96.562557 232,716 0.15
OHIO NAT FINANCIAL SRVS (SER 144A) (REG) 5.55%

24/01/2030 200,000 114.00475 228,010 0.15
MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS INC (REG) 2.3% 15/11/2030 239,000  96.9326 231,669 0.15
SAUDI INTERNATIONAL BOND (SER REGS) (REG S) (REG)

2. 375% 16/04/2029 200,000 115.1493 230,299 0.15
FIRSTKEY HOMES 2020-SFR1 TRUST SER SFR1 CL A FRN

17/08/2028 237,000 97.669713 231,477 0.15
ING US INC (REG) VAR 15/05/2053 220,000  103.534 227,775 0.15
AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND BANKING GROUP LTD SER 200,000  114.375 228,750 0.15

144A (REG) VAR PERP

AVSR 2020-SFR4 TRUST SER SFR4 CL A FRN 17/11/2037 232,000  97.698 226,659 0.14
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/10/2050 250,000 90.478498 226,196 0.14
SESAC FINANCE LLC SER 1 CL A2 FRN 25/07/2049 221,000 101.478791 224,268 0.14
BANCO SANTANDER SA (REG) 4.379% 12/04/2028 200,000 112.1007 224,201 0.14
FREDDIE MAC POOL FRN 01/12/2049 580,000 38.764391 224,833 0.14
ANGLO MIERICAN CAPITAL SER 1444 (REG) .75+ 200,000 111.30576 222,612 014
VISTRA CORP (SER 144A) (REG) 4.3% 15/07/2029 205,000 107 219,350 0.14
UNITED AIR 2014-2 A PTT SER A 03/09/2026 319,000 68.821278 219,540 0.14
ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS (REG) 5.15% 15/03/2045 193,000 112.89255 217,883 0.14
NEW JERSEY ST TRANSPRTN TRUST 4.081% 15/06/2039 199,000  110.712 220,317 0.14
BOEING CO 5.15% 01/05/2030 187,000 116.88145 218,568 0.14
CITRIX SYSTEMS INC 1.25% 01/03/2026 225,000 97.127351 218,537 0.14
?ggggﬁgggsBANK LTD (REG) SER 144A 4.875% 200,000 109.26985 218,540 0.14
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BPCE SA (REG) SER 144A 4.5% 15/03/2025 200,000 108.06975 216,140 0.14
CSMC 2021-RPL2TRUST SER RPL2 CL A1A FRN 25/01/2060 278,000 78.537479 218,334 0.14
NIPPON LIFE INSURANCE (REG) SER 144A VAR

16/10/2044 200,000  108.125 216,250 0.14
VIATRIS INC (SER WI) (REG) 4% 22/06/2050 Wi 205,000  106.3344 217,986 0.14
FREDDIE MAC GOLD POOL FRN 01/10/2046 475,000 45.756425 217,343 0.14
ARES CAPITAL CORP 2.15% 15/07/2026 217,000  98.79345 214,382 0.14
EQUINIX INC (REG) 3.2% 18/11/2029 204,000  105.0651 214,333 0.14
EXPEDIA GROUP INC (SER WI) (REG) 3.25% 15/02/2030 207,000 102.4156 212,000 0.14
WILLIAMS PARTNERS LP (REG) 3.75% 15/06/2027 198,000 108.06265 213,964 0.14
WESTERN DIGITAL CORP (REG) 3.1% 01/02/2032 211,000 101.03335 213,180 0.14
CNO FINANCIAL GROUP INC (REG) 5.25% 30/05/2029 184,000 115 211,600 0.14
STATE OF QATAR (SER REGS) (REG S) (REG) 3.375%

14703/2024 200,000 104.80455 209,609 0.13
CDW LLC/CDW FINANCE 3.569% 01/12/20 31 202,000 104.2015 210,487 0.13
ASHTEAD CAPITAL INC (SER 144A) 4.37 5% 15/08/2027 200,000 103.75 207,500 0.13
ROYAL BK SCOTLND GRP PLC (REG) VAR 01/11/2029 200,000 104.62445 209,249 0.13
FORD CREDIT AUTO OWNER TRUST/FORD CREDIT SER 1 CL

A FRN 17/10/2033 213,000 98.736504 210,309 0.13
CLI FUNDING LLC SER 1A CL A FRN 18/02/2046 235,000 89.449273 210,206 0.13
AES PANAMA GENERATION HL (SER 144A) (REG) 4.375%

31/05/2030 200,000  104.625 209,250 0.13
FLAGSTAR MORTGAGE TRUST 2021-2 SER 1 CL A2 FRN

01/02/2051 258,000 81.073719 209,170 0.13
MACQUARIE BANK LTD (SER 144A) (REG) 3.624%

03/06/2030 200,000  104.4309 208,862 0.13
LUNDIN ENERGY FI (SER 144A) (REG) 2% 15/07/2026 208,000  99.5936 207,155 0.13
ANGEL OAK MORTGAGE TRUST FRN 25/07/2066 246,000 85.012206 209,130 0.13
SCF EQUIPMENT LEASING 2019-2 LLC SE R 2A CL C FRN

517062027 203,000 102.80706 208,698 0.13
JPMORGAN CHASE & CO (SER HH) (REG) VAR PERP

31/19/2049 199,000  102.875 204,721 0.13
GENERAL MOTORS FINL CO (REG) 4.35% 17/01/2027 184,000 110.05245 202,497 0.13
NIPPON LIFE INSURANCE (SER 144A) VA R 21/01/2051 207,000  98.31685 203,516 0.13
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/11/2045 616,000 33.342795 205,392 0.13
LUNDIN ENERGY FI (SER 144A) (REG) 3.1% 15/07/2031 200,000  101.2655 202,531 0.13
DAE FUNDING LLC (SER 144A) 3.375% 20/03/2028 200,000  101.625 203,250 0.13
ENGIE ENERGIA CHILE SA (SER 144A) (REG) 3.4%

28/01/2030 200,000 101.01845 202,037 0.13
COLT 2021-3 MORTGAGE LOAN TRUST SER 3 CL AL FRN

2770972066 216,000 94.770545 204,704 0.13
NAVIENT PRIVATE EDUCATION REFI LOAN TRUST 2021-A

SER A CL A FRN 329,000 62.136417 204,429 0.13
EXPEDIA GROUP INC (REG) 4.625% 01/08/2027 181,000  111.0303 200,965 0.13
MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS INC (REG) 2.75% 24/05/2031 203,000  100.2416 203,490 0.13
BARINGS CLO LTD 2013-1 SER IA CL AR FRN 20/01/2028 255,000 79.826616 203,558 0.13
BOEING CO 5.805% 01/05/2050 149,000  135.1406 201,359 0.13
T-MOBILE USA INC (REG) 4.5% 15/04/2 050 170,000  116.6629 198,327 0.13
HOST HOTELS & RESORTS LP (SER H) (R EG) 3.375%

16/12/2029 195,000  102.247 199,382 0.13
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GMF FLOORPLAN OWNER REVOLVING TRUST SER 1 CL A FRN

15/08/2025 200,000  99.47505 198,950 0.13
BERRY GLOBAL INC (REG) 1.57% 15/01/2026 200,000 98.25 196,500 0.13
JEFFERIES GRP LLC / CAP (REG) 4.15% 23/01/2030 176,000  110.5845 194,629 0.12
ASHTEAD CAPITAL INC (SER 144A) (REG) 1.5%

12/08/2026 200,000 98.125 196,250 0.13
VANTAGE DATA CENTERS LLC FRN 15/07/2044 198,000 99.543221 197,096 0.13
VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS (REG) 4.5% 10/08/2033 165,000 117.81445 194,394 0.12
VISIO 2020-1R TRUST SER 1R CL Al FRN 25/11/2055 360,000 54.299711 195,479 0.12
GS MORTGAGE SECURITIES TRUST SER GC12 CL A3 FRN

10/06/2046 192,000 101.5585 194,992 0.12
BANK OF AMERICA CORP VAR 29/04/2031 192,000 101.0368 193,991 0.12
BX COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE TRUST 2020-V KNG SER VKNG

CL A FRN 15/10/2037 236,000 82.345594 194,336 0.12
CF HIPPOLYTA LLC SER 1A CL A1 FRN 15/03/2061 204,000 94.862602 193,520 0.12
ADANI PORTS AND SPECIAL (SER 144A) 3.1% 02/02/2031 200,000  95.30805 190,616 0.12
ONSLOW BAY MORTGAGE LOAN TRUST SER NQM3 CL Al FRN

25/07/2061 214,000 90.169449 192,963 0.12
DRIVEN BRANDS FUNDING LLC SER 1A CL A2 FRN

20/10/2051 196,000 97.847557 191,781 0.12
VIATRIS INC (SER WI) (REG) 2.7% 22/06/2030 Wl 192,000 100.2763 192,531 0.12
BENCHMARK 2018-B1 MORTGAGE TRUST SER B12 CL A2 FRN

15/08/2052 185,000 102.914 190,391 0.12
KINDER MORGAN ENER PART (REG) 7.75% 15/03/2032 131,000  141.9195 185,915 0.12
SABINE PASS LIQUEFACTION (REG) 4.2% 15/03/2028 170,000 109.875 186,788 0.12
FREDDIE MAC POOL FRN 01/04/2047 400,000  46.96235 187,849 0.12
AMAZON.COM INC (REG) 4.05% 22/08/2047 152,000 121.74395 185,051 0.12
SONIC CAPITAL LLC SER 1A CL A2l FRN 20/01/2050 183,000 102.184591 186,998 0.12

EXETER AUTOMOBILE RECEIVABLES TRUST 2020-1 SER 1A

CL C ERN 15/01/2025 185,000 100.82378 186,524 0.12
ENBRIDGE INC (SER 20-A) (REG) VAR 15/07/2079 162,000 111.625 180,833 0.12
WENDY*"S FUNDING LLC SER 1A CL A2l FRN 15/06/2051 189,000 97.792318 184,827 0.12
CAPITAL ONE FINANCIAL CO (REG) VAR 06/12/2024 182,000 100.91755 183,670 0.12
BOEING CO (REG) 3.2% 01/03/2029 176,000 103.34255 181,883 0.12
ENERGY TRANSFER OPERATNG 5.5% 01/06/2027 158,000 114.18175 180,407 0.12
HYUNDAI CAPITAL AMERICA (SER 144A) 1.0% 17/09/2024 183,000 98.3509 179,982 0.11
MICRON TECHNOLOGY INC (REG) 4.975% 06/02/2026 158,000 111.875 176,763 0.11
WELLS FARGO & COMPANY VAR 30/04/2041 175,000  102.0319 178,556 0.11
HCA INC (REG) 5.25% 15/04/2025 160,000 110.875 177,400 0.11
géﬁggygongRASTRUCTURE FUNDING LLC SER 1A CL A FRN 183,000 97.8038 178,981 0.11
ARES CAPITAL CORP 3.875% 15/01/2026 166,000 105.48715 175,109 0.11
ggEE¥E§g7¢gSELCAN FINANCE 2021-2 TRUST SER 2 CL A 184,000  96.44991 177,468 0.11
gEEiTAxE“ RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE TRUST 2021-2 SER 2 214,000 82.752938 177,001 0.11
EghTzésié;gééGMORTGAGE LOAN TRUST SER HX1 CL Al 187,000 94.660607 177,015 0.11
CSMC 2021-NQM6 SER NQM6 CL Al FRN 25/07/2066 191,000 92.656921 176,975 0.11
HCA INC (REG) 5.25% 15/06/2026 157,000 112.375 176,429 0.11
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FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/03/2050 400,000 43.892807 175,571 0.11
ANGEL OAK MORTGAGE TRUST FRN 20/01/2065 211,000 83.331822 175,830 0.11
VANTAGE DATA CENTERS LLC SER 1A CL A2 FRN

15/09/2045 181,000  97.09531 175,743 0.11
MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL (SER HH) (RE G) 2.85%

15/04/2031 174,000 99.74215 173,551 0.11
HOME PARTNERS OF AMERICA 2021-2 TRUST SER 2 CL A

FRN 17/12/2026 177,000 98.1931 173,802 0.11
TOWD POINT MORTGAGE TRUST 2019-4 SE R 4 CL Al FRN

25/10/2059 285,000 59.811611 170,463 0.11
SBL HOLDINGS INC (SER 144A) 5% 18/02/2031 159,000 105.56855 167,854 0.11
ONSLOW BAY MORTGAGE LOAN TRUST SER NQM2 CL Al FRN

25/05/2061 202,000 84.197619 170,079 0.11
ENBRIDGE INC (REG) VAR 15/07/2077 158,000 105 165,900 0.11
GM FINANCIAL CONSUMER AUTOMOBILE RECEIVABLES TRUST

SER 2 CL A4 FRN 171,000 99.2848 169,777 0.11
ENBRIDGE INC (REG) VAR 01/03/2078 153,000 108.875 166,579 0.11
VERIZON OWNER TRUST 2020-C SER C CL C FRN

21/04/2025 171,000 99.1003 169,462 0.11
HUNTINGTON INGALLS INDUS (SER WI) (REG) 4.2%

01/05/2030 (WHEN ISSUED) 150,000  111.2747 166,912 0.11
UNITED AIR 2016-1 A PTT SER (A) (REG) FRN

07/01/2030 208,000 79.366531 165,082 0.11
VERUS SECURITIZATION TRUST SER 3 CL Al FRN

25/06/2066 207,000 81.026158 167,724 0.11
DBJPM 20-C9 MORTGAGE TRUST SER C9 CL A2 FRN

15/09/2053 166,000 100.81 167,345 0.11
CGIl INC (SER 144A) 1.45% 14/09/2026 171,000 97.5694 166,844 0.11
FREDDIE MAC FRN 01/12/2049 270,000 61.440522 165,889 0.11
OWENS CORNING (REG) 3.95% 15/08/2029 148,000 109.7561 162,439 0.10
NEW YORK NY .982% 01/08/2025 165,000 98.82 163,053 0.10
TRITON CONTAINER FINANCE VIIN LLC SER 1A CL A FRN

20/03/2046 177,000 91.697582 162,305 0.10
GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 137 2,604,000 6.175244 160,803 0.10
CL 10 FRN

SMB PRIVATE EDUCATION LOAN TRUST 2020-PT-A SER PTA 183,000 88.591617 162,123 0.10
CL A2A FRN

FREDDIE MAC FRN 01/12/2046 385,000 41.889975 161,276 0.10
CANTOR FITZGERALD LP (SER 144A) (RE G) 4.875%

01/05/2024 150,000  106.9103 160,365 0.10
LIFE 2021-BMR MORTGAGE TRUST SER BMR CL A FRN

15/03/2038 162,000 99.375 160,988 0.10
AERCAP IRELAND CAP/GLOBA (REG) 3.65% 21/07/2027 150,000 105.58335 158,375 0.10
UNIVERSAL HEALTH SVCS (SER 144A) (R EG) 2.65%

15/10/2030 160,000 99.25 158,800 0.10
AXA SA 8.6% (REG) 15/12/2030 110,000  144.7459 159,220 0.10
MORGAN STANLEY SER GMTN (REG) 3.875% 27/01/2026 145,000 108.37225 157,140 0.10
CARMAX AUTO OWNER TRUST 2020-3 SER 3 CL A4 FRN

16/03/2026 160,000  99.23841 158,781 0.10
MFRA TRUST SER INV1 CL Al FRN 25/01/2056 243,000 65.219861 158,484 0.10
GCAT SER NQM3 CL Al FRN 25/05/2066 194,000 81.434355 157,983 0.10
US AIRWAYS 2012-1A PTT (REG) FRN 01/04/2026 323,000 48.103727 155,375 0.10
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TOWD POINT MORTGAGE TRUST 2018-1 SER 1 CL Al FRN

25 /01/2058 459,000 34.247756 157,197 0.10
NEW RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE LOAN TRUST SER 1A CL AlB

FRN 25710/2056 250,000 62.776004 156,940 0.10
VERUS SECURITIZATION TRUST SER 1 CL AL FRN

oE/01/2086 248,000 63.181666 156,691 0.10
EXFESMMERCIAL MORTGAGE TRUST 2021-VOLT SER VOLT CL o0 00 g5 gogs 156,261 0.10
BOJANGLES ISSUER LLC SER 1A CL A2 FRN 20/10/2050 150,000 102.555164 153,833 0.10
AMSR 2019-SFR1 TRUST 2.153% 17/06/2038 156,000  99.0815 154,567 0.10
BLACKSTONE PRIVATE CRE (SER 144A) (REG) 2.35%

55/11/2004 154,000  100.0484 154,075 0.10
PROGRESS RESIDENTIAL 2021-SFR1 SER SFR1 CL A FRN

1770472038 160,000  96.4235 154,278 0.10
CITIGROUP COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE TRUST SER GC46 CL A2

FRN 15/01/2053 150,000  101.892 152,838 0.10
MPLX LP (REG) 4% 15/03/2028 139,000  108.577 150,922 0.10
CHOICE HOTELS INTL INC (REG) 3.7% 01/12/2029 143,000  106.1222 151,755 0.10
CSMC 2020-NET SER NET CL A FRN 15/08/2037 150,000  100.964 151,446 0.10
UNIVERSAL HEALTH SVCS (SER 144A) 1.65% 01/09/2026 153,000 98.47005 150,659 0.10
PROGRESS RESIDENTIAL 2021-SFR4 SER SFR4 CL A FRN

17/05/2038 154,000 98.001931 150,923 0.10
DOMINO™S PI1ZZA MASTER ISSUER LLC SER 1A CL A2I FRN

o /04/2051 150,000 99.934111 149,901 0.10
GLP CAPITAL LP / FIN Il (REG) 5.375% 15/04/2026 133,000  111.8852 148,807 0.10
HOST HOTELS & RESORTS LP (SER 1) (R EG) 3.5%

15709/2030 145,000 102.60305 148,774 0.10
VERUS SECURITIZATION TRUST 2021-5 SER 5 CL Al FRN

25/09/2086 159,000 94.365282 150,041 0.10
COLT FUNDING LLC SER 2 CL Al FRN 25/08/2066 162,000 92.292384 149,514 0.10
?8VEEHMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 40 CL | ooo oo o cooons 148 131 0.09
FREDDIE MAC GOLD POOL FRN 01/09 /2047 415,000 35.793098 148,541 0.09
AERCAP IRELAND CAP/GLOBA 1.75% 30/01/2026 150,000  98.16115 147,242 0.09
T-MOBILE USA INC (REG) 3.3% 15/02/2051 150,000  97.54035 146,311 0.09
SUNOCO LOGISTICS PARTNER (REG) 5.4% 01/10/2047 125,000 117.05725 146,322 0.09
SERVPRO MASTER ISSUER LLC SER 1A CL A2 FRN

o5 /0472051 150,000 98.161485 147,242 0.09
SIERRA TIMESHARE 2021-1 RECEIVABLES FUNDING LLC

SER 1A CL A FRN 232,000 63.51936 147,365 0.09
SVB FINANCIAL GROUP 3.125% 05/06/20 30 140,000 104.74895 146,649 0.09
FOOTHILL ESTRN TRANSPRTN CORRI 4.094% 15/01/2049 139,000  103.824 144,315 0.09
AMERISOURCEBERGEN CORP 2.8% 15/05/2030 142,000  102.8406 146,034 0.09
FREDDIE MAC POOL FRN 01/01/2050 320,000 45.587694 145,881 0.09
CITIGROUP COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE TRUST 2019-PRM SER

PRI OL A FRN 140,000  103.917 145,484 0.09
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/11/2047 395,000 36.469445 144,054 0.09
AMER AIRLINE 17-1 AA PTT SER (AA) (REG) FRN

1570872030 175,000 81.398945 142,448 0.09
CVS HEALTH CORP 2.7% 21/08/2040 148,000  95.83795 141,840 0.09
EEYgTﬁRﬁUTO LOAN EXTENDED NOTE TRUST 2020-1 SER 1A 1,0 100 gg 55007 142,400 0.09
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CSMC 2021-NQM2 SER NQM2 CL Al FRN 25/02/2066 205,000 69.319801 142,106 0.09
EATON VANCE CLO 2020-2 LTD (SER 2A) CL AR FRN

15/01/2035 142,000 99.9654 141,951 0.09
CYRUSONE LP/CYRUSONE FIN (REG) 3.45% 15/11/2029 130,000 108.61055 141,194 0.09
VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS 121,000 116.3694 140,807 0.09
VULCAN MATERIALS CO (REG) 3.5% 01/06/2030 131,000 107.77715 141,188 0.09
EQUINIX INC (REG) 1.55% 15/03/2028 146,000 96.4292 140,787 0.09
NRG ENERGY INC (SER 144A) (REG) 2.45% 02/12/2027 142,000  99.22935 140,906 0.09
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/01/2050 305,000 46.04385 140,434 0.09
DRIVEN BRANDS FUNDING LLC SER 2A CL A2 FRN

20/01/2051 140,000 99.749902 139,650 0.09

ELARA HGV TIMESHARE ISSUER 2019-A L LC SER A CL A

FRN 25/01/2034 300,000 46.726991 140,181 0.09
SONIC CAPITAL LLC SER 1A CL A2l FRN 20/08/2051 144,000 97.208349 139,980 0.09
GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE A FRN 16/06/2062 2,131,000 6.497287 138,457 0.09
ARES CAPITAL CORP (REG) 2.875% 15/0 6/2028 140,000  99.69275 139,570 0.09
AT&T INC (SER *) 2.3% 01/06/2027 137,000  101.7647 139,418 0.09
BENCHMARK 2018-B1 MORTGAGE TRUST SER B1 CL A2 FRN

15/01/2051 139,000 99.864343 138,811 0.09
KLA-TENCOR CORP (REG) 4.1% 15/03/20 29 118,000 113.1761 133,548 0.09
COREVEST AMERICAN FINANCE 2021-1 TRUST SER 1 CL A

FRN 15/04/2053 159,000 83.702313 133,087 0.09
FREDDIE MAC GOLD POOL FRN 01/11/2046 315,000 42.051983 132,464 0.08
CVS HEALTH CORP 3.75% 01/04/2030 120,000  109.7436 131,692 0.08
ARROYO MORTGAGE TRUST 2021-1R SER 1R CL Al FRN

25/10/2048 171,000 77.407234 132,366 0.08
PROVIDENT FUNDING MORTGAGE TRUST 2020-F1 SER F1 CL

A2 ERN 25/01/2036 207,000 63.413995 131,267 0.08
NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE (SER 144A) (REG) 3.75%

15/05/2050 115,000 113.6721 130,723 0.08
ABPCI DIRECT LENDING FUND ABS I LTD SER 1A CL A

FRN 20/12/2030 130,000  100.0342 130,044 0.08
CHOICE HOTELS INTL INC 3.7% 15/01/2031 121,000 106.42735 128,777 0.08
HERCULES CAPITAL INC 2.625% 16/09/2026 131,000  98.98095 129,665 0.08
DOMINION ENERGY INC (SER C) 3.375% 01/04/2030 121,000 106.38225 128,723 0.08
CITIGROUP COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE TRUST 2019-SMRT SER

SWRT CL A FRN 123,000  105.0805 129,249 0.08
GOLUB CAPITAL PARTNERS ABS FUNDING 2019-1 LTD SER

1A CL A2 FRN 130,000 99.1051 128,837 0.08
?8VEE“MENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 3 CL 1,880,000 6.811622 128,058 0.08
SABINE PASS LIQUEFACTION (REG) 5% 15/03/2027 113,000 112.625 127,266 0.08
AVIS BUDGET RENTAL CAR FUNDING AESO P LLC SER 1A

CL A FRN 20/08/2026 125,000 102.44664 128,058 0.08
TRANSCANADA PIPELINES (REG) 4.25% 15/05/2028 114,000 111.6152 127,241 0.08
STARVEST EMERGING MARKETS CBO 1 SER 2 CL Al FRN

25/05/2065 209,000 61.0189 127,530 0.08
VANTAGE DATA CENTERS LLC SER 2A CL A2 FRN

15/09/2045 130,000 97.96616 127,356 0.08
CARVANA AUTO RECEIVABLES TRUST 2020-P1 SER P1 CL 127,000  98.96836 125,690 0.08

A4 FRN 08/10/2026
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OCEAN TRAILS CLO FRN 15/10/2034 125,000 100.0834 125,104 0.08
LIFE 2021-BMR MORTGAGE TRUST SER BMR CL D FRN

15/03/2038 126,000 99.0815 124,843 0.08
DIAMONDBACK ENERGY INC (REG) 3.125% 24/03/2031 120,000 102.893 123,472 0.08

IRVINE CORE OFFICE TRUST 2013-IRV SER IRV CL A2
FRN 15/05/2048

QORVO INC (SER 144A) 1.75% 15/12/2024 122,000 100.08685 122,106 0.08
CREDIT SUISSE MORTGAGE CAPITAL CERTIFICATES 2019-

120,000  102.5925 123,111 0.08

ICE4 SER ICE4 CL 122,000 99.75 121,695 0.08
ELLINGTON FINANCIAL MORTGAGE TRUST 2017-1 SER 2 CL

AL FRN 25/06/2066 153,000 78.865474 120,664 0.08
JACK IN THE BOX FUNDING LLC SER 1A CL A2l FRN

25/08/2049 120,000 99.890797 119,869 0.08
SCF EQUIPMENT LEASING 2021-1 LLC SER 1A CL B FRN

20/08/2029 122,000 98.29118 119,915 0.08
CITIGROUP INC VAR 01/05/2032 119,000  100.3466 119,412 0.08
MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL (SER FF) (RE G) 4.625%

15/06/2030 106,000 112.8741 119,647 0.08
NAVIENT PRIVATE EDUCATION REFI LOAN TRUST 2019-F

SER FA CL A2 ERN 15/0 200,000 59.598431 119,197 0.08
GSMS 2019-GC40 A2 SER GC40 CL A2 FRN 10/07/2052 115,000 102.899 118,334 0.08
MFA 2020-NQM3 TRUST SER NQM3 CL Al FRN 26/01/2065 250,000 47.180654 117,952 0.08
AMERICAN TOWER CORP 3.8% 15/08/2029 107,000  108.7234 116,334 0.07
OXFORD FINANCE FUNDING 2019-1 LLC SER 1A CL A2 FRN

15/02/2027 150,000 78.364465 117,547 0.08
PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES (REG) VAR PERP 116,000 99.875 115,855 0.07
EMERA US FINANCE LP (REG) SER WI 3.55% W/1

15/06/2026 110,000 106.3438 116,978 0.07
NRG ENERGY INC (SER 144A) (REG) 4.45% 15/06/2029 107,000 109.125 116,764 0.07
QORVO INC (SER 144A) (REG) 3.375% 01/04/2031 113,000 102.25 115,543 0.07
VERISIGN INC (REG) 2.7% 15/06/2031 115,000 100.875 116,006 0.07
DATABANK ISSUER SER 2A CL A2 FRN 25/10/2051 116,000 99.373794 115,274 0.07
COTERRA ENERGY INC (SER 144A) (REG) 4.375%

01/06/2024 108,000 106.125 114,615 0.07
CARS-DB4 LP SER 1A CL Al FRN 15/02/2050 125,000 91.088632 113,861 0.07
TIF FUNDING 11 LLC SER 1A CL A FRN 20/02/2046 126,000 90.077925 113,498 0.07
LAZARD GROUP LLC (REG) 4.375% 11/03/2029 99,000 113.22245 112,090 0.07
GCAT 2021-NQM1 TRUST SER NQM1 CL A1l FRN 25/01/2066 178,000 63.168478 112,440 0.07
DISCOVER FINANCIAL SVS (REG) 4.1% 09/02/2027 102,000 108.55295 110,724 0.07
ENERGY TRANSFER LP (REG) 4.2% 15/04/2027 103,000 108.17235 111,418 0.07
CSMC 2021-NQM3 SER NQM3 CL A1l FRN 25/04/2066 147,000 76.307845 112,173 0.07
MPLX LP (SER WI) (REG) 4.25% 01/12/2027 101,000 110.75 111,858 0.07
NISOURCE INC (REG) 3.6% 01/05/2030 103,000 107.64675 110,876 0.07
BARCLAYS PLC SER (REG) 4.375% 12/01/2026 100,000 109.23185 109,232 0.07
HONDA AUTO RECEIVABLES OWNER TRUST SER 2 CL A4 FRN

16/08/2027 112,000 98.61658 110,451 0.07
JOHN DEERE OWNER TRUST 2020-B SER B CL A4 FRN

15/06/2027 111,000 99.46424 110,405 0.07
IHS MARKIT LTD (SER 144A) (REG) 4% 01/03/2026 100,000 108.75 108,750 0.07
T-MOBILE USA INC (REG) 3.75% 15/04/2027 100,000  108.4729 108,473 0.07
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NXP BV/NXP FUNDING LLC (SER 144A) (REG) 4.875%

01/03/2004 100,000  107.5368 107,537 0.07
PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP SER R VAR PERP 106,000 102.5 108,650 0.07
BARCLAYS COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE S SER SRCH CL D VAR

10/08/203" 100,000  108.6505 108,651 0.07
JPMCC COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE SECURITIES TRUST 2019-

SRS SER CORS 105,000  102.682 107,816 0.07
MFA 2021-NQM1 TRUST SER NQM1 CL Al FRN 25/04/2065 179,000 59.555785 106,605 0.07
EXPEDIA GROUP INC (REG) 2.95% 15/03/2031 105,000 100.05665 105,059 0.07
iXFgﬁMMERCIAL NORTGAGE TRUST 2021-ACNT SER ACNT CL 0 (00 99. 884 105,877 0.07
NEWMONT GOLDCORP CORP (REG) 2.8% 01/10/2029 102,000  102.9307 104,989 0.07
CREDIT SUISSE MORTGAGE CAPITAL CERTIFICATES SER

NOMS CL AL FRN 119,000 88.726848 105,585 0.07
SMB PRIVATE EDUCATION LOAN TRUST SER A CL APT2 FRN

15/01/2053 131,000 79.957134 104,744 0.07
BRITISH AIR 13-1 A PTT (REG) SER 144A 4.625%

20/06/2004 200,000 52.184617 104,369 0.07
AMERICAN HOMES 4 RENT (REG) 4.25% 15/02/2028 93,000 110.77315 103,019 0.07
LEVEL 3 FINANCING INC (SER 144A) (R EG) 3.4%

01/03/2027 100,000  103.375 103,375 0.07
PROGRESS RESIDENTIAL TRUST FRN 17/09/2038 105,000 97.811 102,702 0.07
EQUINIX INC (REG) 1.8% 15/07/2027 103,000  98.69235 101,653 0.06
TRITON CONTAINER FINANCE VIII LLC SER 1A CL A FRN

20/00/2045 115,000 88.826806 102,151 0.07
OXFORD FINANCE FUNDING 2020-1 LLC SER 1A CL A2 FRN

1570272028 100,000 101.11264 101,113 0.06
GOLDEN ST TOBACCO SECURITIZATI 4.214% 01/06/2050 101,000  99.9525 100,952 0.06
GOLUB CAPITAL PARTNERS ABS FUNDING 2020-1 LTD SER

1A CL Ao FRN 100,000 100.45 100,450 0.06
VIATRIS INC (REG) 2.3% 22/06/2027 Wi 100,000 100.80585 100,806 0.06
VCP RRL ABS I LTD 2021 SER 1A CL A FRN 20/10/2031 100,000 99.922 99,922 0.06
ONE MARKET PLAZA TRUST SER IMKT CLS D FRN

10/02/2032 100,000  100.0735 100,074 0.06
HYUNDAI CAPITAL AMERICA (SER 144A) (REG) 1.8%

15/10/2005 100,000  99.7722 99,772 0.06
KNDL 2019-KNSQ MORTGAGE TRUST SER K NSQ CL C FRN

150572036 100,000 99.873 99,873 0.06
CARGILL INC (SER 144A) (REG) 2.125% 23/04/2030 100,000  99.4999 99,500 0.06
TOWD POINT MORTGAGE TRUST 2019-1 SER 1 CL AL FRN

25/03/2058 183,000 54.220828 99,224 0.06
CVS HEALTH CORP (REG) 4.3% 25/03/2028 87,000 112.35325 97,747 0.06
AQUA FINANCE TRUST 2017-A SER A CL A FRN

1770772046 106,000 92.558537 98,112 0.06
ANGEL OAK MORTGAGE TRUST 2020-R1 SER R1 CL Al FRN

o5/04/2053 209,000 46.680605 97,562 0.06
VERUS SECURITIZATION TRUST SER R2 CL AL FRN

o /00/2064 172,000 56.505204 97,189 0.06
COMM 2020-CX MORTGAGE TRUST SER CX CL D FRN

1071172046 100,000  96.3835 96,384 0.06
US TREASURY .75% 31/05/2026 98,000 98.000236 96,040 0.06
GCAT 2021-NQM2 TRUST SER NQM2 CL Al FRN 25/05/2066 117,000  81.66393 95,547 0.06
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FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/11/2049 175,000 54.472732 95,327 0.06
;g552;2552UND MORTGAGE TRUST SER NQM1 CL Al FRN 115,000 82.881963 95,314 0.06
ggigz;ggggs & RESORTS LP (SER F) (REG) 4.5% 87,000 107643 03,649 0.06
AUTONATION INC 4.75% 01/06/2030 83,000 114.38125 94,936 0.06
ig;géggogglg_l CLASS AA (SER AA) (REG) 2.75% 103,000 91.917706 94,675 0.06

VERUS SECURITIZATION TRUST 2021-R1 SER R1 CL Al

FRN 25/10/2063 187,000 50.688499 94,787 0.06
HOTWIRE FUNDING LLC SER 2021-1 CL A 2 20/11/2051 94,000 99.72401 93,741 0.06
AIR LEASE CORP (REG) 2.1% 01/09/2028 95,000 96.8039 91,964 0.06
NAVIENT PRIVATE EDUCATION REFI LOAN TRUST 2020-G

SER GA CL A FRN 200,000 45.674262 91,349 0.06
QUANTA SERVICES INC .95% 01/10/2024 92,000 98.6767 90,783 0.06
NISSAN MOTOR ACC CO (SER 144A) 1.125% 16/09/2024 92,000  98.49795 90,618 0.06
METLIFE INC (REG) 9.25% 08/04/2038 60,000 148.9927 89,396 0.06
?8VEE“MENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 11 CL 1,123,000 7.97611 89,572 0.06
KINDER MORGAN INC (REG) 4.3% 01/03/2028 80,000 111.16875 88,935 0.06
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/10/2049 143,000 62.753834 89,738 0.06
MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL (SER GG) (RE G) 3.5%

15/10/2032 85,000 104.71375 89,007 0.06
BRITISH AIR 20-1 B PTT (SER 144A) (REG) 8.375%

15/11/2028 141,000 62.160468 87,646 0.06
TOWD POINT MORTGAGE TRUST 2018-6 SER 6 CL A1A FRN

25/03/2058 233,000 37.409319 87,164 0.06
CYRUSONE LP/CYRUSONE FIN 2.15% 01/1 1/2030 88,000 98.9243 87,053 0.06
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/12/2047 165,000 52.131326 86,017 0.05
DELTA AIR LINES/SKYMILES (SER 144A) (REG) 4.75%

20/10/2028 78,000 109.53285 85,436 0.05
AT&T INC 3.65% 01/06/2051 83,000 103.2421 85,691 0.05
NAVIENT STUDENT LOAN TRUST 2020-2 SER 2A CL AlA

FRN 26/08/2069 100,000 85.745172 85,745 0.05
AMER AIRLINE 21-1A EETC (REG) 2.875 % 11/07/2034 87,000 97.0915 84,470 0.05
NXP BV/NXP FDG/NXP USA (SER 144A) (REG) 3.25%

11/05/2041 81,000 102.2677 82,837 0.05
AMER AIRLINE 16-1 AA PTT SER (AA) (REG) FRN

15/01/2028 105,000 77.438199 81,310 0.05
VENTAS REALTY LP (REG) 3.5% 01/02/2025 77,000 105.44135 81,190 0.05
DRIVEN BRANDS FUNDING LLC SER 1A CL A2 FRN

20/04/2048 81,000 100.547769 81,444 0.05
ANGEL OAK MORTGAGE TRUST 2021-2 SER 2 CL Al FRN

25/04/2066 124,000 66.134703 82,007 0.05
SANTANDER HOLDINGS USA (REG) 4.4% 13/07/2027 73,000 109.76495 80,128 0.05
?8VEE”MENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SE 169 CL 3,835,000 2.083503 79,902 0.05
GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE A SER 35 CL 10 VAR

01/12/2062 1,090,000 7.32721 79,867 0.05
CROWN CASTLE INTL CORP 3.3% 01/07/2030 75,000 105.547 79,160 0.05
giAX? EE;IDENTIAL FUNDING TRUST 2021-NQM1 SER NQM1 117,000 67.642745 79,142 0.05
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UNUM GROUP (REG) 4.125% 15/06/2051 77,000 101.80305 78,388 0.05
DB MASTER FINANCE LLC SER Al CL A2Il FRN
20/11/2047 78,000 100.101896 78,079 0.05

BRE GRAND ISLANDER TIMESHARE ISSUER 2019-A LLC SER
A CL A FRN 26/09/20

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS INC (REG) 4.6% 23/05/2029 68,000 113.82 77,398 0.05
COREVEST AMERICAN FINANCE 2019-3 TRUST SER 3 CL A

149,000 52.433158 78,125 0.05

FRN 1571072052 100,000 77.358661 77,359 0.05
WELLS FARGO COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE TRUST 2019-C51 SER

Co1 oL A2 FRN 75,000 102.95 77,213 0.05
AUTODESK INC (REG) 2.85% 15/01/2030 74,000 103.25235 76,407 0.05
CROWN CASTLE INTL CORP (REG) 3.8% 15/02/2028 70,000  108.7296 76,111 0.05
DOMINO™S PI1ZZA MASTER ISSUER LLC SE R 1A CL A2 FRN

25/10/2049 73,000 104.330574 76,161 0.05
VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS (REG) 3% 22/03/2027 72,000 105.31255 75,825 0.05
BBCMS TRUST SER C6 CL A2 FRN 15/02/2053 74,000  102.725 76,017 0.05
DELTA AIR LINES INC (REG) 2.9% 28/10/2024 74,000 101.75855 75,301 0.05
AKER BP ASA (SER 144A) (REG) 3% 15/01/2025 70,000  103.875 72,713 0.05
GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 170 040,000  7.577742 71231 0.05
CL 10 FRN

TOWD POINT MORTGAGE TRUST 2020-4 SER 4 CL AL FRN

25 /10/2060 100,000 71.308448 71,308 0.05
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/04/2048 175,000 40.475176 70,832 0.05
UNITED AIR 2020-1 B PTT 4.875% 15/01/2026 74,000 94.230238 69,730 0.04
ARES CAPITAL CORP (REG) 4.2% 10/06/2024 66,000  105.3682 69,543 0.04
GLP CAPITAL LP / FIN Il (REG) 3.25% 15/01/2032 68,000  100.623 68,424 0.04
EXETER AUTOMOBILE RECEIVABLES TRUST 2021-1 SER 1A

CL C FRN 15/01/2026 68,000  99.95375 67,969 0.04
GS MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES TRUST SER NQML CL Al

ERN 25/07/2061 100,000 67.744456 67,744 0.04
GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 163 884,004  7.522019 66.577 0.04
CL 10 FRN

BENCHMARK 2019-B13 MORTGAGE TRUST SER B13 CL A2

FRN 15/08/2057 65,000  102.712 66,763 0.04
M&T BANK CORPORATION SER F (REG) VAR PERP 60,000 108.75 65,250 0.04
VSE VOI MORTGAGE LLC SER A CL A FRN 20/03/2035 278,000 23.616192 65,653 0.04
TESLA AUTO LEASE TRUST 2020-A SER A CL A4 FRN

20712/2023 65,000 99.88488 64,925 0.04
DAIMLER FINANCE NA LLC (SER 144A) 3.5% 03/08/2025 60,000  106.6943 64,017 0.04
DELTA AIR LINES INC (REG) 4.375% 19/04/2028 59,000 106.32275 62,730 0.04
AMER AIRLINE 17-2 A PTT SER (A) (REG) FRN

15/04/2031 79,000 78.749613 62,212 0.04
ASCOT GROUP LTD (SER 144A) (REG) 4.25% 15/12/2030 60,000  103.375 62,025 0.04
COCA-COLA FEMSA SAB CV (REG) 2.75% 22/01/2030 60,000  101.9368 61,162 0.04
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/09/2049 82,000 72.081939 59,107 0.04
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/09/2049 195,000 29.931819 58,367 0.04
STARWOOD MORTGAGE RESIDENTIAL TRUST 2020-3 SER 3

oL AL FRN 25/04/2065 141,000  41.02309 57,843 0.04
GOVERNVENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 10 CL o0 000 4 750457 57,032 0.04

10 FRN
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GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 118

el 10 FRN 1,140,000  5.002741 57,031 0.04
GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 110 115,000 7.994388 56,020 0.04
CL 10 FRN

FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/11/2049 78,000 72.855081 56,827 0.04
AMER AIRLINE 16-1 A PTT SER (A) (REG) FRN

15/07/2029 75,000 74.186498 55,640 0.04
GM FINANCIAL LEASING TRUST SER 2 CL A4 FRN

20/05/2025 57,000  98.93493 56,393 0.04
FREDDIE MAC POOL FRN 01/12/2049 94,000 58.414823 54,910 0.04
VERUS SECURITIZATION TRUST 2020-5 SER 5 CL Al FRN

(STPY 25/05/2065 100,000 53.687623 53,688 0.03
DELL INT LLC / EMC CORP (REG) 5.85% 15/07/2025 45,000 113.6621 51,148 0.03
UNITED AIR 2016-1 B PTT (REG) 07/01/2026 72,000 69.360588 49,940 0.03
HYUNDAI CAPITAL AMERICA (SER 144A) (REG) 2.375%

15/10/2057 50,000  99.92115 49,961 0.03
T-MOBILE USA INC (REG) 2.55% 15/02/2031 50,000  99.15685 49,578 0.03
CONSTELLATION BRANDS INC (REG) 3.15% 01/08/2029 47,000  105.1954 49,442 0.03
MPLX LP (REG) 4.125% 01/03/2027 45,000 109.04545 49,070 0.03
COLORADO INT GAS CO/ISS (REG) SER 144A 4.15%

15/08/2026 45,000 108.7181 48,923 0.03
ROYALTY PHARMA PLC (SER WI) (REG) 1.75% 02/09/2027 50,000  97.4576 48,729 0.03
AIR LEASE CORP (SER MTN) (REG) 2.875% 15/01/2026 47,000 102.80295 48,317 0.03
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/11/2049 85,000 55.618431 47,276 0.03
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC (SER 144A) (REG) 2.95%

01/10/2050 50,000  93.3958 46,698 0.03
GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 183 507.000  7.751368 46.276 0.03
CL 10 ERN

MERCEDES-BENZ AUTO RECEIVABLES TRUST SER 1 CL A4

FRN. 15/10/2004 50,000 92.902085 46,451 0.03
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/12/2045 115,000 39.127934 44,997 0.03
DELTA AIR LINES INC (REG) 3.8% 19/04/2023 43,000  102.4357 44,047 0.03
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/09/2049 155,000 27.475679 42,587 0.03
DELL INT LLC / EMC CORP (REG) 8.35% 15/07/2046 25,000 166.84505 41,711 0.03
AMERICREDIT AUTOMOBILE RECEIVA FRN 20/10/2025 42,000 100.97823 42,411 0.03
HILTON GRAND VACATIONS TRUST 2018-A SER AA CL A

FRN 25/02/2032 100,000 41.826483 41,826 0.03
NAVIENT PRIVATE EDUCATION LOAN TRUS T 2016-A SER

A CL A2A FRN 15/12/20 100,000 40.168975 40,169 0.03
FREDDIE MAC POOL FRN 01/10/2049 75,000 52.422965 39,317 0.03
MISSISSIPPI ST HOSP EQUIPMENT 3.72% 01/09/2026 36,000  103.327 37,198 0.02
BRITISH AIR 20-1 A PPT (SER 144A) (REG) 4.25%

16/11 79032 60,000 60.980153 36,588 0.02
OHIO ST TURNPIKE COMMISSION 3.216% 15/02/2048 35,000  102.011 35,704 0.02
FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/11/2048 90,970 39.195029 35,656 0.02
IHS MARKIT LTD (REG) 4.75% 01/08/2028 30,000  116.125 34,838 0.02
UNITED AIR 2019-1 A PTT SER A (REG) 4.55%

o5 /08/2031 40,000  86.99777 34,799 0.02
AMER AIRLINE 19-1AA PTT (SER AA) (R EG) 3.15%

1570872033 37,000 92.577158 34,254 0.02

140/268



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

BLACKSTONE PRIVATE CRE (SER 144A) (REG) 3.25%

15/03/2007 34,000  100.429 34,146 0.02

BX 2021-MFM1 SER MFML CL D FRN 15/01/2034 30,000  98.438 29,531 0.02

FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/10/2049 91,000 32.19128 29,294 0.02

PREMIER HEALTH PARTNERS (SER G) (RE G) 2.911%

15711/2006 28,000 102.19105 28,613 0.02

AIR LEASE CORP 3.625% 01/12/2027 24,000 105.68735 25,365 0.02

NISSAN AUTO RECEIVABLES 2018-A OWNER TRUST SER A 70,000 34.373412 24,061 0.02

CL A4 FRN

FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/10/2048 70,000 33.630812 23,542 0.02

AMER AIRLINE 19-1A PTT (SER A) (REG) 3.5%

15/08/2033 25,000 88.656117 22,164 0.01

FANNIE MAE POOL FRN 01/12/2048 53,000 41.361295 21,921 0.01

PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES (REG) 3.15% 19/05/2027 20,000 107.55405 21,511 0.01

CNA FINANCIAL CORP (REG) 2.05% 15/08/2030 19,000  97.0249 18,435 0.01

GOVERMMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SE 20 CL  geo 00 5 geieoo 17,643 0.01

10 VAR

TOYOTA AUTO RECEIVABLES OWNER TRUST FRN 15/10/2025 18,000  98.95084 17,811 0.01

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE A SER 9 CL 10 FRN

16/01/2060 630,000  2.689151 16,942 0.01

ANTHEM INC 2.25% 15/05/2030 16,000  99.6085 15,937 0.01

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE A SER 43 CL 10 FRN

16/05/2060 670,000  2.357982 15,798 0.01

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 158 409,000  3.670883 15.014 0.01

CL 10 VAR

COMM MORTGAGE TRUST SER COR3 CL XA FRN 10/05/2051 579,000  2.514189 14,557 0.01

UNITED AIR 2018-1 B PTT SER B (REG) 4.6%

01/03/2026 17,000  73.77108 12,541 0.01

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE A FRN 16/02/2062 185,000  6.677085 12,353 0.01

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE A SER 69 CL 10 FRN

16/04/2060 565,000  2.115925 11,955 0.01

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE A SER 35 CL 10 FRN

16/03/2060 435,000 2.607018 11,341 0.01

NEW JERSEY ST TRANSPRTN TRUST 4.131% 15/06/2042 10,000  111.256 11,126 0.01

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 100 166,967  6.253813 10,442 0.01

CL 10 FRN

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 131 241,000  4.225432 10,183 0.01

CL 10 FRN

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCI ATION SER 99

CL 10 FRN 16/06/2060 755,000  1.340179 10,118 0.01

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 119 175,000  5.463429 9,561 0.01

CL 10 FRN

GOVERMMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION SER 41 CL oo 0 1 gecone 0,423 0.01

10 VAR

CONTL AIRLINES 2007-1 SER (071A) FRN 19/10/2023 60,000 15.192965 9,116 0.01

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE A SER 114 CL 10 VAR

16/04/2060 520,000  1.715169 8,919 0.01

WESTLAKE AUTOMOBILE RECEIVABLES FRN 15/03/2024 100,000  5.030448 5,030 0.00

FREDDIE MAC MULTIFAMILY STRUCTURED PASS THROUGH

CERTIFICATES SER K022 820,000  0.311593 2,555 0.00
156,560, 201
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2021 12

142,628,849 91.10
1,693,272 1.08
1,388,805 0.89
1,236,952 0.79
1,092,625 0.70

975,562 0.62
882,200 0.56
773,577 0.49
657,884 0.42
644,076 0.41
596,910 0.38
486,681 0.31
485,267 0.31
424,421 0.27
302,565 0.19
279,777 0.18
250,995 0.16
245,411 0.16
209,979 0.13
205,144 0.13
204,927 0.13
193,182 0.12
156,560,201
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2022
126,737,254 16,331,362,550
2,247,071 289,557,569
124,490,183 16,041,804,981
1,013,319
113,803
87.56 11,283
90.26 8,277
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HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
2 3 17
17/F Tower 2 & 3, HSBC Centre , 1 Shum Mong Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

144/268



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 2,841 46,649
2,486,543,936 301,000,000
1,257 20,640
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2022

640

62

702
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131

23 103

2022 28
16.42
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2021 12 31
2021 2020
8 7,962,844 130,750 3,319,917 54,513
10,27 83,307,710 1,367,913 89,525,384 1,470,007
11 390,731,310 6,415,808 366,240,358 6,013,667
12 1,159,135,816 19,033,010 1,141,135,816 18,737,450

1,641,137,680 26,947,481 1,600,221,475 26,275,637

’1 - - 11,998,335 197,013
14 114,082,647 1,873,237 95,954,423 1,575,572
15 651,204,412 10,692,776 3,454,158 56,717
16 96,121,282 1,578,311 64,399,237 1,057,435
17 104,887,861 1,722,259 111,369,804 1,828,692
18 456,287,420 7,492,239 313,200,123 5,142,746

1,422,583,622 23,358,823 600,376,080 9,858,175

19 110,829,972 1,819,828 114,895,321 1,886,581
20 306,654,098 5,035,260 254,636,365 4,181,129
21 - - 12,397,839 203,573
16 209,384,629 3,438,096 106,044,081 1,741,244
22.27 7,697,615 126,395 . .
634,566,314 10,419,579 487,973,606 8,012,527
788,017,308 12,939,244 112,402,474 1,845,649
2,429,154,988 39,886,725 1,712,623,949 28,121,285

23 2,782,993,436 45,696,752 1,925,693,436 31,619,886
24 8,233,917 135,201 7,231,505 118,741

(362,072,365)  (5,945,228)  (220,300,992)  (3,617,342)
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2,429,154,988 39,886,725 1,712,623,949 28,121,285
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2021 12 31

2021 2020
4 755,723,525 12,408,980 638,110,043 10,477,767
4 83,979,226 1,378,939 106,614,798 1,750,615
(39,858,731) (654,480)  (38,700,622) (635,464)
(658,034,911)  (10,804,933)  (590,424,011) (9,694,762)
(283,435,194) (4,654,006)  (250,164,297) (4,107,698)
5,21 (145,288) (2.386) (577,644) (9,485)
5 (141,771,373) (2,327,886)  (135,141,733) (2,219,027)
; i - i -
(141,771,373) (2,327,886)  (135,141,733) (2,219,027)
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2021 12 31

1,672,944,843 27,469,754 5,951,047 97,716 (85,159,259) (1,398,315) 1,593,736,631 26,169,155
252,748,593 4,150,132 - - - - 252,748,593 4,150,132

- - 1,280,458 21,025 - - 1,280,458 21,025

- - - - (135,141,733) (2,219,027)  (135,141,733) (2,219,027)
1,925,693,436 31,619,886 7,231,505 118,741  (220,300,992) (3.617,342) 1,712,623,949 28,121,285
857,300,000 14,076,866 - - - - 857,300,000 14,076,866

- - 1,002,412 16,460 - - 1,002,412 16,460

- - - - (141,771,373) (2,327,886)  (141,771,373) (2,327,886)
2,782,993,436 45,696,752 8,233,917 135,201  (362,072,365) (5,945,228) 2,429,154,988 39,886,725
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2021 12 31

2021 2020
(141,771,373) (2,327,886)  (135,141,733) (2,219,027)
4 (58,517) (961) (412,576) (6,774)
5. 21 145,288 2,386 577,644 9,485
5. 21 10,050,536 165,030 11,998,335 197,013
5 1,174,855 19,291 - -
24 1,002,412 16,460 1,280,458 21,025
(129,456, 799) (2,125,681)  (121,697,872) (1,998,279)
6,217,674 102,094 (3,6655,437) (60,022)
(18,128,224) (297,665)  (30,393,035) (499,054)
(647,750,254)  (10,636,059) 1,997,276 32,795
(32,896,900) (540,167) 7,804,474 128,149
6,481,943 106,434 (91,200, 647) (1,497,515)
(4,065,349) (66,753) 92,116,127 1,512,547
52,017,733 854,131 25,164,281 413,197
103,340,548 1,696,852 44,448,577 729,846
7,697,615 126,395 - -
(656,542,013) _ (10,780,420)  (75,416,256) (1,238,335)
58,517 961 412,576 6,774
(145,288) (2,386) (577,644) (9,485)
(656,628,784)  (10,781,845)  (75,581,324) (1,241,045)
8 (4,642,927) (76,237) (3,319,917) (54,513)
(24,490,952) (402,141)  (49,670,789) (815,594)
(18,000,000) (295,560)  (18,000,000) (295,560)
(47,133,879) (773,938) (70,990, 706) (1,165,667)
23 857,300,000 14,076,866 252,748,593 4,150,132
(10,450,040) (171,590)  (12,004,309) (197,111)
846,849,960 13,905,276 240, 744,284 3,953,021
143,087,297 2,349,493 94,172,254 1,546,308
18 313,200,123 5,142,746 219,027,869 3,596,438
456,287,420 7,492,239 313,200,123 5,142,746
18 456,287,420 7,492,239 313,200,123 5,142,746
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1,366,922,613 1,023,728,547
(611,199,088) (385,618,504)
755,723,525 638,110,043
13,418,951 5,915,342
84,679,086 85,735,877
(24,781,612) 18,118,595
58,517 412,576
10,604,284 (3,567,592)
83,979,226 106,614,798
839,702,751 744,724,841

166/268



25
25
21
25

21

383

16.5%

EDINETOOOO

o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020

599,707,664 539,001,665

22,713,846 20,635,435

35,613,401 30,786,910

108,332,774 96,891,942

39,858,731 38,700,622

10,050,536 11,998,335

1,174,855 -

867,324 1,030,741

145,288 577,644

2021 2020

225,897 224,811

21,076,212 21,961,732

21,302,109 22,186,543

2020
2021 2020
% %
(141,771,373) (135,141,733)

(23,392,276) 16.5 (22,298,386) 16.5
(2,223,690) 1.6 (1,044,022) 0.8
6,160,454 (4.3) 1,828,761 (1.4)
19,455,512 (13.7) 21,513,647 (15.9)
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2021 2020
3,319,917 _
4,642,927 3,319,917
7,962,844 3,319,917
12 31
951,626 8,671,902
7,720,276
(5,376,763) (951,626) (6,328,389)
2,343,513 - 2,343,513
7,720,276 951,626 8,671,902
(5,376,763) (951,626) (6,328,389)
2,343,513 - 2,343,513
2,343,513 - 2,343,513
(2,343,513) - (2,343,513)
7,720,276 951,626 8,671,902
(7,720,276) (951,626) (8,671,902)
2021 2020
825,000 825,000
560,000 560,000
81,922,710 88,140,384
83,307,710 89,525,384
2021 2020
390,731,310 366,240,358
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12,723,721
49,954,893
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2020 213,234

511,500,000
10,374,989
100,000
10,415,564 2020 2,485,800
121,776,618 2020

2020 13,246,285
2020 37,231,172
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100

100

100

111,361,055

2021 2020

1,159,135,816 1,141,135,816
49 - 49 49
)
) 49 100 49 60
28
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a
2021 2020
1,226,588,952 1,071,288,886
247,165,551 149,836,836
414,592,759 329,629,614
54,892,960 45,916,951
b
2021 2020
32,012,999 25,292,423
14,291,459 5,448,383
(32,596,431) (10,515,040)
13.
741,900,039 2020 627,834,806
14.
2021 2020
99,561,271 80,350,081
i 187,500 909,672
] 5,942,111 2,596,765
8,391,765 12,097,905
114,082,647 95,954,423
)
)
2020
2021 12 31
2021 12 31
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0% 0% 0% 0%
105,855,751 1,127,472 7,099,425 114,082,647
15.
2021 2020
647,436,294 175,400
3,768,118 3,278,758
651,204,412 3,454,158
16.
2021 2020
- 63,802,728 16,600,865
- 401,965 213,234
- 31,916,589 35,803,842
- - 11,781,296
96,121,282 64,399,237
- 118,890,542 60,033,004
- 100,000 100,000
) 90,394,087 45,911,077
209,384,629 106,044,081
17.
104,887,861 2020 111,369,804
18.
2021 2020
456,287,420 313,200,123
19.
2021 2020
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108,264,450 102,101,286
2,565,522 12,794,035
110,829,972 114,895,321
2021 2020
972,234 7,939,521
249,383,567 199,430,844
56,298,297 47,266,000
306,654,098 254,636,365
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21.

2020

2020 12 31 2021

2021 12 31

2020

2020 12 31 2021

2021 12 31

2021

145,288
10,050,536

25,280,992
(1,284,322)
(11,998,335)

11,998,335
(1,947,799)
(10,050,536)

25,686,470
(1,284,322)

577,644
(12,581,953)

12,397,839
(1,947,799)

145,288
(10,595,328)

2020

577,644
11,998,335

10,195,824

12,575,979
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23.

2,428,546,936

2020 1,571,246,936

301,000,000

2020 301,000,000

2020

2020
2021

12 31

2021 12 31

a 2020 16
77,524,800

2020 27
26,356,793

2020 11 17
48,063,000

2020 12 17
100,804,000

b 2020 27
17,834,000

2021 27
777,194,000

2021 25
23,296,000

632,470,927
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(020 : )

2021 2020
7,697,615 -
2021 2020

2,481,993,436

301,000,000

1,624,693,436

301,000,000

2,782,993,436

1,925,693,436

1,318,498,343 1,371,944,843 1,371,944,843
252,748,593 252,748,593 252,748,593
1,571,246,936 1,624,693,436 1,624,693,436
857,300,000 857,300,000 857,300,000
2,428,546,936 2,481,993,436 2,481,993,436
2020 21 77,524,800
2020 26,356,793
48,063,000
100,804,000
2021 20 17,834,000
2021 777,194,000
2021 16 23,296,000
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2021 12 17 2021 12 29 38,976,000
38,976,000
10
73,600,000
2021 2020
21.51 310,032 20.12 220,349
i - 24.38 99,088
17.84 (34,045) 16.62 (9,405)
12 31 22.46 275,986 21.51 310,032
2021
*
2021 2032 24.38 99,088
2020 2031 22.60 44,830
2019 27 2030 27 24.73 19,037
2018 28 2029 28 2461 17,690
2017 23 2026 23 17.59 50,720
2016 24 2025 24 22.02 30,896
2015 25 2024 25 21.20 13,726
2014 19 2023 19 15.52 13,926
2013 21 2022 21 12.64 20,119
310,032
2020
*
2021 2032 24.38 99,088
2020 2031 22.60 44,830
2019 27 2030 27 24.73 19,037
2018 28 2029 28 24.61 17,690
2017 23 2026 23 17.59 50,720
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2016 24 2025 24 22.02 30,896
2015 25 2024 25 21.20 13,726
2014 19 2023 19 15.52 13,926
2013 21 2022 21 12.64 20,119

310,032
*

2021 12 31 1,002,412 2020 1,280,458
4,937,888 2020 4,413,287
2021 12 31 34,610,989 2020 29,506,452
2021 12 31 64,911,903 2020 34,203,920
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25.

2021 2020
(
) 150,338,450 -
) 10,389,214 9,398,908
) 317,408,843 302,937,507
(
) 9,339,083 6,507,371
- 661,409 144,142
] 351,814,245 179,965,278
(
) 20,519,991 21,294,938
) 39,210,605 58,173,088
) 45,631,802 27,749,839
(
_ - 121,900
) 108,332,774 96,770,042
1,174,855 -
(
19,227,045 21,868,281
(
_ - 514,952
] 7,997,904 5,544,583
) 2,780,934 2,174,038
1,174,855 2020
2021 12 31
2021 2020
21,302,109 22,186,543

25.
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2021
- 83,308 83,308
114,083 - 114,083
651,204 - 651,204
96,121 - 96,121
104,888 - 104,888
456,287 - 456,287
1,422,583 83,308 1,505,891
110,830 - 110,830
306,654 - 306,654
209,384 - 209,384
- 7,698 7,698
626,868 7,698 634,566
2020
- 89,525 89,525
95,954 - 95,954
3,454 - 3,454
64,399 - 64,399
111,370 - 111,370
313,200 - 313,200
588,377 89,525 677,902
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114,895
254,636
92,722
462,253

2021 2020 2021 2020
81,923 88,140 81,923 88,140
825 825 825 825
560 560 560 560
83,308 89,525 83,308 89,525

7,698 - 7,698 -

7,698 - 7,698 -
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2021 12 31
81,923 - - 81,923
- - 825 825
560 - - 560
82,483 - 825 83,308
2020 12 31
88,140 - - 88,140
- - 825 825
560 - - 560
88,700 - 825 89,525
2021 12 31
- - 7,698 7,698
- - 7,698 7,698
2020
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2021
12 31 456 2020 313
2.24 2020 1.21

2021
110,830 - - - 110,830
- 276,530 30,124 - 306,654
209,384 - - - 209,384
- 7,698 - - 7,698
320,214 284,228 30,124 - 634,566
2020
114,895 - - - 114,895
- 225,365 29,271 - 254,636
106,044 - - - 106,044
220,939 225,365 29,271 - 475,575
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2021 2020
5% oD oD 5% (237) (237)
50 31,549 31,549 50 510 510
5% 15 15 5% 107 107
5% (143) (143) 5% (192) (192)
5% (1,165) (1,165) 5% (1,007) (1,007)
2021
7,182 632,665 766 - - 640,613
(9,001) (1,695) (465) (2,855) (23,294) (37,309)
(1,819) 630,970 301 (2,855) (23,294) 603,303
2020
1,995 16,328 10,398 - 148 28,869
(6,742) (6,133) (8,254) (3,842) (20,298) (45,269)
(4,747) 10,195 2,144 (3,842) (20,150) (16,400)

182/268



2020 12 31

3,000,000

2020 12 31

29.

30.
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107,913,426

31.

(b) 2022 14
©

2022
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32.
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385,000

7,440,000
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2021 12 31

2021 12 31

2021 2020

46,782,167 46,523,890

520,669,107,858
2021 12 31
1,023,728,547

1,366,922,613 2020

57,997,000

2,782,993,436

37,170,824

635,197,000

35
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2022 10

2,840,990,436
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FOSITION

31 December 2021

2021 2020

Motes UKS HES
NMOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible asgets g 7,962,844 3,319,917
Plant and equipment g - -
Tinancial investments at fair value through profit or loss 10,27 83,307,710 £9,525,584
Investment in subsidiaries 11 390,731,310 166,240,358
Investment in joint ventures 12 1,159,135.816 1141135816
Total non-current assets 1,641,137,680 1,600,221,475
CURRENT ASSETS
Right-of-use assets 21 - 11,998,335
Aeeounts receivable 14 114,082,647 95,954,423
Prepayments, deposits and ather receivables 15 651,204,412 3,454,158
Due from related parties 16 06,121,282 £4,399.237
Client bank balanses 17 104,887,861 111,369,504
Cash and cash equivalenis 18 456,287,420 313,200,123
Total cument assets 1,422.583,622 600,376,080
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 12 110,829,972 114,895,321
Agcrued liabilities 20 306,654,098 254,636,363
Lease liabilities 21 - 12,397,839
Due to related parties 16 209,354,629 106,044,081
Derivative financial instruments 22,27 7.697.615 -
Total current liabilitics 634, 566,314 487,973,606
NET CURRENT ASSETS 788,017,308 112,402,474 _
NET ASSETS 2,429,154 958 1,712,623,949
EQUITY
Share capital 23 2,782,903 436 1,925,683 436
Share option reserve 24 8,233,917 7,231,505
Accumulated loss (362,072,365)  _ (220,300,952
Total equity 2,429,154988  _ 1712,623,949

— e s, e e W

The accompanying notes arc an jutegral part of these financial statements.

Michael Floyd Dommermuth
Director
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION

31 December 2021

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assats
Plant and equipment

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investment in subsidiaries
Tnvestment in joint ventures
Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Right-ofuse assats
Accounts receivahle

Prepayments, deposits and cther receivables

Due from related parties
Client bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Taotal current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Lease liabilities

Due to reloted parties
Derivative financizl instruments
Total current lizbilitiss

WET CURRENT ASBETS

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Share capital
Share option reserve
Accumulated loss

Total equity

Notes

&

9
10, 27
11
12

21
14
15
16
17
18

19
20
21
lé
2,27

B

2021 2020
HER HKS
7,062,844 1319917
3,307,710 89,525,384
390,731,310 166,240,358
_ 1159135816 1141135816
1,641,137,680 1,600,221,475
- 11,998,335
114,082,647 95,954,423
651,204,412 3,454,158
96,121,282 64,399,237
104,887,861 111,369,304
456,287.420 313,200,123
1.422,583 622 600,376,080
110,829,972 114,795,321
306,654,098 254,636,165
i 12,397,839
209,384,629 106,044,081
7,697,615 =
534,566,314 487,973,606
788,017,308 112,402,474
7.429,154.988 1.712,623.949
2,782,993,436 1,925,693,436
8,233,917 7,231,505
(362,072,365)  _(220,300992)
2,429,154,988 1,712,623,049

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

)7

Michael Flayd Demmermuth
Directer
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2021
Hotes

REVENUE 4
Cyther income and gains 4
Cecupancy costs
Salaries and other staff costs, directors'

remuneration inclusive
Other operating expenses
Finanee costs on lease liabilities 5,21
LOSS BEFORE TAX 5
Income tax charge 7

LOES AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
MCOME FOR THE YEAR

(Restated)

2021 2020

HK$ HES
755,723,525 638,110,043
83,979,226 106,614,708
(39,858,731) (38,700,622)
(658,034,911) (590,424,011)
(283 ,435,194) (250,164,297)
(145,288) (577,644)
(141,771,373) (135,141,733)
(141,771,373) (135,141,733)

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2021

Share

Share cptien  Accumulated Total

capital reserve lass equity

Notes K3 HES HES HES

At | Januzry 2020 1,672,944,843 5,951,047 (85,159,259) 1,593,736,631

Share issuance 23 252,748,593 - - 252,748,593

Share oplion arrangements 24 - 1,280,458 - 1,280,458

Total coxspuehani gy . - (135,041,733)  (135,141,733)
income for the year

Bl ”f;';“‘;; s 1925693436 7,231,505  (220300992) 1,712,623,949

an

Share issuance 23 #57,300,000 - - 857,300,000

Share option arrangements 24 - 1,002,412 - 1,002,412

Tahat votupteiwed e - - (141,771373)  (141,711,373)
income for the year

At 31 December 2021 2,782,993,436 £,233.917  (362072,365) 2429.154,988

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2021
Motes 2021 2020
HES HEE
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax (141,771,373) (135,141,733}
Adjustments for:
Inferest ingome 4 (58,517) (112,576)
Interest on lease liabilites 521 145,288 377,044
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 5,21 10,050,536 11,998,335
Written-off of amount due from related party 3 1,174,855 -
Share oplion expense 24 1,002,412 1 458
(129,456,799) (121,697,872)
Diecrease ! {Inerease) in finaneial investments at
through profit or loss 6,217,674 (3,655,437
Increase in sccounts receivable (18,128.224) {30,393,035)
{Increase) / Dacrease in prepayments, depogits and
other receivables (547,750,254) 1,997,276
(Increase) / Decrease in due from related parties (32,896,900} 7,804,474
Degreaszs { (Increase) in client bank bajances 6,481,943 (91,200,647
{Deersase) / [nereass in accounts payable (4,065,349) 92,116,127
Ircrease in accrued labilities 52,017,733 25,164,281
Increase in due to related partisz 103,340,548 44,448,577
Increase in derivative financial instruments 7.607.615 -
Cash flows usid in operations {656,542,013) (75,416,256)
Irdarest received 38517 412,576
Interest on lease liabilities {145.2E%8) {577.644)
et cash flows used in operating activities (656,628.764) {75,581,324)
CASH FLOWS FROM BNVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addifions to intangille asset & (4,642,5927) (3319917
Cagpital injection to a subsidiary (24,490,952) (49,670,789
Capital injection to 2 joint venture (18,000,000} _(18,000,000)
et cash flows used in investing activities (47,133,879) (70,950,706}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Procesds from issue of shares 23 857,300,000 252,748,593
Principal portien of lease liabilities {10.450,040) {12,004,509)
Net cash flows generated from financing
activities £46,849,960 240,744,284
WET INCREASE [N CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 143,087,297 94,172,254
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 18 313,200,123 219,027 569
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —
AT END OF YEAR 456,287.420 313,200,123
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CAEBH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 18 456,287,420 313,200,123

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

MANULIFE TNVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (the "Company™) is &
limited lability company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its registered office is located at 10F, Lee
Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causcwsy Bay, Hong Kong,

During the vear, the Company's principal activities censisted of dealing in securities, dealing in futures
contracts, advising on securities, advising on futures contraciz and providing asset management
services.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the Company is Manulife Investment
Menagement Intemational Holdings Limited, which is incorperated in Barbados, and the ultimate
helding company of the Company is Manulife Financial Corporation ("MFC"), which is incarparated
in Canada and its shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HEKFRS") {which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards {"HICAS”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (*HEKICPA®), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have besn prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for derivative financial instruments and financial investments af fair value through profit or loss,
which have bean measured at fair value, They are prezented in Hong Kong dollars which is also the
Company’s functional currency.

Consolidated financial slatements have not been prapared and the equity method has not been applied
in respect of the Company's interests in a joint venture as the Company is a whally-owned subsidiary
of MFC, which prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards. The conmsolidated financial swttements of MFC are zvailable at
www.manulife.cam.

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Company has adopted the following revised HKFRS for the first time for the current year's
financial statements.

Amendments w HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Renchmark Reform — Phase 2
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7
HEFRS 4 and HEFRS 16
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22 CHAMGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AWD DISCLOSURES (continued})
The nature and the impact of the revised HEKFRSs are described below:

Amendments to HEKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HEFRS 4 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of
financial aseets and lisbilities, if the change is a direct conscquence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous besis immediately preceding the change. In addition, the umendments permit changes required
by the interest rale benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness, The amendments aiso provide a temporary reliel to entitics from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The reliel allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entily reasonably expects the RFR risk componeat to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermere, the amendments require an entity to disclose additional information
to enable users of financial stztemants to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Company has not applied the following revised standards that have been issved but are oot yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments 1o HEFES 3 Reforence fo the Conceptual Framework!

Amendments 1o HEKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non
crrreni?

Amendments to HEKAS | and IKFRS Diseloswre of Accomting Policies

Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HEKAS & Definition of Accounting Estimates”

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deforved Tax related to Asseis and Lichifities
arising from a Single Tramsaction®

Amendments to FIEAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before
Intended Use*

Amendments to HEAS 37 Cmerows Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract'

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2018-2020  Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Mustrative
Examples accaompanylng HEFRS 16, and HEFRS
4

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftér 1 Fanuary 2022

3 Effective for anrual periads beginning on or after 1 January 2023

3 As & consequence of the amendments to HEAS 1, Hong Kong Inlerprotetion § Presefation of Financisl Stafements -
Cinssification by the Berrower of a Terra Loan that Containg a Repayment sn Demard Clawse was vevised i October
2029 tw align the corresponding wording with no changs i ciaciusion

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Company is described
below.
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3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STAMDARDS
{cantinued)

Amendments to HEKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the previous Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statemenis with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HEKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the seope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an eniity applying
HEFRS 3 should refer to HEAS 37 or HE(ITRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Company expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022, Since the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or afier the date of first application, the Company will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of tranzition.

Amendments to HEAS | Classifieation of Liabilities ay Current or Nom-current clarify the
requirsments for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify thet if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complving with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if
it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of 2 liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a sectlement of a lability, The amendments are effective for annuval
periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlicr application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company's fmancial
slatements,

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of dccounting Policies require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather then their significant aceounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financizl statements, it can reasonably be expected to influcnee decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial stiatements. Amendments to
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitied. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to HEFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessery. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on
the Company’s accounting poliey disclosures.

Amendments to HEKAS 8 clarify the distinetion between changes in accounting estimates and changes
in sccounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and fnputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in sccounting policies and
chanpes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier epplication is
permitted, The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
stalements.
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax
nsset and a deferred tax lizbility for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative ¢ffect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component of equity as eppropriate at that date. In addition,
tive amendments shall be applied prospectively 1o transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is penmitted.

Upon initial application of these amendments, the Compeny will recognise a deferred lax assel and o
deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use
assets and lease lisbilities, and recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative
peried presented.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of propecty, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the lceation and
condition necessary for it to be capable of aperating in the manner intended by management. Instead,
an entily recognises the procesds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments arc effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall
be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Barlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Company®s financiz] statements.

Amendments to EIAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is oncrous under
HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the coniract comprises the costs that relats directly to the contract. Costs
that refate directly to a contract inclade both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct
labour and matersals) and an allocation of other costs that relate direetly to fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract as well as contract management and supsrvision ¢osts). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to & contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
| January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its cbligations
al the beginning of the annual reporting pericd in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially epplying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening cquity at the date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any sipnificant impact on the Company's
finameial statements.
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2.3  ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{eantinued)

Avmual Improvements to HKFRSs 201 8-2020 sets out amendments to HEFRS 1, HEFRS 9, Tllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41, Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Company are as follows:

s  HKFRS % Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial lishility. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or recsived by either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on
or after the beginming of the annual reporting period i which the eatity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on
the Company's financial statements.

s HEFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illstrative Example 13 accompanying HEFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion reparding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HEFRS 16.

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiari
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investes and has the ability w affect those retums through its power over the
investee {Le., existing rights that give the Company the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investes).

When the Company has, directly or indirestly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
owver an investee, including:

() the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
{b) rights arising from other contractual arrengements, and
(e} the Company’s voting rights and potential veting rights.

The resulis of subsidiaries are included in profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company's investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for zale in
aceordance with HKFRS 5 Mon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Investments in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Company has a long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influsnce is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control o joint control over those policies.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net asseis of the joint venture. Joint control is the contraciually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the enanimeus consent of the parties sharing control.

If an investment in an associste becomes an mvestment in 2 joint venture or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be aceounted for under the cquity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the asscciate or joint control over
the joint venturs, the Company measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recopnised in profit or loss.

The results of an associate and joint ventures are included in profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company's investments in an associate and a joint veahue are treated as
non-current assets and are stated at cost less any ompairment losses. When an investment in an associale
o & joint venture is classified as beld for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HEFRS 5,

Fair valug measurement

The Company measures its derivative financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair valus is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lizbility takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or lizbility, or in the absence of o principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or & liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A Fair value measurement of 2 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability 1o
generate economic bezefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by sclling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 = hased on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is sipnificant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thet is significant to the fair
value measurement. is unobservable

For assets and lizbilities that are recogpised in the financial staternents on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measarement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting peried.

[mpairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required
{other than deferred tax assets, financial assets), the assel's recoverable amount is estimated. An assets
recoverable amount is the higher of the astet's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asser, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amaount is determined for the cash-gensrating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable
amount. [n assessing valos in use, the estimated forere cash flows are discounited to their preseat value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects eurrent market assessments of the rme value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment foss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether thers is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses maey no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recaverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset ather than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates veed w determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that wonld
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior vears. A reverzal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related te the Company if:

{z)  the party is a person or a clese member of that person's family and that person

(i has eontrol or joint control over the Company;

(i) has significant infiuence over the Company; or

(iii)  is amember of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the
Company;

(1)) the party is an entity whers any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Company are members of the same group;

{ii} one enlity is an associate or joint venture of the other eatity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entily);

{iii}  the entity and the Company arc joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entily is a joint venture of a third entity and tbe other entity is an essociate of the
third entity;

v} the cotity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either the
Company or an entity related 10 the Company;

{vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

{viij)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
persennel services to the Company or to the parent of the Company.

Tntangi

Costs related to the development of internally developed software are capitalised as intangible assels
with finite useful lives, Software intangible asscis are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of three to 10 years after they have been put inte operation. Finite life intangible
a=sets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting period.

Plant and ¢quipment and depreciation

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When
an item of plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The
cast of an item of plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly atinbutable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and lecation for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is ineurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are setisfied, the expenditure for 2 major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly,
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of plant and
cquipment to ils residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Furniture and equipment 16% to 3344%%
Mator vehicles 20% to 33%%

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
usefial lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon
disposal or when no fitture economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a leass. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognises lease liabihities to make loase
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right 1o use the underlying assets.

{2} Right-of-use assets
Right-ofuse assels are recognised at the commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying assel is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measurcd ai cost, Jess any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lsase liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs ineurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any least
incentives received.

(b} Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recopnised at the commencement date of the leass at the present value of Jease
payments to be made over the lease torm., The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, varizble lease payments that
depend on en index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for termination of a leass, if the lease tenn
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease paymenis that do aot
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the peried in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment ocours,
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Leases (continued)

{b) Lease liabilities (continued)
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In eddition, the carrying amount
of lease labilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
Iease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from  change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
aceounted for as operating leases. Where the Company is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor ars charged to profit or loss on the straight-lTine
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial asgets

Initial recognition and measurement

Finzneial assets are classified, at initial recogmition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The elassifieation of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
tash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of 2 financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. ‘Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing componeat or for which the Company hes applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined inder HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair velue through other
camprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payvments of principal and
interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measurad at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
agzets in order 1o penerate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financizl assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business medel with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and mersured at fair
vazlue through other comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at [air value through profit or loss,

Al regular wey purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases

or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued])

Investments and other financial assers (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial acsets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial asseis at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subssquently measured using the effective interest methed and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets af fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instrumenis)

‘or debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprebensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income is recyeled to the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial assels designated at faly value through other compreliensive income (equity investments)
Upan initial recognition, the Company can elect to elassify irrevocably its equity invesiments as equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis,

Gains and losses on thesa financial assets are never recyeled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Company benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair valu through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment,

Finaneial assets af fair vafue through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position ot
fair value with net changes in fair valus recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments which the Company had not
irrevocably elected to clessify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefils associnted with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial lability or noz-financial hosi, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a seperate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are
not closely related to the host; a separats mstrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative
would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid eontract is not measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment enly cecurs if there is either a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (FIONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

24 SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other finencial assets (continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified
in its entirety as a financial essel at fair valee through profit or loss.

Derivative finansial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measuremant

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value,
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any paing or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement
of profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or lass when the hedged item affects profit or loss,

The fair value of forward currency contrect is calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates
for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

The derivative financial instruments eatered into the by the Company do not qualify for hedge
accounting and, accordingly, are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period with any fair value
gains or losses being taken direetly to the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of finaacial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for Expected Credit Losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments
not held at fair value theough profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in sccordance with the confract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash fiows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other eredit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

(reneral approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default avents that are possible within the next 12 months (& 12-month ECL), For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Company compares
the risk of a default ocourring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of &
default cccurring en the financial instrument as ot the date of imitial recognition and conziders
reasonahle and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical end forwand-looking information.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i jal as continu

Simplified approach

For account receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing component ot
when the Company applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Company applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical eredit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic envirenment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant financing component and lease
receivables, the Company chooses as its accounting poliey to adopt the simplified approach in
caleulating ECLs with policies as described above.

cognition of financial assets
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.c., removed from the Company's statement of financial position)
when:
» the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
s the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has wransferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has eatered into 2
pass-through arangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retainad the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company
alsn recognises an associated liability. The transfemed agset and the associated liability are measured
on # basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantes over the transferred asset is measured at the
Lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company eould be required to repay.

Finaneinl liahilities at amortised cost

Financial liakilities including accrucd ligbilities and amounts due to group companies, which are
classified as loans and borrowings, are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
epels and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost,

Grains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

A finaneial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantia!ly different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 2
new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of finagcial instruments

Financial assets and finaneial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the staicment of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
thers is an intention to setile on a net basis, or to realise the assets and semle the linbilities
simultancoushy.

Client bank balances

The Company maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised financial institutions to hold
clients' deposits arising from normal business transactions, The Company has classified the clients'
monies as client trust bank balances under current assets in the statement of financial position as the
Company is allowed to retain some or all of the interest income on the clisnts' monies and recognised
corresponding accounts payable to the respective customers in cument liabilities on grounds thet it is
liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients' monies. Tae Company is not allowed to use the elients'
monies to settle its own abligation.

Cash and cash equivalsnts

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, eash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
geaerally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafis which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted a3 1o use.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, sither in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current 1ax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax lews) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretation and praciices prevailing in
the countries in which the Company operates,

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on ell temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of asscts and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recopnised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

s when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not & business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

s inrespect of taxable temporary differences asscciated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will net reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of

unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the

carryforward of unused tax credits and uaused tax Josses can be utilised, except:

s when the deferred tax asset relating 1o the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recopnition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the sccounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of defierred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are measured ot the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to sel off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation autharity.

Revepue necognition

Revenue from contracts with cusiomers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised whea control of goods or services is transforred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue are recognised on the following bases:
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG EONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) investment advisory fees and distribution feas are recognised over time becanse the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company:;

) additional performance fees on investment advisory services are recognised vpon the
achisvement of specificd performance targets;

{c) commission on redemption of investment funds, as revenue at the point of time that the relevant
contract notes are executed;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective intevest method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipt through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrving amount of the financial asset; and

(&) dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive payment has been established.

Share-baged payment trensactions

The Manulife Financial Corporation, the Company's uliimate holding company, operates share option
schemes for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to sligible participants who contribute to
the suecess of the Manulife Financial Corporation group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment, wherehy employees rendor
services as consideration for equity instruments ("equity-settled transactions™).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is delermined using
the Black-Scholes eption pricing model, further details of which are given in note 24 to the financial
statements. The cost of equity-settled transactiong is recopnised in employee benefit expense, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled.

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimetely vest. The charge or credit to profit or
loss for 2 pariod repressnts the movement in the comulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service andfor performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-marke: performance andfor service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the

fransactinns ore treated as vesting imespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance andfor serviee conditions are satisfied.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transections (coatinued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as & minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms hed not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met, In addition, an expense is
recognised for any medification that increases the totel fair value of the share-based payment, or is
atherwise beneficial to the employes s measured at the date of modification.

Where an equitv-setiled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting eonditions within the control of either the Company or the employee are not met.

Haowever, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement oward
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previcus pamgraph.

The cost of eash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair value, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. The fair value is expenscd over the period
until vesting with recognition of & corresponding liability. The liability is measured at the end of each
report period up to end including the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss,

The Company has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-seitled awards
and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 Movember 2002 that had not
vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January Z005.

Other emploves benefits

Paid leave covvied forward

The Company provides paid annual leave to its employees under their cmployment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as af the end of
the reporting period is permitted to be carried forward for one year and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Penston schemes

The Company operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retiremeat benefits scheme
{the "MPF Scheme™) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage af the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Company in an independently administered fund. The Company’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Company's employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Company when the employee leaves employment
prior to the contributions vesting fully, in aceordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2021

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in general
meeting.

Interim dividends are simaltansously proposed and declared, because the Company's memorandum and
articles of sssocistion grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared by the
directars.

Forelpn currencies
These financial statements are presented in Hong Konpg dollars, which is the Company’s functional
CUTTency.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and labiliies denomineted in foreign cumrencies are
translated at the functional cumrency rates of exchange ruling st the end of the reporting period.
Differences erising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Mon-monztary items that are measored in terms of historical cost in & foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial ransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated vsing the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured, The gain or loss arising in translation of a non-monetary item measured at Fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or less on change in fair value of the item,

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Compeny's financial statements requires management 1o make adjustments,
gstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their sccompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent labilities. Uncertainty about
these assumption and estimates could result in cwtcomes that could require material adjustment to the
earrying amounts of the assets and liabilities affected in the future.

]"dgmgnm

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
jedgements, apart from those involving estimations, which heve the most significant effect on the
amounis recognized in the finencial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company concluded that revenue for investment advisory and distribution services is to be
recognised over time because the customer simultanecusly receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Company.

Estimation unsertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key scurces of estimation uncertainty at the end

of the reporting peried, that have a significant risk of causing 2 material adjustment to the carrying
arnounts of assete and lighililies within the next financial year, are described below.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANMAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non<financial assefs (oifer tharn goadwill}

The Company assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at
the end of each reporting period. Other non-financinl assets are tested for impaimment when there ere
indicators that the camying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the earrying
value of an asset or o cash-generating unit excesds its rocoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value lass costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use caleulations arc undertaken, management must estimate the expacted future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order 1o calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Deferred fax asseds

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of furure taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and therefors, it uses an
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR™) to measure leass liabilities. The TBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The [BR therefore reflects what the Company “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
{for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Company estimates the
1BR using ohservable inputs (such as market inferest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Assessment of investorent funds as structured emtities
The Company has assessed whether the funds, for which the Company provides assel management
services, are structured entities,

The Company considered the voting rights and other similar rights afforded to other parties in these
funds (investors, independant bosrd of directors, or trustees), including the rights fo remove the
Company as fund manager, liquidate the funds, or redeem holdings in the funds (if such rights are
eguivalent to liquidating the funds) and has concluded as to whether these rights are the dominant factor
in deciding whe controls the funds, The Company has judged that managed funds are structured entities |
unless substantive removal or liquidation rights (including redemption rights akin to liquidation) exist.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

4, REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents the investment advisory fees and distribution fees. An analysis of revenue, other

income and gains is as follows:

2021 2020
HES HKS
{Restated)
Revenue from contracts with customers
Investment advisory fees and distribution fecs 1,366,922 613 1,023,728,547
Less: [nvestment fee expenscs and rebates (615,199.088) (385,618,504)
755,723,525 638,110,043
Other income and gains
Dividend income from a joint venturs 13,418,951 5915342
Expense rechargs to intercompany 84,679,086 $5,735,877
{Loss)'gain on financial investments at fair value
through profit or loss (24,781,612) 18,118,395
Interest income from euthorised institutions 58.517 412,576
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net 10,604,284 {3.567,592)
83,979,226 106,614,798
839,702,751 744,724,841

Interest income from awthorised instintion was reclassified from revenue fmfn contracts with
customers to other income and gains for better presenting the essence of the arrangement end conformed

to the current year's presentation.

5, LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Company's cperating expense include:

2021 2020
HES HES

Emplovee benefits expenses
Wages and salaries 500,707,664 539,001,665
Pension scheme contributions 22,713,846 20,635,435
Share-based payments 35,613,401 30,786,910
Service fees (Note 25) 108,332,774 96,891,942
Rental and oocupancy expenses (MNote 25) 39,858,731 38,700,622
Depreciation chargs of right-of-use assets (Note 21) 10,050,536 11,998,335
Write-off of amount due from subsidiary (Mote 25) 1,174,855 -
Auditors’ remuneration 867,324 1,030,741
Interest on lease liabilities (Mote 21) 145,288 577,644
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

&. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration disclosed pursvant to sestion 383(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Repulations, is as follows:

202 2020

HES HES

Fees 225397 224,811
Other emolumants

Salaries, allowances and benefils in kind 21,076,212 21,961,732

21,302,109 22,186,513

7. INCOME TAX

Mo provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Company did net generate any assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2020: Wil).

A reconciliation of the tax charge/eredit applicabls to loss before tax using the statutory rate to the tax
expense st the effective tax rate, is as follows:

2021 2020
TIES % HKS$ %

Loss before tax {141,771.373) (135,141,733}
Tax at the starutory tax rate of 16.5% (23,392,276) 165 (22,298,386) 16.5
Ineome not subjeet 1o tax {2,223,690) 1.6 (1,044,022) 0.8
Expenses not deductible for tax 6,160,454 4.3 1,828,761 (1.4)
Tax losses not recognized 19,455,512 {13.7) 21,513,647 (159
Tax charge at effective rate - - i =

B. INTAMGIBLE ASSETS
2021 2020
HES KL
Softwars

At 1 January 3,319,017 -
Additions 4,642,927 3,319,917
Accumulated amortisation” z -
Wet carrving amount at 31 December 7,962 Rdd 3310917

*The Company's software intangible assets have not been put into operation as at 3| December 2021
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
HES HES HKS
At 1 January and 3] December 2021
Cost at 1 January 2021 T.720,276 951,626 8,671,902
Retirement during the year (5,376,763) (951,626)  (6,328.389)
Cost at 31 December 2021 2,343,513 - 2,343,513
Accumulated depreciation at 7 January 2021 7,720,276 951,626 8,671,902
Retirement during the vear (5,376,763) (951,626)  (6,328389)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December 2021 2,343,513 - 2,343,513
At 3] December 2021
Cost 2,343,513 - 2,343,513
Accurmulated depreciation (2,343,513) - (2343513}
Met carrying amount s - i
Furniture and Muotor
ciuipment vehicles Total
HKS HES HES
At 1 January and 31 December 2020
Cost 7,720,276 051,626 £,671,902
Accumulated depreciation (71720276) _ (951,626)  (8,671.902)
et camrying amount - - i
10. FINAMCIAL INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
HKS HES
School debentures, at fair value 825,000 825,000
Club debentures, at fair value 560,000 60,000
Mutual funds, at fair value B1,922.710 88,140,384
83,307,710 89,525,384
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
2021 2020
HES HK3
Unlisted shares, at cost 390,731,310 166,240,358
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MAMNULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 Decamber 2021

11 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES {continued)

The amount doe from subsidiaries included in the Company’s current assets of HES401,965 (2020:
HE$213,234) is unzecured, interest-free, and is repayeble on demand.

Partieulars of the Company's subsidiary are as follows:

Percentage
of ordinary
Mominal value shares direcily
Flace of of issued held by Principal
Name incorporation share capital  the Company activities
2 Engages in raising
e g
Management Taiwan  NTD511,500,000 100 smm“‘f’;‘nﬂ":j
{Teivian) Coy, discretiona
Limited . ey
investment services
Manulife :
Engages in
Emﬂ; China  US$$10,374,989 100 discretionary
Limited Company investment services
Manulife
Imvestrment Engages in provision
Management Hong Kong HES 100,000 100  of nominee account
{HE) Nominess services
Limited

The net loss for the year of Manulife Investment Management (Taiwan) Co., Limited annbutable to the
Company which was not dealt with in the financial statements of Manulife Investment Management
(Taiwen) Co., Limited amounted to HE310,415.564 (2020: net loss of [K3$2,485800). The nel
accumulated post-acquisition loss as at the end of the reporting period of the subsidiary attributable to
the Company amounted to HKS$121,776,618 (2020: HK$111,361,055) and no dividend or impairment
loss were dealt with in the finencial statements of the Company.

The net loss for the year of aftributable to the Company which was not dealt with in the financial
statemnents of the Manulife Invesiment (Shanghai) Limited Company amounted to HIK$12,723,72]
(2020: HK$13,246,285). The net sccumulated loss as at the end of the reporting period of the subsidiary
attributable to the Company amounted to HK 549,954,893 (2020; HES37,231,172) and no dividend or
impairment loss were dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

The net profit for Manulife Investment Management (HK) Nominees Limited was nil for the year. No
dividend or impairment loss were dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

a2
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311 December 2021

12. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

2021
HES
Unlisted investments, at cost 1,139,135,816
Percentage of
Particulars
of izsued Common Converlible

shares Place of equity preferred  Veting  Profit
Name held  registration  interest equity power sharing

Manulife Registered
TEDA Fund  capital of

i - 49
Mansgezaent RME1 China 49
Ca., Ltd. cech
Albamen Registered
Capital capital of Hong a0
Partners HES1 Kaong o 10

Limited cach

The above investment in joint ventures is dircetly held by the Company.

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020
HEKE

1,141,135 816

Principal
activity

Fund

management

Fund

maragement

Manulife TEDA Fund Management Company Limited ("Manulife TEDA") and Albamen Capital
Parizers Limited (“Albamen™), which are considersd material joint ventures of the Company, are

accounted for using the cost method wnder exemption from HICAS 28,

33
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED

NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

12.

(a)

{b)

13.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES {confinued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financia! information of Manulife TEDA and Albamen,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

financial statements;

Manulife TEDA Fund Management Company Limited

Agsels
Linbilities
Revenus

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Albamen Capital Partners Limited

Assels
Liebilities
Loss and total comprehensive income for the vear

DEFERRED TAX

2021 2020
HES HES
1,226,588,952 1,071,288,886
247,165,551 149,836,836
414,502,759 329,629,614
54,892,960 45,916,951
Restated
2021 2020
HES HES
32,012,999 25,262,423
14,291,459 5,448,583
(32,596,431) {10,515,040)

The Company has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$741,900,03% (2020; HILS627,834,806) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arcse. Deforred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of thess losses as the Company has been
in & tax loss position for some time and it is not considered probable that taxeble profits will be available

against which the tax losses can be utilised.

3
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

14, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2021 2020

HES HKS

Investment advisary and distribution fee recefvables (Note (a)) 899,561,271 80,350,081
Amounts receivable from dealing in seeurities (Note (b))

- Cash clients 187,300 09,672

- Fund houses 542,111 2,596,765

Other fees receivable (Note (a)) 8301765 12,097,905

114,082,647 935,954,423

{a) The account receivable represents investment advisory fees receivable from the funds managed by
the Company, and distribution fees receivable for funds distributed by the Company, which arc
usually settled within 3 months. There is no significant concentration of credit risk. The carrying
amounts of the accounts receivable approximate their fair value,

{b) The account receivable from cash clients and fund houses arises from the ordinary courss of business
of dealing fn securities. The amounts are not considered impaired at the end of the reporting period.

There is no loss allowance for impairment of accounts receivable recognized during the year (2020: Nil).
Impairment under HEFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December 2021

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision malrix o measure expected

credit losses.
Set out below is the information about the eredit risk exposars on the Company's trade receivables using
& provision matrix:
As at December 31 2021
Current lto 3months  Ower 3 months Total
Expected credit loss rate e 0% 0% 0%
Gross carrying amount
{HK$) 105,855,751 1,127,472 7099425 114,082,647
Expected credit losses (HES) - - - %
is
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG EONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECETVABLES

2021 2020

HES HES

Deposits 647,436,294 175,400
Prepayments and other receivables 3,768,118 3,278,758
651,204,412 3,454,158

None of the above assets are either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
halances relzte to recelvables for which there was no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of these financial assels approximate their fair values,

L& BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES

2021 2020
HES HKS

Amounts due from
- an immediate holding company 63,802,728 16,600,565
- asubsidiary 401,965 213,234
- fellow subsidiaries 11,916,589 35,803,842
- joint ventures - 11,781 286
06,121,282 64,399,237

Amounts dus to

- intermediate holding companies 118,850,542 60,033,004
- an immediate holding company - -
- asubsidiary 100,000 100,000
- fellow subsidiaries 50,394,087 45,911,077

209,384,629 106,044,081

The balances with related parties are unsecured, interast-free and repayable on demand, The carrying
amounts of thess balanses approximate their fair vahies.

17. CLIENT BAME BALAMCES
The Company maintained clients’ monies of HK$104,887,861 (2020: HEKS111,369,804) in segregated
accounts with authorised financial institations through an affilisted nominee company in accordance

with the provisions of Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules. Client monies were
not included in the cash and cash equivalents of the Company.
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18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021
HEKS

Cash and bank balances 436,287,420

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020
HES

313,200,123

Cash at bank beneficially owned by the Company sarns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposits rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditwortly banks with no recent history of

defaunlt.

19. ACCOUNTS PAY ABLE

2021
HES

Amounts payablc to clients 108,264,450
Amounts payable to fund houses 2,565,522

110,829,972

— e e

2020
HKS

102,101,286

12,794,035

114,395,321

Aceaunts payable to clients and fund houses represents amounts payable arising in the normal course

of dealing in securitics.

20. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2021
HES

Payables 072,234
Provision of =taff costs 249,383,567

Orther accruals 36,298,297
306,654,098

2020
IR

7,939,521
199,430,344
47,266,000

254,636,365

Payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of three months and other accruals are
normally settled within i ycar, The carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

a7
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

21. LEASES
{2) Right-of-use asseis

The carrving amounts of the Company's right-of-use assets and the movements during the year are as

follows:
Properties
leased for own
use
HES
Asat 1 January 2020 25,280,992
Rental adjustment (1,284,322)
Depreciation charge (Note 5) (11,998.335)
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 11,998,335
Renta! adjustment (1,547,799
Depreciation charge (Note 5) (10,050,536)
As ar 3! December 2021 5

(b)  Lease liabilities

The carying amounts of the Company's lease labilities and the movements during the year are as

follows:

HEKS
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 25,686,470
Rental adjustment (1,284,322}
Accretion of inferest recogniscd during the year (Note 5) 577,644
Payments (12,581,953}
Carrying ameount &t 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 12,397,839
Rental adjustment (1,947,759)
Accretion of interest recognised during the year (Note &) 145,288
Payments (10,595,328,
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 -

Analysed into:
Current portion -

Mon-current portion £

38
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2021

21.  LEASES (continued)

{c) The ameunts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

2021 2020

HKS [IKS

Interest on lease Habilities (Note 5) 145,288 577,644
Depresiation charge of right-of-use asssts (Note 5) 10,050,536 11,998,335

10,195,824 12,575,979

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTREUMENTS

021 2020
HEEL HES
Forward cumrency coniracts 7697615 -

The notional amount of forward currency contracts amounted to HKS632,470,927 (2020: Mal).

23, SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020
HES HES
Issued and fully paid:
2.428,546,936 (2020: 1,571,246,936 of HKS1 each)
ordinary shares 2,481,002 436 1,624,693.436

301,000,000 (2020: 301,000,000 of HES1 each)
prefermed shares 301,000,000 301,000,000

2,782,993.436 1,925,693 436

g
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 Decamber 2021

23. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s ordinary share capital is as follows:

Share capital

and other

Number of Share statutory

shares in issue capital reserve

HEKE HES

At 1 January 2020 1,318,498 343 1,371,944,843 1,371,944 843

Share issued (Bote (a)) ) 252,748,593 252,748,503 252,748,593
At 31 December 2020 and

1 January 2021 1,571,246,936 1,624,603 436 1.624,603.436

Share isued (Mote (b)) £57,300,000 857,300,000 857,300,000

At 31 December 2021 2428 546,936 2,481,993.436 2,481,993,456

Motes:

{a) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 16 April 2020, 77,524,800 ordinary shares were issued
ta the existing shareholder of the Company on 21 April 2020, which resulted in increase in share
capital of HIX$77,524,800. The purpose of the issue was to fund ongoing working capital of the
Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 27 July 2020, 26,356,793 ordinary shares were issued
to the existing shareholder of the Company on 7 August 2020, which resulted in increase in share
capital of HK$26,356,793. The purpose of the issue was primarily to fund the investment in joinily
controlled entity, Albamen.

Pursuant 1o an ordinary resolution passed on 17 November 2020, 48,063,000 ordinary shares were
issucd to the existing shareholder of the Company on 17 November 2020, which resulted in increase
in share capital of HE$48,063,000. The purpose of the issues were to fund capital injection to a
subsidiary.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 17 December 2020, 100,804,000 ordinary shares wers
issued to the existing shareholder of the Company on 17 December 2020, which resulted in increase

in share capital of HK$100,804,000. The purpose of the issue was to fund ongoing working capital
of the Compary.

40
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MANULIFE INVES TMENT MAWAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

23. SHARE CAPITAL {continned)

(b} Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 27 July 2020, 17,834,000 ordinary shares were issued
to the existing sherehalder of the Company on 20 January 2021, which resulted in increase in share
capital of HK$17,834,000. The purpose of the issve was to fund ongoing working capital of the
Company.

Pursusnt 1o an ordinary resolution passed on 27 April 2021, 777,194,000 ordinary shares were
issued to the existing shareholder of the Company on 7 May 2021, which resulted in increase in
share capital of HK$777,194,000. The purposs of the issuc was primarily to fund the investment
in jointly controlled entity, Albamen.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 25 May 2021, 23,256,000 erdinary shares were issued
to the existing shareholder of the Company on 16 June 2021, which resulted in increase in share
capital of HK$23,296,000. The purpese of the issues were to fund capital injection to a subsidiary.

Pursuant to an ordinary resalution passed on 17 December 2021, 38,976,000 ordinary shares were
issued to the existing sharehalder of the Company on 29 December 2021, which resulted in increase
in sharc capital of HK$38,976,000. The purpose of the issue was to fund ongoing working capital
of the Campany.

24, EXECUTIVE STOCK OPTION PLAMN, RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT PLAN AND PERFORMAMNCE
SHARE UNIT PLAN OF ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

Under the Executive Stock Oplion Plan ("ESOP™) of the wltimate helding company, stock options are
periodically granted to the employees (incleding directors) of the Company for their service granted to
the Company. Options provide the holder with the right to purchase common shares at an exercise
price equal to the closing market price of the ultimate holding company’s commen shares on the
Exchange on the business day immediately preceding the date the options were granted. The cptions
vest over a period of not excesding four years and expire not more than 10 years from the grant date.
A total of 73.6 millicn common shares have been reserved for issue under the ESOF for the Company's
cmplayess.

In additien to ESOP, the ultimate holding company of the Company also granted restricted share units
("RSU"} and performance share units ("PSU") to the empleyee (including directors) of the Company
for their service rendercd to the Company. RSUs and PSUs entitle a participant to receive a payment
equal to the market value of the same number of common shares of the Company’s ultimate holding
company at the time the RSUs and PSUs vest and are paid out within three years from issuance.
Participants’ accounts are credited with dividends declared on common shares. No common shares of
the Company's ultimate holding company will be issued in connection with RSUs and PSUs.

4]
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MAMAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

1] December 2021

24, EXECUTIVE STOCK OPTION FLAN, RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT PLAN AND PERFORMANCE
SHARE UMIT PLAN OF ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY (continued)

The follewing share options were outsianding under the Scheme during the vear:

2021 2020
Weighted average  Number Weighted average  Number of
exercise price  of options exercise price options
CAD CAD

At 1 January 21.31 310,032 20.12 220,349
Granted during the year - - 24.38 09,088
Exercised during the year 17.84 (34,045) 16.62 (9,405)
Cancelled/expired during the year “ - - -
AL 31 December 2246 275,986 21.51 310,032

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding a5 at the ead of the reporting

period are as follows:
2021
Exercise Period Exercise Prices* Mumber of options
CAD
March 3, 2021 1o March 3, 2032 24.38 99,088
March 5, 2020 to March 5, 2031 22.60 44,830
February 27, 2019 to February 27, 2030 2473 19,037
February 28, 2018 to February 28, 2029 24.61 17,690
February 23, 2017 to February 23, 2026 17.59 50,720
February 24, 2016 to February 24, 2025 22.02 30,896
February 23, 2015 to February 25, 2024 21.20 13,726
February 19, 2014 1o February 19, 2023 15.52 13,926
February 21, 2013 to February 21, 2022 12.64 20,119
310,032
2020
Exercise Period Exercise Prices™ Mumber of options
CAD
March 3, 2021 1o March 3, 2032 24.38 99,088
March 5, 2020 to March 3, 2031 22.60 44,830
February 27, 2019 to February 27, 2030 24.72 19,037
February 28, 2018 to February 28, 2029 24.561 17,690
February 23, 2017 10 February 23, 2026 17.59 50,720
February 24, 2016 to February 24, 2025 22.02 30,896
February 25, 2015 to February 25, 2024 21.20 13,726
February 19, 2014 to Febrvary 19, 2023 15.52 13,926
February 21, 2013 to February 21, 2022 12.64 20,119
310,032

*  The exercise price of the share aptions is subject to adjusiment in case of rights or bonus issues, or

other similar changes in the share capital of the ultimate holding company.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

24, EXECUTIVE $TOCK OPTION FLAN, RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT PLAN AND PERFORMANCE
SHARE UNIT PLAN OF ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY (continued)

The Company recognised a share option expense of HKS1,002,412 (2020: HK$$1,280,458) during the
year ended 31 December 2021,

The fair value of the RSUs and PSUs granted during the year was HES4,937,888 (2020:
HKS4.413,287) in respect of which the Company recognised ESUs and PSUs expenses of
HIC$34,610,989 (2020: HKS25,506,452) during the year ended 31 December 2021,
As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of the RSUs and PSUs liabilities amounted to
HE$64,911,903 (2020: HK$34,203,920).

23, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

{a) The Company had the following material transactions with related parties during the year:

2021 2020
HES HES
Motes
Investment advisory and distribution fees
received from (i)
- the immediate holding company 150,338,450 -
- a subsidiary 10,389,214 9,398,908
= fellow subsidiarices 317,408,543 302,937,507
Tnvestment fiee expenses paid to {it)
- & subsidiary 9,339,083 6,507,371
- & joint venture 661,409 144,142
- fellow subsidiaries 351,814,245 179,265,278
Service fees charged to (1if)
- an intermediate holding company 20,519,991 21,294,938
- the immediate holding company 39,210,605 58,173,088
- fellow subsidiaries 45,631,802 27,749,839
Service fees paid to (1v)
- an intermediate bolding company - 121,900
- fellow subsidiaries 108,332,774 96,770,042
Write-off of amount dus from a subsidiary {v) 1,174,855 -
Rental and occupancy expenses paid {o {vi)
a fetlow subsidiary 19227045 21,368,281
Information system charges paid to {iv)
- ultimate holding company - 514,952
- an intermediate holding company 7,997,904 5,544,583
- fellow subsidiarics 2,780,934 2,174,038
43
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) The Company had the following material transactions with related parties during the year:
{conti

MNotes:

(i) The investment advisory and distribution fee income is based on terms as agreed with the
immediate holding company, subsidiary, and fellow subsidiaries.

(i) The investment fee expenses include sub-investment manager fees, trailer fees and agency
fees. The sub-investment manager fees are based on terms as agreed with the subsidiary,
fellow subsidiaries and joint venture, Trailer fees and apgency fees represent services
provided by a fellow subsidiary to the Company and are based on z2ctual costs incurred by
the fellow subsidiary.

{iii) The service fies represent services provided by the Company (o an intermediate holding
campany, immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries. The service fees are based
on actual costs incurred.

{iv) The service fees and information system charges paid to a subsidiary, fellow subsidiaries, an
intermediate holding company and ultimete holding company are based on actual costs
incurred.

{v) An amount receivable from a subsidiary of HK$1,174,855 (2020: MNil) was not recoverable
and was written-off during the year.

(vi) Rentel end occupancy expenses represent services provided by a fellow subsidiary to the
Company. The charges are based on actual costs incurred by the fellow subsidiary.

{b) Outstanding balances with related partics

The balances with related parties as at 31 December 2021 are unsecured, interest-free, and are
repayeble on demand. These carrving amounts approximate their fair values.

(¢} Compensation of key management personncl of the Company:

2021 2020
HKS HES
Short term employes benefits 21,202,109 22,186,543

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 6 to the financial statemenis.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
MOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrving amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reparting

period are as follows:
2021
Financial
assels et fair
Fipancial asscts  value through
Financial assets al emortised cost  profit or loss Total
HEL000 HES"000 HEKS'000
Finani¢ial investments &t fair value '
through profit or loss - 83,308 £3,308
Accounts receivable 114,083 - 114,083
Financial assets included in
prepayments deposits and other
receivables 651,204 . 651,204
Due from related parties 96,121 - 06,121
Client bank balances 104,888 - 104,888
Cash and cash equivalents 456,287 - 456,287
1,422 583 £3,308 1,505 8091
Financial
Fi R Financial  [liabilities at fair
Einangia] liabilities liabilities at  value through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
HEE 000 HECS 000 HEE 000
Accounts payable 110,830 - 110,830
Acerued liabilities 304,654 - 306,654
Due to related parties 200 3584 = 209 384
Drerivarive financial inslruments - 7698 7698
626,868 7,608 634,566
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

26, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

2020
Financial
, ) Financial assels at fair
Financial assets assetsat  value through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
HES 000 HES 000 HE$ 000
Financial investments at fair value
through profit or loss - 89,525 85,525
Accounts receivable 95,934 - 95,954
Financial assets included in
prepayments deposits and other
receivables 3454 - 3,454
Due from related parties 64,399 - 64,3949
Client bank balances 111,370 - 111,370
Cash and cesh equivalents 313,200 - 313200
588,377 89,523 677,902
: Financial
Financial liahilities lishilities at
amortised cost
HE$'000
Accounts payable 114,895
Acerued linbilities 254,636
Due to related parties 92,722
462,253
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

27. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR. VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financizl instruments, other than those with
carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, ere as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
2021 2020 2021 2020
HES000  HKS'000 HEF 000 HEE'000
Financial assets
Financial investments at fair
valpe through profit or loss
Mutual funds £1,923 88,140 81,923 BE,L40
School debentures 825 825 §2s 825
Club debentures 560 560 560 560
83,308 80,525 23,308 80,525
Financial liabilities
Deerivative financial instruments 7.698 - 7,698 -
7698 - 7,698 -

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, account receivables, finaneizl assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due from/to affilistes approximates to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
texm mafuritiss of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument
eould be exchanped in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a foreed ar liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of mutual fund and club debentures are based on guoted market prices, The schoal
debentures are carried at amortised cost less impatrmeat losses as there is no active market. The school
debentures are interest-free and repayeble on demand. At the end of the year, management has
conducted an impairment assessmeat of the school debentures. As there is no history of default in
payment fram the counterparty, and the counterparty has a healthy financial position, management
concluded that the carmyving value approximates its fair valee,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2021

27. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financial
instruments:

Assets measwred at fair value:
As at 31 December 2021

Fair value measurement using
Coted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobscrvable
markets inputs inputs
{Level 1] (Level 2) (Lewel 3) Total
HES'000 HEF000 HE$'000 HE 000
Financial asscts at fair valos
through profit or loss:
Mutal funds 81,923 - - §1,923
School debentures - - 825 825
Club debentures 560 - - S60
£2.433 - 825 £3,308
As at 31 December 2020
Fair valus measurement using

Cuoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Lewvel 1) {Lovel 2) (Level 3} Total
HEF000 HES'000 HEE 000 HES'000
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss:
Mutual funds 28,140 - - 88,140
School debenturcs - - 825 825
Club debentures 56l - - 560
88,700 - 825 £9,525
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MAMAGEMENT (HONG EONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

27. FATR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Lighilities mecsured at fair valye:

Az at 31 December 2021
Fair value measurement using
CQuoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Tatak
HE$000 FIRE'000) HES'000 HES00M
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss:
Derivative finaneial
instrument - - 7,698 7.698
- - T7.698 7,698

During the vear, there was no transfer of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020; Wil).

28, FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's principal financial instruments comprise cash and short term deposits, available-for-
sple investments and amounts due from immediate holding company. The main purposes of these
financial instruments are to taise finance for the Company’s operations and to carn interest income. The
Company has other financial nssets such as accounts receivables which arise direetly from its operations.

The Company had not entered into any derivative transactions during the year. It is, and has been,
throughout the year under review, the Company's policy that no trading in financial instruments shall
be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are eredit risk and liquidity risk. The
board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks (where applicable) and they are
summarised below,

Credie risk

The Company trades only with recognised and ereditworthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on eredit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis and the Company's exposure to bad
debts is considered not significant,

The credit risk of the Company's other financial assets, which comprise cash and eash equivalents,
urizes from default of the counterparty (which refers to licensed banks in case of bank deposits), with
1 maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Company considers that
the barls with which it hes placed its deposits are generally recognised as highly creditworthy and that
the risk of default by these banks is considered remote ond minimal. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk for the Company.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

28, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liguidity risk

The Company had a solid financial position and maintains & strong and steady cash inflow from its
operating activities. As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents of the Company amounted to
HE$456 million ¢2020: FIK$313 million). The current ratio of the Company was 2.24 (2020: 1.23).

Since the Company has abundant cash and cash equivaleats to meet its liabilitics, the Company has not
entered into any bank overdrafts, bank loans, convertible bonds and other interest-bearing loans during
the year.

The following table summarises the maturity profils of the Company's financial lizbilities based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows as the impact of discounting is insignificant. The maturity
grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. When & counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Company can be required to pay.

The maturity profils of the Company’s financial liabitities as at the end of the reporling period, bazged
on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2021
Less than 1te3 Crver
On demand L year years 5 years Toual
HEKS000 HES0CO HESOC0E HKS000 HES000
Accounts payable 110,830 - - - 110,830
Accrued liabilitics - 278530 30,124 - 306,654
Due to related parties 209,384 - - - 209584
Derivative financial instruments - 7,608 - - 7,608
Tatal liabilities 320,214 284228 30,124 - 634,566
2020
Less than 1ta§ Orver

On demand 1 year years 5 vears Total
HEE000  HES000 IES000 HKS000 HES000

Accounts payable 114,895 - - - 114,895

Accrued liabilities - 225365 20271 - 254,636

Due to related parties 106,044 - - - 106,044

Total liabilities 220,939 225365  29.271 - 475,575
50
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 December 2021

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND FOLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Company holds assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than its functional currency,
Hong Kong Dollar ("HKD"), and is therefore exposed to currency risk with respect to these cumencies.
Given the United States Dollar ("UISD") iz a linked currency with the Hong Kong doller, the Company
is not exposed to material currency risk arising from the United States Dollar ("USD") denominated
assets. Where applicable, the Company uses forward currency contracts for hedging purpose.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting pericd to a reasonebly
possible change in currency rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit / loss
before tax and the Company's equity.
2021 . 2020 "

Increase Increase

§ (Increase)’ : Increass!

in local _ Increass’  inlocal j L
CUITEnCy dicrstee {decreaze)  currency ( se)

on loss . : B inlogs  inm equity

“ﬂﬂg before tax " S PR before tax e
HES000  HES'W000 HES™00D  HESW000
CAD 5% (91 a1y 5% (237) (237)
CHNY 3% 11,549 31,5489 5% 510 510
JPY % 15 15 5% a7 107
MYR 5% (143) (143) 50 (192} {192}
SGT 2% (1,165} {1,165) 5% {L00T) (1,007

The table below summarises the Company’s exposure to foreign cumency risk at year end by
catégorising assets and liabilities by major eurrencies.

2021
CAD CMY JFY MYR SGD Total
HES000  HES'000 HES'000 HEF000 HES'DN0 HKS'000
Spot assets 7,182 632,665 a6 - - 640,613
Spol liabilities (2,001) (1,695} (4651 {2,855 (23284)  {37.309)
et long / (short)
position (1,819 630,970 31 (2,835)  {23204) 603,303
2020
CAD CNY Y MYR 5GD Total
HES 000  HIKS'000  HES'O00 HK$000 HES'000 HKE000
Spot assets 1,995 16,328 10,398 - 148 28,869
Spot liabilities (6,742) (6,133} (8,254) (3,842 (20,298)  (45,269)
Met long / (short)
position {4,747} 10,195 2,144 (3.842) (20,1503 ({16,400
5l
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in interest rates. The Company's interest rate policy requires it to manage interest
rate risk by maintaining approprizte mix of fixed and variable rate instruments. The policy alse requires
it to manage the maturitics of interest-bearing financial assets,

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not hold any variable loans and borrowings, ner
fixed rate financial assets classified as available for sale, and accordingly the interest rate risk for the
Company is considered by management as minimal,

Capital maragement

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the Company's ability to
continie as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder value. Moreover, as the Company i= regulated by the Sseurities and Futures
Commission in Hong Kong, it bas to maintain sufficient liquid capital in accordance with the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “FRR Rules™) throughout the year.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economie
conditions, Toe maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. Mo changes were made to the
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The Company monitors capital using liquid capital position, which is caleulated as liquid assets minus
ranking liabilities as specified in the FRR Rules. The Company’s policy is to maintain liquid capital in
excess of the higher of 1) 5% of adjusted liabilifics, a5 defined in the FRE; and 2) the minimum capital
requirement of HED3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately USD385,000), as required by the FRR
Rules. During the vear ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Company has complied
with the above liquid capital requirement.

29, COMMITMENTS

The Company had the following commitment at the end of the reporting period:

2021 2020
HES HKS
Capital contributions paysble 1o a joint vemiure 46,782, 167 46,523,890

52
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

311 December 2021

30,  UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Company manages several investment funds which meet the definition of structured entities,
including Mandatory Provident Funds, Occupational Retirement Schemes, and open-ended unit trusts.
The Compary holds interests in these structured entities through the receipt of management fees from
these funds,

As at 31 December 2021, the tota] net asset valuos of these managed funds were HES520,569,107,858
(2020: HE$486,826,875,151). The Company's interest in these managed funds was management fee
income of HKS1,366,922613 (2020: HES$1,023,728,547) for the year, including outstanding
receivables of HK$174,780,604 (2020; HES$107,913,426) as at 31 December 2021, The maximum
exposure to loss is equal to the cutstanding receivables shown above.

3l. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

{a) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, capifal injection amounting to US37,440,000
{approximately HKS57,997.000) was made on 10 January 2022 by the Company's immediate
holding company, Manulife Investrent Management [nternational Holdings Limited. Pursuant to
the cepital injeetion, issued and fully paid share capital inercased from HE$2,782,993,436 to
HK$2,840,590,436.

{t) On 14 January 2022, the Company further acquired 37,170,824 ordinary shares and 20,861,176
preferred shares in Albamen for HIK358,032,000. There is no change in the Company’s percentage
shareholding in Albamen.

{c) During the vear, the Company paid a deposit of approximately HEK3635,197.000 to a third party
for a potential acquisition. The ecquisition did not proceed and the deposit was refunded fo the
Company in February 2022

{d) On § January 2022, the Company entered into a sales and purchase agreement to acquire 35%
interest of & target company. Closing is subject to regulatery approval and completion of conditions
precedent as agreed between the Company and the seller,

ja COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The presentation of interest income from authorised institution was reclassified to other income.

Corresponding comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year's

presentation and disclosures.

33. APPROVAL OF THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
25 April 2022,
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Independent Auditor®s report
To HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Manulife Investments Trust —

US Core Fixed Income Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of Manulife Investments Trust — US Core Fixed Income Fund (a series-trust of Manulife
Investments Trust) (the Fund) as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

What we have audited
The Fund®s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders for the year then
ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Annual Report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’ s report
thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’ s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for HSBC Trustee (Cayman)
Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of the Fund in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

27 April 2022

262/268



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 12 31

2021 12 31

820

405

263/268



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 4 25

264/268



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT
To the members of Manulife Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Manulife Investment Management (Hong Kong)
Limited (the "Company') set out on pages 6 to 53, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("'HKFRSs™) 1issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“'HKCO™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“'HKSAs™) and with
reference to Practice Note 820 (Revised), The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated
Entities of Intermediaries issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor"s responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
HKICPA"s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code'), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor®s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the report of the directors.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. |If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the HKCO, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in
accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of
Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the HKCO, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition,
we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are in
accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of
Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 April 2022
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